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Vsjea, 106 S.CT at 623.

Most recently this Court considered a situation wherein

various motions were filed seeking disqualification of a

sitting justice in a capital case and discovery of certain

information centering around alleged judicial discipline

proceedings and/or involvement of the office of the Attorney

General. gooan v. Warden, 112 Nev. Ad Op. 77 (1995). In

Hogan, a majority of the Court rejected the various motions and

stated, inter alia, that	judge or justice is presumed not to

be biased, and the burden is on the party asserting the

challenge to establish sufficient factual grounds warranting

disqualification'. Hogan, at 6, citing to Goldman v. Bryan,

104 Nev. 544, 649, 754 P.2d 1296, 1299 (1988).

Based on the holding in Hogan, the burden was upon RIPPO

to establish that a conflict existed or that the appearance of

impropriety was such that relief should be granted. By the

time the Motion for New Trial was heard, Sudge Bongiovani had

ederal—aufficmities and-

19 heard by the Honorable James A. Brennan sitting by designation

20 (26 ROA 1).	Judge Brennan summarily disposed of the Motion
21 without allowing an evidentiary hearing or the presentation of
22 evidence to substantiate the allegation made in the motion

23 stating 'The Motion is denied.	I don't see any merit to it 	(26

24 ROA 4).

25 It is respectfully urged that in a capital case such as
26 the one at bar, a heightened degree of scrutiny should be
27 afforded any allegations of conflict of interest or impropriety
28 by the presiding trial judge.	This Court should either grant
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RIPPO a new trial based on the contents of the record, or

2 remand the case far an evidentiary hearing to determine whether

3 there was indeed a conflict of interest and the exact nature

4 nd extent of same, and further whether there was any

5 nvolvement by the District Attorneys office in the

6 nvestigation and indictment that should have been revealed on

7 the record before Judge Bongiovani was allowed to proceed with

8 the capital trial.

9
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.nd	8 12
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THE STATE'S FAILURE TO PROVIDE
BRADY MATERIAL IN A TIMELY FASHION

DENIED RIPPO OF A FUNDAMENTALLY
-	• ;-A0 0	-.1.10

On October 21, 1992, long before the instant case ever

went to trial and long before any issues arose concerning the

failure of the State to provide discovery, RIPPO filed a Motion

for Discovery and to Inspect All Favorable Evidence (1 ROA 114-

119). The exact language of the Motion asked for the

production of among other things:

...an Order requiring the Plaintiff to reveal,
produce, and permit the defendant to inspect and copy
all information and material favorable to a defense
of this cause (including all books, papers, records,
documents and objects and all facts or information of
whatever source or form in the possession of, or
known to, the Plaintiff or any of its agents), which
material and information are or may become of benefit
to the Defendant, either on the merits of the case or
on the question of the credibility of witnesses." (I
RCA 114).

The body of the Motion also referred to the specific language

f NRS 174,235(1) which requires the production of:

L. Written or recorded statements or confessions
made by the defendant, or copies thereof, within the
possession, custody or control of the state, the
existence of which is known, or by the exercise of
due diligence may become known, to the district
attorney;,.."

The written motion for discovery was granted by the Court (1

RCA 148) and a written order entered (1 RCA 154-155).

Inuring the course of the trial the defense learned for the

first time about a confession made by RIPPO to witness Tom Sims

and of exculpatory statements also made to Sims that RIPPO had

accidentally killed the first girl. The information first came

out during the Opening Statement of prosecutor Mel Harmon who
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who related the substance of the expected testimony from Sims,

including the extended confession attributed to RIPPO (10 ROA

66-68). Harmon did not mention that Sims would testify that

the first victim was killed accidentally.

At the next break RIPPO moved for a mistrial based on

violation of the discovery order in the case:

NCR. OUNLEAVY: The second one your honor is a
motion for a mistrial. Throughout Mr. Harmon's
opening statement, ha made references to statements
Mr. Sims was going to accredit to our client. We've
been provided discovery on Mr. Sims, including the
statement given to the police and his Grand Jury
testimony. None of this was ever discussed.

We've never heard anything about this We've
never provided any discovery indicating that he had
any information outside this.

To be sandbagged in opening statement that our
client supposedly confessed to somebody is not the
way it's supposed to be done. We have discovery
orders filed in a timely manner. They were granted.

Clearly, inculpatory statements by our client is
something we're entitled to be advised of. We never
heard them at all until Mr. Harmon made his opening
statement, and I submit to you that's improper and
grounds for a mistrial." (10 ROA 73).

During the actual trial testimony of Sims further
ormation came to light. Sims testified as follows:

"Q [Dunleavy] when is the first time you told
anybody about this?

A As soon as I was specifically asked about it

Q When did that happen?

A Oh, I believe it was around October of '93.
Q And who did you talk to?

A Teresa Lowry and John Lukens.
Q And did you give them a statement?

A I don't know if you would call it a statement or

34

24

25

26

27

28

JA009119



W	1	not.
F"
NJ	 2	Q It was tape recorded?

C)	 3	A It wasn't tape recorded to my knowledge.
c)	4	Q Both of them were present?,..1
c)
1—L	 5	A That's correct.
ON

I	6	Q Where did this occur?
1--,
t ... D	 7	A In the District Attorney's Office, up on the
(.0	 seventh floor.' (14 RCA 86-87)
i—L	8

9
Alter this testimony was received from Sims, counsel asked

to excuse the jury and put on the record the situation and
10

11

12

13

surprise that had occurred during the testimony of Sims. The

-trial was adjourned for the day and the following day an

evidentiary hearing was conducted on the matter. At said

hearing RIPPO renewed his request for a mistrial on the basis
14

of the discovery and also again asked for the disqualification
15

of Judge Bongiovani (15 RCA 6). At the evidentiary hearing the
16

following witnesses were called; Thomas Sims, John Lukens
17

Robert Archie, Teresa Lowry and Mel Harmon.
18

Sims again testified that he believed that he had informed
19

the prosecutors that RIPPO had indicated that the death of the
20

first girl was an accident and that he therefore had to kill
21

the second one (15 RCA 23). Lukens was still investigating the
22

case when he interviewed Sims (15 RCA 38). He had no
23

recollection of Sims telling him that RIPPO stated that he had
24

accidentally killed one of the victims (15 ROA 40). Lowry also
25

could not recall that RIPPO made such a statement (15 ROA 102).
26

When there was a change of assigned prosecutors as a
27

result of the defense motion, over a thousand pages of
28-
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16

discovery became available that previously had not been

provided (18 ROA 19).

During the penalty hearing it also came to light that

documents had been withheld from the defense, most notably a

statement against interest made by RIITO to Officer Saxon. The

defense again made a record of the transgression of the

discovery order:

"KR. DUNLEAVY: Your Honor, first, when Officer
Saxon was on the stand, Mr. Harmon handed him a
document that he wanted the information from. one
paragraph in particular to be basically read into the
record.

We had never seen that document. It was
supposedly a statement attributable to our client.
It was against his interest. We had never seen it.
It had never been provided to us in any discovery.

We've had repeated Brady violations throughout
this case. I want to put on the record, once again,
in the penalty phase, they're producing documents
they have never disclosed to the defense. We've
never had a chance to prepare our cross-examination
or to evaluate it in any way.

And there is no sanctions we can get against the
State. They can gat away with anything. Nothing

,t 	
apply. As long as we violate them, who cares. There
should be some meaningful sanctions imposed." (23
ROA 209).

It has long been the edict of the United States Supreme

Court that:

"...the suppression by the prosecution of evidence
favorable to an accused upon request violates due
process where the evidence is material either to
guilt or punishment, irrespective of the good faith
or bad faith of the prosecution."

rady v. Maryland, 373 U.S. 83, 87, 83 S.Ct. 1194, 1197 (1963).

The State presented no real defense to the failure to

provide the exculpatory material or to abide by the discovery

38
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order. The original prosecutors on the case simply ignored

their obligation, while the substitute representatives from the

office of the District Attorney simply blamed preceding counsel

for any derelictions. In State_ V. _Johnson, 573 P.2d 976 (Kan.

1977) the Kansas Supreme Court considered a situation wherein

the prosecutor did not possess or have knowledge of the name of

a witness that only appeared in the field notes of the

investigator. The Court in reversing in the conviction of

Johnson stated:

The state has an obligation to disclose evidence
favorable to the defendant (citation omitted). We
have no way of knowing whether the testimony of the
undisclosed witness who observed the robbery would
have been favorable or unfavorable to the
defendants.... The fact that the prosecuting
attorney had no knowledge of the witness is not
controlling. The obligation of the State to disclose
evidence to the defense extends to evidence in the
possession of the police officers as well as to
evidence in the files of the prosecutor."

ahn=n, 573 P.2d at 980.

The federal courts have interpreted the responsibility of

-ude info 	 et-

law enforcement agencies where a joint investigation occurred.

In United States v. ;intone. , 603 F.2d 566, 570 (5th Cir. 1979)

the Court reasoned that "imposing a rigid distinction between

federal and state agencies which have cooperated intimately

from the outset of an investigation would artificially contort

the , determination of what is mandated by due process.' Antone,

sutra, dealt with the use of perjured testimony that was

unknown to the federal prosecution, but known by the state

investigative agencies engaged in a joint investigation and

therefore imputed to the federal prosecutor. Antonia, 503 F.2d

37
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at 569. Such information was treated as Brady material under

the expansive holding in Giglto v. United ,5,tatee, 405 U.S. 150,

92 S.Ct. 8631 31 L.Ed.2d 104 (1972).

In United State v. Auten, 632 F.2d 478 (5th Cir. 1980)

the Court reversed a conviction based in part on the holding in

antone, supra. In &Ilan, a government witness denied existence

of certain prior convictions and after conviction Auten argued

that the failure to disclose required reversal under IltedY

Alit, 632 F.2d at 480. The prosecutors response that it had

not had time to make any FBI or NCIC inquires before trial was

not accepted by the Court, which found that the prosecutor's

"ready access to a veritable storehouse of relevant

facts...must be shared in the interests of inherent

fairness...to promote the fair administration of justice." I.

632 F.2d 480-814 Thus the Court again imputed knowledge to the

prosecution of information which it did not in fact possess.

It can be expected that the State may claim that the
8

9

20

21

22

23

24

25

attorneys acted in go

26

27

28

therefore be excused from compliance with Bray. The

authorities however are extremely clear that the good or bad

faith of the prosecution is irrelevant to the due process

inquiry. See Bradm, 373 U.S. at 87, 83 S.Ct. at 1196. Whether

the suppression of evidence results in constitutional error

depends upon the character of the evidence, not the character

of the prosecutor. Dnitsfi_statal_m,_ga .malit2, 523 F.2d 2421

248-249 (7th Cir. 1975).

The elements of a Brady violation are:

"(a) suppression by the prosecution after a request
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•
by the defense, (b) the evidence's favorable
character for the defense, and (c) the materiality of
the evidence."

core v. Illinoie, 408 U.S. 786, 794-95, 92 S.Ct. 2562, 2568
1972).

The three necessary factors to satisfy Brady are present

in this case. No doubt can exist that defense counsel made a

specific request for the materials under the control of the

prosecution team. The final prong of the Brady test is whether
the evidence is determined to be material. In United States v. 

Agurs, 427 U.S. 97, 110, 96 S.Ct. 2392 (1976) the Supreme Court i

set forth the standards to be utilized to determine materiality

of undisclosed evidence. When there has been a pretrial

request for specific evidence which the government then fails--
to produce the Petitioner need only show that the withheld
evidence 'might have affected the outcome of the trial."

Amara, 427 U.S. at 104-06, 96 S.Ct. at 2397-98. See also

Ilnitesi_Statea, ex rel Smith v. Fairman, 769 F.ad 386 (7th Cir.

9 Supreme Court Rule 179(4) provides that:

"The prosecutor in a criminal case shall:
21

(4). Make timely disclosure to the defense of
22	all evidence or information known to the prosecutor

that tends to negate the quilt of the accused of
23	mitigate the offense, and, in connection with

sentencing, disclose to the defense and to the
24	tribunal all unprivileged mitigating information

known to the prosecutor, except where the prosecutor
25	is relieved of this responsibility by a protective

order of the tribunal.'

27
hearing concerning the failure to disclose Brady material.

28
Harmon told the Court he was told by Sims during a pretrial

39

26
Prosecutor mel Harmon was called at the evidentiary

JA009124
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interview that RIPPO had stated that he had accidentally killed

one of the victims and that he wanted it to come out during

trial and that when Sims skipped over the statement during his
testimony he was sure to bring it out (15 ROA 119). The full

gist of Harmon's testimony on the Brady issue was as follows:

"Q You are familiar that the Court signed an order
in this case that we got all Brady material?

A To be quite candid with you, I wasn't real
familiar with the order until I saw it yesterday.
have since become quite familiar with the order.

I.

Q And you are also aware that even when there is
exculpatory information, there doesn't even have to
be a request for it; it's supposed to be turned over?

A I know that.

Q And Brady says that it could be either exculpatory
or relevant to punishment.

A Well, you have to show me where Brady says that.

Q You know the Brady case has two, either
exculpatory or relevant to punishment; are you
familiar with that?

3

4

18
1

material, in the context	 ihe Brady case, s a word
of art, Judge.

20

21 Q But you decided that a statement that someone died
accidentally was not something that should be turned
over?

23	A It is not exculpatory, nor is it material --

A --in the sense contemplated by the United States
26	Supreme court.
27	Q So your testimony is someone who is on trial for

murder, who has admitted that he accidentally killed
28	someone, that's not exculpatory or relevant to

punishment?

24
Q Someone's on trial --

JA009125



A You don't kill people accidentally with your hands
or a ligature around their necks choking them. That
is not an accident" (15 ROA 120-123).
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Harmon further explained his reasoning:

°Because there is no reasonable probability that a
failure to disclose that type of information -- by
the way it was disclosed, it came out in the opening
statement that was presented to the jury a week ago
tomorrow -- but material, by the definition, is it is
not material unless the failure to disclose it had a
reasonable probability of changing the outcome of the
cases (13 RCA 126).

At the conclusion of the February 8, 1996 hearing the

Court denied the request for a mistrial, but continued the

trial to the 20th of February to allow the defense time to

interview witnesses (15 ROA 163-164).

The clear and unequivocal message from the prosecutor is

at he based his decision to reveal evidence not on whether it

exculpatory, but whether in his opinion it was material,

i.e., would have a reasonable probability of changing the

outcome of the case. Prosecutors are not the individuals under

the American system of criminal justice that should be making 

decisions on materiality of the evidence that should be

provided to the defendant.

evidence that indicated that RIPPO had accidentally killed

ne of the victims was highly probative to punishment.

ateriality of evidence Can be based on the value of the

evidence as mitigation at sentencing. See .kus v._aele, 33

F.2d 933, 940 (8th Cir. 1994). R/PPO WaS prejudiced by the

failure of the State to make timely disclosure of the Brady

material in that the preparation and strategy of trial counsel

41
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were based on incomplete and inaccurate information. The

conviction and sentence must therefore be reversed.
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PROSEcuTORIAL MISCONDUCT AND FAILURE TO
DISQUALIFY THE DISTRICT ATTORNEY'S

OFFICE FOR SUCH CONDUCT DENIED RIPPO DUE
ht.	1/4111

Due Process requires that trials be conducted with

Niignity, order and decorum.'' Illinois v. Allen, 397 U.S. 337,

343, 90 S.ct. 1057 (1970). The office of the prosecutor has a

responsibility to see that the prosecution of a criminal case

is fair and just; he must be interested in justice, not just

convictions. Berger V. United States, 295 U.S. 78, 55 S.Ct.

629 (1935). Misconduct by the prosecutor may form the basis of

a new trial where the prosecutor's actions have deprived a

defendant of a fair and impartial trial. atata_m._Bain, 575

P.2d 919 (Mont. 1978); State v. Gray, 673 P.2d 1262 (Mont.

1983).

Only upon examination of the sequence of events and

cummulative conduct that transpired in the instant case can

this Court hope to grasp the nature, quality and quantity of

the misconduct that occurred.

A classic example of the pervasive misconduct  tactics

displayed by the district attorney's office is seen in the

sequence which occurred just before the first trial date. On

September 2, 1993, RIPPO filed a Notice of Alibi listing Alice

Starr as the alibi witness (2 RCA 284). Five days later, on

the eve Of trial, prosecutor Lukens informed the defense that

he had several additional unendorsed expert witness as well as

a number of "tail house snitches", the names of which he did

not give to the defense (2 ROA 295-306). To avoid being
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•
ambushed at trial the defense was required to move to continue

the trial date. The State did not oppose the continuance,

which was not out of the ordinary unless the State's Motion to

Expedite Trial Date or In the Alternative Transfer Case to

Another Department (1 ROA 168-173) is examined.

In the State's Motion to Expedite the prosecutor makes the

o lowing statements, among others:

'As supported by the affidavit of Teresa M. Lowry
attached hereto, the State submits that a trial set
9 1\2 months away causes great prOudice to the
State.

Based on the foregoing, the State respectfully
requests this Honorable Court to expedite the trial
date or in the alternative to transfer this case to
another Department so that the trial may be heard in
a timely manner" (1 ROA 170-171).

The affidavit of Lowry contains the same type of statements, to

'2). That the trial in this case has been
continued 9 1\2 months until November 22, 1993, due
to the court's crowded calendar.

3). That the trial is to be held approximately 21 
months afterthe date or the crimes. ThtS time delay
causes undue hardship and prejudice to the State." (1
ROA 172).

The question thus becomes what changed between an undue

hardship and prejudice to the State and then at the last minute

claiming to have unnamed new witnesses on the verge of trial?

pnly the timely Notice of Alijai ftled_by the defense. What

happens next is that the prosecutors obtained a search warrant

for the home of RIPPO'S alibi witness and the two prosecutors
went to the home of the witness and assisted in the service of

the warrant and become witnesses in the case. Not surprisingly

the State did not call the unnamed expert witnesses at the time
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1

2

3
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5

6

of trial.

Further evidence of what was really going on is revealed

by the transcript of the calendar call after the defense was

compelled to ask for a continuance. The Court, quite

apparently upset at the tactics of the prosecution, wanted to

know why the witnesses were being revealed at such a late date.

Prosecutor Lukens responded as follows in relevant portion:

...And I cannot answer that particular question that
the Court has posed as to why the State has waited
until such a late date with reference to those. All
I can say is that -

THE COURT: I mean, on numerous occasions you've
come in this court complaining: Why isn't this case
going to trial? Why isn't that case going to trial?
And now, all of a sudden, you're not prepared to go
to trial on this case. This has been set for trial--
this has been going on for over a year, this case.

MR. LUKENS: Your Honor, that's not quite the
posture in that--to say that we're not ready to go to
trial is --

THE COURT: Well, you're ready, but you haven't--now
you're coming up with these new witnesses and you put
them in this situation. Why didn't you have these
witnesses ready to go three months ago  so they could 
have been provided the discovery, you know, when this
court date was set, in February.

MR. LUKENS: That's a correct statement and I --

THE COURT: This is affecting many people's lives
and the court does not like to continue these
matters.

MR. LUKENS: I understand.
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THE COURT: I set aside two weeks for this trial,
and now it's going to have to be continued.

just think you could have been prepared with
this month's ago with these expert witnesses-and
given them discovery. Why wasn't that done before?

MR. LUKENS; I was -- the only answer I can -- I
can give you is that different lawyers try cases in
different ways. I was not the trial lawyer on this

45

JA009130



case during the time frame that the court is pointing
out.' (2 ROA 8-9)

The circumstances of the prosecutors' 4visit" to the home

of endorsed alibi witness Alice Starr was yet another instance
of prosecutorial misconduct. Witness intimidation by a
prosecutor can warrant a new trial if it results in a denial of

the defendant's right to a fair trial. State v. Owens, 753

17 .2d 976, 978 (Utah App. 1988); United states v. MacClaskey,

682 F.2d 468, 479 (4th Cir. 1982). A criminal defendant has a
a.

constitutional right to *present his own witnesses to establish
a defense. Washington v. Texas 399 U.S. 14, 19, 87 S.Ct.

920, 1923 (1967). This right is an element of due process of

guaranteed the defendant by the due process clause. Nxilb

m,_igxga, 409 U.S. 95, 93 S.Ct. 351 (1972).

Cases have held that various types of governmental

interference can deprive the defendant of due process. In Nab

Taves, supra, a defense witness was intimidated by remarks

ads by the trial judge. In Uniteri, states v. FenriMESOn, 564

.2d 197 (5th Cir. 1977) the Court found that a defense witness

had been intimidated by terms of a plea bargain. In United

States v. morrisoe, 535 F.2d 223 (3rd Cir. 1976) the defense

witness was intimidated by the remarks of an assistant United

23 States Attorney and in	 488 F.24 334

24 (6th Cir. 1973) the remarks were from a secret service agent

25 involved in the case. This type of due process violation has

26 been found to be harmful per se and thus not subject to

27 harmless error analysis. Trited States IL, Zammond, 598 F.2d

28 1008, 1013 (5th Cir. 1979).
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When the prosecutors come to the home of Starr, they were

accompained by detectives with drawn guns (3 ROA 525). After

prosecutor Lawry purportedly found drugs in the back room (3
ROA 530) Starr was placed under arrest and talked to by

prosecutor Lukens (3 ROA 531-532). Lukens then proceeded to

tell Starr that "he didn't care to presecute drug offenders, he

... could help [her] out with this one" and that her life was

"going to be in bad shape because of her association with

Michael Rippo." (3 ROA 533) After Starr stated that she
wouldn't change her testimony andhad not lied about anything,

Lukens told her that "if [she] went to dangle on his (RIPPO'S)

star, [she] was going down just like he was." (3 ROA 533)

Such conduct and intimidation cannot be condoned by this Court

and denied RIPPO of due process of law and fundamentally fair
trial.

In addition to being patently improper and witnese

intimidation, the cumulative conduct of the prosecutor's office

e—a fair	

trial. It was error for the trial court merely to allow other

individuals from the same office to continue on the case.

The American Bar Association Model Rules of Professional
Conduct, Rule 3.7 provides that

"(a) A lawyer shall not act as advocate at a trial
in which the lawyer is likely to be a necessary
witness except where:

(1) the issues they are subpoenaed on are
not contested;

(2) they do not relate to a fee dispute; or
(3) there is no substantial hardship to
the state,"
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In Berger V. State, 295 U.S. 78, 55 S.Ct. 629 (1934) the

United States Supreme Court enunciated the standard to be

appliced to prosecutors:

"The United States Attorney is the representative not
of an ordinary party to a controversy, but of a
sovereignity whose obligation to govern impartiality
is as compelling as its obligation to govern at all;
and whose interest, therefore in a criminal
prosecution is not that it shall win a case, but that
justice shall be done. As such, he is in a peculiar
and a very definite sense the servant of the law, the
twofold aim of which is that guilt shall not escape
or innocence suffer. He may prosecute with
earnestness and vigor-indeed, he sould do so. But
while he may strike hard blows, he is not at liberty,
to strike foul ones. It is as much his duty to
refrain from improper methods calculatedto produce a
wrongful conviction as it is to use every legitimate
means to bring about a just one".

Berger, 295 U.S. at 89.

An evidentiary hearing was conducted on the the Motion tor

5 Disqualify the District Attorney's office from the case. Alice

16 Starr was called as a witness by RIPPO and related that she

17 first met prosecutor's Lukens and Lowry on September 15, 1993

18 when they came to her house to discuss her testimony with her

19
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(3 ROA 521). They wanted to know what her relationship was

with RIPPO and how she met him (3 ROA 523). The conversation

lasted for about an hour to an hour and a half and the meeting

concluded with Lukens adamantly stating that he knew that RIPPO

had committed the murders (3 ROA 524). The next time that she

saw Lukens and Lowry was when they showed up at her door with

Detectives' Chandler and Thowsen and drew their guns in her

house (3 ROA 525-526). A search warrant was showed to her and

Lukens and Lowry wanted to know where certain papers were

located and then put latex gloves on (3 ROA 527). They spent a
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good half hour in the living room area going through paperwork

belonging to Starr (3 ROA 528). At one point Lowry came out of

the bathroom with a Crown Royal package with drugs in it and

she was real happy (3 ROA 530). Her rights were read to her by

Chandler and she was placed under arrest for possession of

controlled substance and Lukens came out of the bedroom to talk

to her (3 ROA 531). Lukens then indicated that he would be

able to help her with the drug charges if she would change her

testimony and she told him that she would not change her

testimony for anybody (3 RCA 532-533). She did not have

anything in her house relating to the murder case (3 RCA 534).

Cindy Fries is the sister of Alice Starr and was staying

with her when police came to the door on September 30, 1993 (3

RCA 552). After the detectives, Lukens and Lowry entered the

house, they put on Latex gloves and started to search, with

Lowry going into the bedroom (3 ROA 555-556). Fries asked for

permission to go into the bedroom and when she got there she

alone in-the-bedro-.,	 tele

bed, with a backpack open, with paperwork on top of the bed

going through the paperwork (3 RCA 558-559). Later Lowry

walked out of the bedroom walking real fast with a smile on her

face and with drugs in her hands (3 RCA 559-560). She listened

to the conversation that Lukens had with her sister, and
indicated that he didn't COM' right out and tell her to change
her testimony, but they went back and forth and then Lukens got

angry and stormed off (3 RCA 56-562),

Detective Chandler prepared the affidavit in support of

the search warrant and was looking for documentation in
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reference to RIPPO (1 ROA 569). The purpose of seeking the

documents was to obtain the handwriting of RIPPO to compare to

the charge card documents in the prosecution of the credit card

charges (3 RCA 575). According to Chandler, he knocked on the

door and advised Fries as to the reason he was there and asked

'f-anyone else was present in the house and that she indicated

only the children were present (3 RCA 578). When Chandler

ndicated that they were there concerning a friend of Starr's

by the name of Diane Hunt, Starr came rAnning out of the

kitchen stating that Hunt was not a friend of hers (3 RCA 579).

Chandler started the search in the desk area of the living room

and was looking through documentation and then handing it to

Lukens to look at and see if it had any evidentiary value (3

ROA 581-582). The items of documents seized by Chandler, he

Simply listed as miscellaneous paperwork (3 RCA 583).

Chandler, Lukens, and Lowry proceeded to the back bedroom and
found a purple felt bag located in a crib that contained a
substance—b--	_e	 "eA	587}. A

located in a cardboard box under the nightstand was a plastic

baggie of marijuana (3 RCA 588). The search warrant was

unusual because the Defendant was already in custody and had

been for some period of time (3 RCA 600). It was the first one
he had ever been on (3 RCA 601). Chandler had never been asked

to produce copies of everything that he had seized during the

earch warrant (3 ROA 610).

The ruling of the Court was to disqualify prosecutors

ukans and Lowry from the case with the Court stating;

loly feelings, after listening to the evidence,
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Mr. Lukens and Miss Lowry would be witnesses in this
case regarding the search conducted on Miss Starr's
apartment.

Therefore, IT iu going to grant the defense
motion, take mr, Lukens and Miss Lowry off this case;
and ask the State's - District Attorney's Office to
have that case transferred to other attorneys in the
office.

I don't think it's necessary to appoint the
Attorney General or a special prosecutor in this
case." (3 ROA 683).

Despite being disqualified from the case, Lukens continued

to take an active interest in the case Vo the point that he was

present for the opening statements and was following the order

of the witnesses (15 RCA 4$). He also had discussions with

witness Diana Hunt during the trial (15 RCA 45).

Another request for the disqualification of the District

Attorney's office was made in conjunction with the evidentiary

hearing on the failure to provide exculpatory evidence and

other other discovery which had been the subject of the

pretrial discovery order (discussed above) (1$ ROA 6).

Al:Lowing the same office to continue on the-case allowed to

intimidation and misconduct to continue. Putting a clean

window over a dirty picture does not save the due process

violation.

The overall conduct of the trial in this case was unfair

and a denial of due process under the Constitution of the State

of Nevada and of the United States, A new trial is mandated.
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IV.

IT WAS ERROR TO ALLOW THE STATE
TO AMEND THE INDICTMENT WITHOUT
RISOMTSSION TO THE GRAND JURY

On March 17, 1994 the State filed a Motion to Submit an

Amended Indictment to allege the theory of felcny murder and

the alternative theory of aiding and abetting (4 ROA 704-707).

The State relied upon the language of the case of Herren v, 

State, 99 Nev. 661, 699 P.2d 725 (1983) as the authority for

the proposed amendment to the indictmen*. The holding in

Barren, however, did not approve the use of amendments to cure

defective indictments. R:PPO opposed the proposed Amnendment

and the District Court denied the request (4 ROA 778-780). The

State then filed for a Writ of Mandamus with this Court which

was granted on April 27, 1995 and thereafter the Amended

ndictment was allowed to be filed (4 ROA 842-846 347-849).

The state, in all liklihood, will argue that the law of the

case is that the Amended Indictment was proper and not subject

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

§
	12
$	13

4

espect, rather than risk the possibility of a procedural bar
20

o further litigate the issue in another forum, RIPPO raises
21

he issue on direct appeal.
22

Due process of law is a principle that is fully applicable
23

to the the grand jury system in Nevada.	A Grand Jury can
24

receive none, but legal evidence, and the best evidence in
25

degree, to the exclusion of hearsay or secondary evidence."
26

Ztetea. Babayen,	106 Nev. 155, 170, 787 P.2d 805 (1990).	The
27

use of inadmissible evidence before a grand jury can destroy
28

the existence of an independent and properly informed grand
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jury Sheriff y. Franks, 103 Nev. 160, 734 P.2d 1241 (1987). A

prosecutor cannot cure a materially deficient indictment by

seeking leave of court to amend, because to do so would invade

the province of the grand jury Stare V. Chamk,zlain, 6 Nev. 257

1871). See al.so, Babayan, 106 Nev. at 170.

However, in Nevada an amendment will not be allowed if an

additional or different offense is charged or if substantial

rights of the defendant are prejudiced. See Wherton, s Criminal

Procedure, Vol. II, Section 269, p. 1484and Shannon v. State,
105 Nev. 782, 785, 783 11 .2d 942 (1989) (information properly
amended regarding factual sequence in sexual assault case),

citing NRS 173.095(1). Substantive changes or additions to the

theory of prosecution as presented to a grand jury cannot be

readily accomplished by means of an amendment to an indictment.

Fhartor_i_s_CriminAl_Procedure, supra, Vol. II, Section 269,
December 1993 pocket part, p. 11. Also see p5pople v. powell

549 NYS 2d. 276, 277 (A.D. 4th Dept. 1989) (amendment of

8

9

0

1

2

3

14

15

16

17

18

3

4

9 baseball bat rather than with lamp constituted significant
20 substantive change in theory of assault prosecution).
21 When a grand jury chooses specifically one of several
22

available statutory variants, the prosecutors and the court are
bound by the parameters of the indictment.	state V. Erlokson,

24
33 A.2d. 23, 25 (N.H. 1987)	(attempt to constructively amend

25
indictment for theft be deception by adding statutory variants

26
of the crime in jury instruction).	Indictments brought on the

27
oath of a grand jury cannot be freely amended.	Id.

28
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Matters other than the elements of an offense can be

material to an indictment. 	An allegation of the place where a

crime occurred is manifestly a material allegation "as much as

any fact constituting the body of the offense itself. n	EX
5 Parts Alexander, 	SO Nay .	354, 357, 393 P.2d 614 	(1964) 	(murder
6 indictment did not establish jurisdiction by failing to allege

venue of crime).	An allegation, which is not part of the
Cn 8	elements of an offense, but defines or specifies or

9	circumscribes the scope of the allegatioins 	can be a material
0 part of an indictment. 	Eriolsson, supra, 533 A.2d at 25.

11
An amendment relating to the mental state of an offense,

2
hich is an essential element, is material to an indictment.

.= 3 13 n People V. Arbo, 572 N.E.2d 417 (III. App.3 Dist. 1991), the
4

defendant was prosecuted on a theft charge. 	The lower court

w

5
committed reversible error by alowoing an amendment to the

16
indictment to add that the defendant's "acts [were] in

17
furtherance of a single intention and design to obtain

20.

V. State, 596 A.2d 481 (Del. 1991), involved a proposed

amendment to a kidnaping indictment. The State proposed to

strike the allegation that the defendant acted with the intent

to facilitate his flight following the commission of a felony.

Instead, the State proposed an allegation that the kidnaping

was undertaken with the intent to commit a felony (a second

sexual assault). The proposed amendment was properly denied.

It related to the mental state or intent of the defendant which

was a material element of the kidnaping charge. This

constituted a change in substance rather than form. Xornegay,

54
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596 A.2d at 487.

The proposed amended indictment is an egregious violation

of the procedural due process mandate of Barren V. State, 99

Nev. 661, 668, 669 P.2d 725 (1983) citing ILemill_v_i_atandal,

95 Nev. 914, 915, 604 P.2d 111 (1979) and Lane V. Torvinen, 97

Nev. 121, 123, 624 P.2d 1385 (1981). The proposed amended

indictment never expressly articulated that RIPPO aided or

abetted in the murders. This egregious pleading error was then

compounded by failing to specifically dslineate which acts of

aiding and abetting were attributable to RIPPO rather than

Hunt.

It is difficult to even characterize the State's proposed

aiding and abetting allegations against RIPPO as conclusory

when they are in fact imprecisely and incompletely articulated.

These allegations cannot be cured by reference to the grand

jury transcript for purposes of supplementation. Neither can

these allegations be saved by arguments that the language

00	.41111

Torvinen, supra, 97 Nev. at 123 and Sheriff v. Standal, supra,
20 

95 Nev, at 916 citing 2Jaapsen_y_,_Dietrjatisskuizt, 88 Nev. 654,
21 

503 P.2d 1225 (1972). Also see Wright V. State, 101 Nev. 269,
22 

271-272, 701 P.2d 743 (1985), citing Simpson v. District Court,
23 

eupra, regarding imprecise or incomplete allegations.
24	

The due process concepts governing criminal pleading
25

practices are very strictly applied to aiding and abetting
26

allegations. Aiding and abetting charges are manifestly
27 

material to an indictment when employed by the prosecution. An

eider and an abetter to a felony 013.11 be proceeded against and
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punished as a principal. Wright, subra, 101 Nev. at 271,

citing NRS 195.020.

Nevada has a very strong grand jury system-perhaps the

gest in the United States. (See discussions supra in

section I.) Nevada strives to have a very independent and

well-informed grand jury. Sheriff v. rrank, 103 Nev. 160, 165,

734 P.2d 1241 (1987). This goal is partly fulfilled by having

the prosecutors serve as legal advisors to grand juries. ,State

m,_Bahuan, 106 Nev. 155, 170, 787 P.2di805 (1990).

A materially deficient indictment cannot be cured by

amendment. Granting leave for the District Attorney's Office

to amend the indictment would constitute a clear invasion of

13 the province of the grand jury by the court. tate V. 
14 Chamterlain, 2upra, 6 Nev. at 261. Likewise, the Court's
15 approval of the proposed amendment would sanction the

prosecution's abdication of its role as the legal advisor to

the grand jury. State v. BabayRn, suPra., 106 Nev. at 170.
• •

because the proposed amendments concern aiding and abetting

allegations. The tendered inadequacies of the indictment

cannot be cured or supplemented by references to the grand jury

transcript or the aiding and abetting statutes. $tandal,

suprs, 95 Nev. at 916-917, citing aill222n, supra.

It is incumbent upon prosecutors who make presentations to

he grand jury to have conducted sufficient legal research to

enable them to properly inform the grand jury on the law and to

present evidence in support of same. The presentation to the

grand jury in this case did not include the theory of aiding

56
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and abetting and the grand jury was not instructed concerning

the elements necessary for an indictment. It was error to

allow RIPPO to proceed to a jury trial on an indictment that

the elements of which had never been considered by the grand
jury.
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V.

EVIDENCE OF THREATS TO WITNESSESt. anmITIFIJYTIRTNn_mpTAL

During the testimony of jailhouse snitch David Levine the

prosecution elicited testimony that directly implied that RIPPO

had threatened him. Generally references to threats or danger

to prosection witnesses are improper unless admissible

testimony is offered connecting the defendant with the threats

or danger. United Stares v. Ric, 611 F.2d 1335 (10th Cir.

1979). In Rios supra, the Court found i that evidence showing

that a witness was in protective custody and an innuendo that

the defendant was a threat was prejudicial error. In United

=tee v. Peek, 498 F.2d 1337, 1339 (1974) the Court found that

implication during argument that the defendant was a threat t

the prosecutor and the police was reversible error, even though

the comment was stricken from the record and jury admonished.

"While it may be acceptable for the prosection to
make remarks in rebuttal which imply coercion under
circumstances in which the jury has before it
evidence-of intimidation—or coercion, a proposition
about which we make no decision at this time, such
intimations are not proper when there is not a
scintilla of evidence to substantiate the
implication.10

United States v. Hayward, 420 F.2d 142, 147 (D.C. Cir. 1969.)

419 F.2d 582 (5th Cir. 1969).

This Court has followed the precedent set by the federal courts

on this issue and found the admission of witness intimidation

or threats to be reversible error unless the prosecutor also

produces substantial credible evidence that the defendant was

the source of the intimidation. Lay v. State, 110 Nev. 1189,

886 P.2d 448 (1994).

See else,
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Jailhouse snitch Levine was asked several improper

uestions by the prosecutor regarding threats from PIPPO. The

equence of questions and answers were as follows:

4Q Why were you in a psychiatric facility?

A They put me in there cause -- for protection.

Q Protection from what?

A Probably because of some threats were made on me.

Q For what reason?

A For this trial.

Q Because you were going to come in and testify?

A Yes

14

N.

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

15

Q Because you were going to come in and testify as
you are today or as a character witness or an alibi
witness?

A I was going to come in and testify as I was going
to testify today.

Q And threats were made upon your life while you
were in jail?

A Yes.

. WOLF
witness' personal knowled

€ 

We don't know how he
knows.

BY MR. SEATON: Anybody ever threaten you?

THE COURT: Sustained.

THE WITNESS: Yes

BY MR SEATON: Directly?

A A couple times.

Q To your face?

A Well from a distance.

Q You heard it though?

A Yeah.
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Q Okay.

it So did some of the staff members.

Q And the staff members heard it as well?

A Yes.

Q And then you went into the psychiatric facility?

A Yes. And when I was in there, they stopped me
from going to the gym because some of the threats
were made; and when the staff overheard it, they --

MR. WOLFSON: I'm going to object. This is hearsay.

THE COURT: Sustained.	 •
MR. SEATON: That's all right, Judge. ft (19 ROA 173-
176).

Clearly the intent of the prosecution was to imply to the

jury that RIPPO was threatening the life of Levine, or that he

was a threat to him. No evidence existed to show that RIPPO

had in anyway threatened or intimidated the witness. The. State

by the use of such evidence caused the jury to believe that

RIPPO was dangerous and that the statements made by Levine were

8 true. The Spate may argue that the trheats had noting to do

with RIPPO and therefore were admissible. In the absence of

20 any evidence that tied the threats to this case they should

21 have been excluded on relevance grounds. In either event the

22 testimony was inadmissible. The use of the improper testimony

23 was therefore prejudicial to R/PPO and his conviction should be

24 reversed.

25

26

27

28
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VI.
2 PRIOR BAD ACT TESTIMONY WAS IMPROPERLY
3 ADMITTED DURING THE COURSE OF THE TRW

4

5

There were several areas of inadmissible bad acts that

were elicited during the course of the trial.	There was not
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contemporaneous objection to some of the testimony and

therefore the state will likely urge that RIPPO has waived the

right to raise the specific issues on appeal. The failure to

bject to portions of the testimony from witness Tom Sims was
•

quite remarkable given the content of the testimony. No

explanation appears in the record for the failure, although the

issue concerning the unknown and suprising aspects of the

testimony could explain the lack of attention by trial counsel.

On questioning by the state, Sims told the jury:

bid he tell you whether they were attractive
women?

A He said they were both fine.

Q Both fine?

ean.

Q Did he explain anything further in the context of
that statement?

A He said that he could have -- he said both of them
were fine. I could have fucked both of them, but I
didn't.

And I don't know if -- how much further you want
me to go with that.

Q Well, did he say something else?

A He said I'm cured. That means I'm cured.' (14 ROA
62-63).

Two things stand out about the above testimony from Sims.

st the prosecutor obviously knew what the testimony was

61

JA009146



going to be and intentionally went after it despite the

witness asking whow much further you want me to go with that.

Second, the import of the testimony was that RIM had

committed at least one previous sexual assault in order to know

that he was cured from doing it again. The jury would have had

to have been deaf and dumb not to have known from that point

forward that RIPPO had a prior sexual assault.

The next instance of improper testimony occurred during
9 the testimony of David Levine when the irosecution elicited the

19 following testimony:
11 "Q	What did he tell you?

8
12 A	He had me give her messages and have her handle

CU 5 13 things for him.

14 Q	What sort of things?

- .
15

16

A	Hook up drug deals and stuff and handle things,
like for the -- for the court; get in touch with the
attorney, request her attorney, stuff like that.

2

4

5

7

Q With her attorney?

A With his attorney.

Q You would pass messages to Alice Starr regarding
Mr. Rippo's attorney?

A Yes.

Q Did he ever indicate to you who his attorney was?

A Yes, Steve Wolfson.

Q Steve Wolfson?

A Yeah, or something like that, Wolfson.

Q And would you pass those messages along?

A Yes.

Q You mentioned something about messages going to
her regarding drugs?

1
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A Yes.

Q Can you tell us a little more about that?

A Well, we used --

MR. WOLFSON: Your Honor, excuse me. I'm going to
voice an objection and ask that we be heard at the
bench." (19 RCA 150-151).

With respect to the testimony from Levine, an objection

was made, although it appears that defense counsel was more

concerned about his name being used than the fact that the

witness was describing other criminal awts by RIPPO. In either

event the objection was made and the State did not proceed any

further with the improper testimony. No doubt can exist as to

the meaning of the testimony, according to Levine, RIPPO was

conducting drug transactions from inside of the jail.

The final area of bad act testimony was the subject of

objection and the court held a Fetrocelli hearing and

determined that the evidence should be admitted. Specifically,
the State proposed to introduce evidence that RIPPO had

compressor, sander, spray gun, couplings and extended warranty

from Sears (18 RoA 160). RIPPO was not charged with the use of

the credit card at Sears, and argued that the fact he may have

used the card at Sears was not relevant to any of the charges

filed against him, and that if the State intended to offer the

testimony a pretrial Motion in Limine'should have been filed

(18 RCA 188). The State submitted that the transaction was

relevant to show motive and identity (18 RCA 170-171). The

Court allowed the testimony without stating the specific

grounds for the ruling (18 RCA 175).

*	 ca	 .1!
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NRS 48.045(2) provides that

'Evidence of other crimes, wrongs or acts is not
admissible to prove the character of a person in
order to show that he acted in conformity therewith.
It may, however, be admissible for other purposes,
such as proof of motive, opportunity, intent,
preparation, plan, knowledge, identity or absence of
mistake or accident."

It is hornbook law that evidence of other criminal conduct

is not admissible to show that a defendant is a bad person or

has a propensity for committing crimes. State_YA—HinAl, 633

P.2d 1384 (Ariz. 1981); Martin . . People,, 738 P.2d 789 (Colo.

1987); State y. Cast.re, 756 P.2d 1033 (Haw. 1988); Moore v. 

state, 96 Nev. 220, 602 P.2d 105 (1980). Although it may be

admissible under the exceptions cited in NRS 48.045(2), the

determination whether to admit or exclude evidence of separate

and independent criminal acts rests within the sound discretion

f the trial court, and it is the duty of that court to strike
a balance between the probative value of the evidence and its

prejudicial dangers.	 , 90 Nev. 50, 518 P.2d

The prosecution may not introduce evidence of other

criminal acts of the accused unless the evidence is

substantially relevant for some other purpose than to show a

probability that the accused committed the charged crime

because of a trait of character.	 82 Nev. 127,

412 P.2d 970 (1966). Even where relevancy under an exception

to the general rule may be found, evidence of other criminal

c s may not be admitted if its probative value is outweighed

its prejudicial effect. Williams v. State, 95 Nev. 830, 503

.2d 694 (1979).
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The test for determining whether a reference to criminal

history is error is whether "a juror could reasonably infer

from the facts presented that the accused had engaged in prior

criminal activity." Morning v. Warden, 99 Nev. 82, 86, 659

P.2d 847, 850 (1983) citing Commonwee;th v Allen, 292 A.2d

373, 375 (Pa. 1972). In a majority of jurisdiction improper

reference to criminal history is a violation of due process

since it affects the presumption of innocence; the reviewing

court must therefore determine whether Vie error was harmless

beyond a reasonable doubt. 2erter_m.„_ateta, 94 Nev. 142, 576

P.2d 275 (1978); Chapman v. california, 386 U.S. 18, 24, 87

S.Ct. 824, 828, 17 L.Ed.2d 705 (1967).

Prior to trial, RIPPO filed a Motion in Limine to Exclude

Testimony of Defendant's Prior Bad Acts (2 ROA 238-242). The

State in it's Response only argued concerning the admissibility

of the prior sexual assault conviction and did not seek

ermission to elicit testimony concerning drugs deal arranged

aring 	

the Motion the State conceded that the testimony was not

admissible as follows:

IC/. SEATON: Judge, we have already spoken to
the defense counsel, maybe even the Court in
chambers, and indicated that we were not going to put
in the prior bad act to which the defense is
referring. We don't mind the granting of the motion.

THE COURT: All right. We'll grant the motion"
(4 ROA 758).

It is reasonable to anticipate that the State will argue

that the failure to object to all the instances of testimony

concerning prior bad acts precludes appellate review of the
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"As a general rule, the failure to object, assign
misconduct, or request an instruction, will preclude
appellate consideration [citation omittedl. However,
where the errors are patently prejddicia]. and
inevitably inflame or excite the passion of the
jurors against the accused, the general rule does not
apply. The errors here involved are of that kind.
An accused, whether guilty or innocent, is entitled
to a fair trial, and it is the duty of the court and
prosecutor to see that he gets it."

issue, citing,	 103 Nev. 106, 734 P. 2d 700

1987). HIPPO respectfully urges this Court to find that the

or which occurred in this case was of such magnitude and

dimension that the trial court should have sua sponte prevented

the persistent solicitation of such testimony by the

prosecution. Garner v. State 78 Nev. 366, 374 P. 2d 525

1562). In Garner this court noted that:

9
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Taking all of the other bad act testimony in total leads

to the inescapable conclusion that RIPPO was prejudiced by the

introduction of the testimony. It it respectfully urged that

his conviction be reversed on said grounds.
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VII.

MPROPER CLOSING PIRG	T DOING E

Improper closing argument is nothing new to this court and

nothing new to the prosecutors of Clark County. See oward 

Slate, 106 Nev. 713, 800 P.2d 175 (1990) and the cases

collected therein. During the closing argument at the guilt

portion of the proceedings below, improper argument again

occurred during a trial wherein fairness and due process were

ticeable absent.

'I'm talking about Mr. Rippo having the
opportunity to kill them -- to commit the murder.
The opportunity was there, plain and simple. And
interestingly, there had been no testimony that he
was some place else.

The only person who tells us where he was on
February the 18th, 1992, is Diana Hunt.

MR, WOLFSON: Judge, excuse me. I'm going to
interpose an objection and ask to be heard at the
bench.

THE COURT; You may.' (21 RCA 59).

You haven't heard any witness come into this
courtroom, take the oath and sit down there and say
Michael Beaudoin told me that he did it. You haven't
heard any witness come in here and say Tom Sims told
me that he did it; or any of the other names that
you've heard. There has been no indication in this
case at all except what we have shown here.
(Indicating)

And, ladies and gentlemen, this more clearly
than anything tells us who committed these killings.
That man right there, (indicating), that man named
Michael Rippo, is the men who did the unthinkable,
the most violent kinds of acts that we can imagine.
He did those things and he needs to be told by you
that he is guilty of them" (21 RCA 95).

At the ensuing break the defense made a motion for a
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4

mistrial based on the shifting of the burden of proof and the

motion was denied by the Court (21 RCA 96-97; 98). Besides

shifting the burden of proof to the defense the comments of the

prosecutor implicitely commented on the fact that RIPPO did not

take the stand and tell the jury who committed the murder.

It is generally outside the bounds of proper argument to

comment on a defendant's failure to call a witness. Colley v. 

State, 98 Nev. 14, 16, 639 P.2d 530, 532 (1982). This can be

viewed as impermissibly shifting the bu;den of proof to the

defense. Darrel' v. State, 105 Nev. 767, 778, 783 P.2d 444, 4561

(1989). Such shifting is improper because "(ijt suggests to

the jury tht it was the defendant's burden to produce proof by

explaining the absence of witnesses or evidence. This

implication is clearly inaccurate. Barron, 105 at 778. See

also, 27222Y,_Etata, 106 Nev. 924, 803 P.2d 1104 (1990); ID re

Wiashist, 397 U.S. 358 (1970).

In MUXXAX-2.2._Btats, 105 Nev. 579, 781 P.2d 288 (1989),

made by the prosecutor herein. In condemning the argument the

Court noted that the purpose of the comment was to diminish the

defendant's credibility as a witness, and that the comment was

intended to suggest that the only reason the defendant's

testimony seemed credible at all was because he could sit and

listen to the testimony of other witnesses and then fabricate a

story consistent with other witnesses before he was required to

testify. Murray, 105 Nev. at 584. The exact same comments can

be made about the prosecutor's statements in the case at bar.

The prosecution is forbidden at trial to comment upon a
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2

3

4

5

7

8

10

11

/2

13

/4

15

16

17

18

defendant's election to remain silent following his arrest and

after being advised of his rights as required by MixamAA 

Nr isone, 384 U.S. 436 (1966); Neal v. State, 106 Nev. 23, 787

P.2d 764 (1980). See, Doyle v. Ohio, 426 U.S. 610 (1976).

This court has held that an attack on a defendant's silence

delivered as merely an innocuous, passing comment during

closing argument is not necessarily error. Fernandez v. State,

81 Nev. 276, 402 P.2d 38 (1965). However the Court in

rernandez carefully drew a distinction between a comment

whether direct or indirect) on the defendant's failure to

testify and a reference to evidence or testimony that stands

uncontradicted, stating

"Paraphrasing Griffin [v. California, 85 S.Ct. 1229),
what the jury may infer given no help from the Court
(or prosecution) is one thing. what they may infer
when the court (or prosecution) solemnizes the
silence of the accused into evidence against him is
quite another. Permitting such comment imposes 4
penalty for exercising a constitutional privilege.
The dividing line must be approached with caution and
conscience."

fersaxle;W:s6 81 Nev, a+ 27 

In McGuire v. State, 100 Nev. 153, 677 P.2d 1060 (1984)

Court reversed a conviction as a result of the prosecutor

commenting to the jury that the defendant had "never testified

before" in the case, and then questioned the truth of the

defendant's trial testimony by inquiring "why he would remain

silent" until the time of trial if his alibi was true.

McGuire, 100 Nev. at 157.

The State also improperly referred to conversations with

that allegedly occurred outside of the courtroom and outside of

the presence of the jury:
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°.. .And she said that he hit her repeatedly in the
face and then pulled out the stun gun, the gun he
apparently still had; and she showed the marks that
she has on her back from where he used the gun on
her

MR. DUNLEAVY: I'm going to object. She never
5
	showed any marks on her back.

THE COURT: I don't remember that either. The
jury will remember what it is.6

7

. 9

10

11

3

4

5
6

7

MR. HARMON: You are the triers of fact. When
sit down, the roll of the prosecutors, Mr. Seaton,
Mr. Harmon, is over. so I urge you to rely upon your
own recollections.

There are many things that happen, interviews
outside of the courtroom, and so, occasionally, if
there is some confusion about precisely what happened
in the courtroom, I do beg your indulgence; but if
she didn't do that in open court, then I misspoke in
making that argument.

MR. DUNLEAVY: I'm going to object to this whole
line. It's like the State saying I'm telling You
things that happened outside of the court. That's
improper.

MR. HARMON: No, I'm not telling the jury that
anything happened outside of court.

THE COURT: Just continue on, Mr. Harmon. (21

9	Impermissible prosecutorial vouching exists when the

20 prosecutor places the prestige of the government behind its

21 witnesses or where the prosecutor suggests that information no-

presented to the jury supports the witness' testimony. ,tatigi

783 p .zd 1184, 1193 (Ariz. 1989); 3tete,..X.,_/111cant

24 768 P.2d 150, 155 (1989). Reference to information or

25 conversations which occurred outside of the courtroom is

26 improper. In 5ohn.der V. State, 102 Nev. 64, 714 P.2d 1008

27 (1986), the prosecutor made reference in his closing to

28 evidence that was not presented at trial and this Court in
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eversing the conviction, stated:

"Comments by a prosecutor such as those made in this
case have the effect of diverting the jury's
attention from it's proper purpose. They serve to
give the jury a verbal wink and nod indicating that
the state has some other or secret evidence against
the defendant which for some reason it was not
aliosed to present. A defendant has a right to a
verdict based on the evidence admitted at trial.
Remarks by a prosecutor which imply that the state is
possessed with further incriminating evidence impair
that right.	 69 Nev. 146, 243 P.2d
264 264 (1952).

radar, 102 Nev. at 65.

Thus in this case there were two area of improper argument

that were the subject to contemporaneos objection RIPPO. The

error implicates the Fifth Amendment rights of RIPPO who did

not take the stand, yet was faced with a prosecution argument

that no witness took the stand to state that Diana Hunt

committed the murders or that witness aims was lying about the

statements he attributed to RIPPO. Clearly the only person

that was present when Sims allegedly heard the statements was

RIPPO. Who else was the prosecutor referring if it wasn't

RIPPO. Given the nature and gravity of	 improper arguments

it is respectfully requested that the convictions be reversed.

25

26

27

28
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THE CUMULATIVE ERROR
DURING THE PROCEEDINGS DENIED

Cumulative error has been long recognized as a viable

basis for reversal of convictions. In Sipsas V. State, 102

Nev. 119, 716 P.2d 231 (1986) the Court was confronted with a

situation where neither one of two specified instances of error

was sufficient to justify reversal yet the Court reversed the

c onviction stating:

"The accumulation of error is more serious than
either isolated breach, and resulted in the denial of
a fair trial. Moreover, we note that the evidence
against Sipsas was less than overwhelming on the
question of whether Sipsas harbored the requisite
intent to be convicted of first degree murder .
In reviewing the record it is apparent that because
of cumulative error, Sipsas was denied his
constitutional right to a fair trial,"

Other States are in accord with the reasoning of the

	 Court. The combined effect of the errors at trial can

ct to prevent the defendant from receiving a fair trial to

hich all defendants are entitled. 22221A—Ye—BAYrigldat 575

.2d 1286 (Colo. 1978); State v. Raker, 580 P.2d 1345 (HA

1978). Although each error standing alone may be harmless, the

cumulative weight of the errors may create such an atmosphere

of bias and prejudice so as to deprive the defendant of a fair

trial. atatgi_y„_amgrial, 574 P.2d 895 (HA 1978); Scott V. 

=ate, 257 So.2d 369 (Ala 1972).

The federal system of justice also recognizes . the concept

of cumulative error and the potential for denial of a fair

trial as a result thereof. It is possible that error looked at

separately may not rise to the level of reversible error, but
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heir cumulative effect may nevertheless be so prejudicial to

at appellant that reversal is warranted. 11,s. v. Wallace, 848

F.2d 1464, 1465 (9th Cir. 1988). Normally a cumulative error

analysis considers "all errors and instances of prosecutorial
misconduct which were preserved for appeal with a proper

objection as were plain error." unIte,d_atatas_y,_Berry, 627

F 2d 193, 200 (9th Cir. 1980). The "decision to invoke the

lain error doctrine is influenced by the degree of prejudice

carried. The cumulative impact of sevefal errors might

therefore be sufficient to persuade us to grant review when the
impact of each would not." Berry, 627 F.2d at 201, N.7. agg
also, Kyles v. Whitley, 5 F.3rd 806, 843 (5th Cir. 1993)(King

dissenting) cert. granted 62 U.S.L.W. 3733),

For the sake of brevity (which is the only thing this case

is missing) RIPPO will not reiterate each of the errors that

existed in this case. It is respectfully urged that the errors
that occurred, like the proverbial straws upon the back of the

poor, overladen camel, have accumulated to break the Mac o

due process and principles of fundamental fairness, not to

mention a myriad of Constitutional rights. A cumulative error

argument is asking the Court to see the forest and not the

trees. Even though each mighty sequoia on its own can stand

well against the mighty error prone wind of the prosecution,

the awesome cumulative strength of all, commands that that

winds of error be stopped and that MICHAEL HIPPO follow the

forest path to a new trial.
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IX.

OVERLAPPING AND MULTIPLE USE OF THE SAME
FACTS AS SEPARATE AGGRAVATING CIRCUMSTANCES

RESULTED IN THE ARBITRARY AND CAPRICIOUS
4

5
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7

8

9

10

11

12ad 8
si	13

14
2. g 1571 .1 C> i-

u.A 16

7

8

The original notice of intent to seek the death penalty

filed by the State on June 30, 1982 alleged the presence of

four aggravating circumstances, i.e., under sentence of

imprisonment, previously convicted of a felony involving

violence, committed during the commission a robbery, and

torture or mutilation of the victim (1 ROA 7-8). The State

filed an Amended Notice of Intent to Seek the death penalty on

march 23, 1994 wherein the State added allegations of committed

during the commission of a burglary, and during the commission

of a kidnapping (4 RCA 721-724), The Amended Notice was filed

after the original two prosecutors were removed from the case.

The jury at the conclusion of the penalty hearing found the

presence of all six (6) aggravating circumstances (5 RCA 1041-

1042

9 NRS 200.033(4) provides that first degree murder can be

20 aggravated if the murder "was committed while the person was

21 engaged, alone or with others, in the commission of or an

attempt to commit or flight after committing or attempting to

23 commiot, any robbery, sexual assault, arson in the first

24 degree, burglary, invasion of the home or kidnapping in the

25 first degree..."	The State utilized burglary, robbery and

26 kidnapping as separate aggravating circumstances despite the

27 fact that all three arose from the same set of operative acts.

8 RIPPIO was not charged either burglary or kidnapping.	The
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state should not be allowed to utilize the same acts as

separate aggravating circumstances, i.e., atack aggravating

circumstances. Such stacking results in the arbitrary and

capricious imposition of the death penalty.

Courts of other jurisdictions have found the use of such

overlapping aggravating circumstances to be improper. In

Randolph v. State, 463 s0,2d 186 (Fla. 1984) the court found
that the aggravating circumstances of murder while engaged in

the crime of robbery and murder for pec/niary gain to be

overlapping and constituted only a single aggravating

circumstance. 3ee also przaveageltate, 337 So.2d 783 (Fla.

1976) cert. denied 431 U.S. 969, 97 S.Ct. 2929, 53 L.Ed.2d 1065
9177).

The California Supreme court in ZeOR1m_m..._Harria, 679 P.2d

43 (Cal. 1984) found that evidence showed that the defendant

veiled to Long Beach for the purpose of robbing the victim

nd committed a burglary and two murders to facilitate the

ery. n •e ermining that the use of both robbery and

burglary as special circumstances at the penalty hearing was

21
'The use in the penalty phase of both of these

22	special circumstances allegation thus artificially
inflates the particular circumstances of the crime

23	and strays from the high court's mandate that the
state 'tailor and apply its law in a manner that

24	avoids the arbitrary and capricious infliction of the
death penalty' (  odfrey v, Qaprgia, (1980) 446 U.S.

25	420 at P.28, 100 S.Ct 1759 at p. 1764, 64 L.Bd.2d
398. The United States Supreme Court requires that

26	the capital - sentencing procedure must be one that
'guides and focuses the jury's objective

27	consideration of the particularized circumstances of
the individual offense and the individual offender

28	before it can impose a sentence of death.' (Jurek v. 
Meue (1976) 428 U.S. 262 at pp. 273-74, 96 S.Ct.

75

20 improper the court stated:
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2950 at pp 2956-2957), 49 L.Ed.2d 929). That
requirement is not met in a system where the jury
considers the same act or an indivisible course of
conduct to be more than one special circumstance."

Harris, 679 P.2d at 449.

Other States that prohibit a "stacking" or "overlapping" of

aggravating circumstances include Alabama (Cook v. State, 369

So.2d 1251 1256 (Ala. 1978) disallowing use of robbery and

pecuniary gain) and North Carolina (State v. Goodman, 257

S.E.2d 569, 587 (N.C, 1979) disallowing using both avoiding

10 lawful arrest and disrupting of lawful government function as

1 aggravating circumstances).

12 It can be anticipated that the State will argue that any

13 error that occurred as a result of the inappropriate stacking

14 of the aggravating circumstances was harmless error in this

15 case because of the existence of other valid aggravating

16 circumstances. 	The Nevada statutory scheme has two components

17 that would seem to foreclose the existence of harmless error at

18 a penalty hearing. 	First the jury is required to proceed

19 through a weighing process of aggravation versus mitigation and

20 second, the jury has the discretion, even in the absence of

21 mitigation to return with a life sentence irregardless of the

22 number of aggravating circumstances. 	Who can say whether the

23 numerical stacking of aggravating circumstances was the

24 proverbial straw that broke the camel's back and tipped the

25 scales of justice tempered by compassion in favor of the death

26 penalty?

27 "When there is a 'reasonable possibility that the
erroneous submission of an aggravating circumstance

28 tipped the scales in,favor of the jury finding that
the aggravating circumstances were 'sufficiently

5
1
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–
substantial' to justify the imposition of the death
penalty,' the test for prejudicial error has been
met. (citation omitted) Because the jury arrived at
a sentence of death based upon weighing .	and it
is impossible now to determine the amount of weight
ascribed to each factor, we cannot hold the error of
submitting both redundant aggravating circumstances
to be harmless.”

tate v. Puisenberrx, 354 S.E.2d 446 (N.C. 19a7),

Justice Gunderson in his concurring opinion in Moses v,

State, 91 Nev. 809, 815, 544 P.2d 424 (1975) stated with

respect to harmless error that:

...judicial resort to the harmless error rule, as in
this case, erodes confidence in the court system,
since calling clear misconduct [or error] 'harmless'
will always be viewed by some as 'sweeping it under
the rug.' (We can at best, make a debatable judgment
call.) II

The stacking of aggravating circumstances based on the.—

same conduct results in the arbitrary and capricious imposition

of the death penalty, and allows the State to seek the death

penalty based on arbitrary legal technicalities and artful
pleading. This violates the commands of the United States

Supreme Court in	 1-53	{1976) and

violates the Eighth Amendment to the United States Constitution

and the prohibition in the Nevada Constitution against cruel

and unusual punishment and that which guarantees due process of

law. The death penalty must therefore be vacated in the

instant case and the matter remanded back to the District Court

for a new hearing wherein the aggravating circumstances are not

stacked.
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x.

IMPROPER ARGUMENT DURING THE OPENING STATEMENT
4T--Tat-EUTALLTY.--LIEZZLIN-ELS-1

During the Opening Statement of the prosecutor at the

Penalty hearing, improper argument was made. Specifically

prosecutor Seaton stated:

... She was dressed in sweat clothes, a sweat
shirt and sweat pants. And as she awoke to the
horrendous assault of someone standing over her, hand
over mouth and butcher knife in his hand demanding
money.

It was this man. (Indicatih) It was Michael Rippo
who was starting this assault of horror on Laura --

M. DUNLEAVY: Your Honor, I'm going to object to
the words like horrendous and horror. That is not
even supposed to be argument. This is supposed to be
statements of what the witnesses will testify to.
Let them phrase it.

MR. SEATON: And I'm telling the jury what the
witnesses are going to testify to, Judge.

THE COURT: Okay. You may continue." (22 ROA 20
21).

As Seaton concluded what was supposed to be the Opening

a ament, he again returned to argument:__
----- —

'All of this evidence that you are going to see is

	

0	going to let you know beyond any doubt that you have
been in the presence of evil in this courtroom, and

	

21	when that evidence is finished being presented, and
We lawyers get through saying what we've got to say,

	

22	you are going to be able to go back in the jury
deliberation room and do something about that evil."

	

23	(20 ROA 26).

The duty of a prosecutor was expressed by the United

States Supreme Court in Berger v. State, 295 U.S. 78, 88, 55

S.Ct. 629, 633, 79 L.Ed, 1314 and adopted by this Court in

garner V. State, 78 Nev. 366, 370, 374 P.2d 525 (1962):

The United States Attorney is the representative not
of an ordinary party to a controversy, but of a
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sovereignty whose obligation to govern impartially is
as compelling as its obligation to govern at all; and
whose interest, therefore, in a criminal prosecution
is not that it shall win a case, but that justice be
done. As such, he is in a peculiar and very definite
sense the servant of the law, the twofold aim of
which is that guilt shall not escape or innocence
suffer. He may prosecute with earnestness and vigor-
-indeed, he should do so. But, while he may strike
hard blows, he is not at liberty to strike foul ones.
It is as much his duty to refrain from improper
methods calculated to produce a wrongful conviction
as it is to use every legitimate means to bring about
a just one."

The duty of the prosecutor at during the opening statement

was also described by the Court in Garner, Supra.

"After the jury has been selected and sworn, every
criminal trial has three general phases--the opening
statement, the proof and the summation. In the case
at bar, the prosecutor struck - foul blows during
each phase. The purpose of the opening statement is
to acquaint the jury and the court with the nature of.--
the case. It is proper for the prosecutor to outline
his theory of the case and to propose those facts he
intends to prove.	 '	49 Nev. 75, 236
P. 1100. However, it is his duty to state such facts
fairly, and to refrain from stating facts which he
will not be permitted to prove.'

hearing contained more argument than statement. The purpose of

the Opening Statement is to inform the jury of the evidence the

State intends to introduce during the hearing, not inflame the

jury with argument and rhetoric. The prejudical impact of the

improper argument contaminated all of the proceedings that

followed and the only remedy is to vacate the sentence imposed

and remand the case for a new penalty hearing.
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XI.

IMPROPER CLOSING ARGUMENT DURING THE
PENALTY REAUNG MANDATES A NEW HEARING

During the State's closing argument at the penalty hearing

proper argument was made concerning the jury's need to send d

essage to society by imposing the death penalty against RIPPO.

Timely objection was interposed by RIPPO. and overruled by the
Court.

since collier v. state, 101 Nev. 473, 705 P.2d 1126 (1985)
s Court has denounced improper argument as prosecutorial

sconduct. One of the instances Of misconduct addressed. in

Coiner, was an appeal to the jury to impose the death penalty

based on community standards or moral. Collier, 101 Nev. at

479. The arguments made by the prosecution in this case

violated the edict of this Court in the Collier case. The

specific arguments are as follow:

14hen you do that, you have stepped across the
line. And as painful as it might be, there can be
only one appropriate punishment. It's been said that
the purpose of a •en	 rs
agree falls into two categories.

20	 And the first one involves punishment in and of
itself. It is appropriate that society express its

21	moral outrage at the murder of innocent human beings;

22	 And it furthermore is important that stiff,
severe penalties be imposed because that deters,

23	because what you do today will deter Mr. Rippo, and
because what you do today sends out a message to

24	otter persons that indicates this society, this
country will not --

25
MR. OUNLEAVY: Your Honor, I'm going to object.

26	I think it's improper to tell the jury to send a
message to society.

27
MR. HARMON: It is not improper, Your Honor.

28	We're --
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THE COURT: Overruled.
2
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MR. HARMON: This community must know that we
will not tolerate double murders perpetrated upon
young women, one of whom was in her home, in her
residenCe." (24 ROA 97-98).

"There are reasons for the death penalty,
logical, explainable reasons, that need to be
contemplated, as you think about this. Mr. Harmon
alluded to some of them: ,..

That's to send a message to society. There are
people out there walking in our society who are
murderers or murderers to be, and they need to know
that there are representative panels of individuals
who are willing to say: Stop, enough.

What was the old movie? I'm as mad as hell and
I won't take it anymore?

That is a message that is sent out there that
you don't do this sort of thing without facing the
most fearful kind of punishments." (24 ROA 155-156)

The arguments of both prosecutors were replete with

erences to sending a message to society and with requests to
mpose the death penalty to convey the message. Not only has

Nevada condemned such argument (collier, supra), Courts of

other states have specifically disapproved of arguments of

counsel that a message should be sent to the community in order

to protect society from crime. •	524 1.2d 188
23 (NJ 1987); State v,.2.21g, 548 A.2d 1058, 1092 (NJ 1988).

24	The arguments of the prosecutor's herein were penalty

25 hearing arguments where a heightened standard of review is
26 mandated.

27	"At the sentencing phase, it is most important
that the jury not be influenced by passion,

28	prejudice, or any other arbitratry factor. Hance V. 
zant, 696 F.2d 940, 951 (11th Cir. 1983) With a

el
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man's life at stake, a prosecutor should not play on
the passion of the jury'. /don

Zlanagan v. State, 104 Nev. 105, 107, 754 P.26 836 (1988).
The Court in Flanagan, supra, went on to express strong

disapproval of statements concerning society's view of the
penalty citing to Collier v. state, 101 Nev. 473, 705 P.26 1126

1985). In language extremely relevant to the actions and
arguments of the prosecutor's in the case at bar, the Flanagan

court remarked that:
*

10	...a prosecutor could not blatantly attempt to
inflame the jurors by urging that it they wished to

11	be deemed 'moral' and s caring' then they must
approach their duties in anger and give the community

12	what it needs. We observe that the prosecutor's
remark in the instant case serves no other purpose

13	than to raise the spector of public ridicule and
arouse prejudice against Flanagan.

14
We are compelled to concluode that the cumulative

15	effect of the prosecutor's extensive misconduct was
of such a magnitude as to render Flanagan's

16	sentencing hearing fundamentally unfair. Given the
uncontroverted evidence of guilt, there is simply no

17	justification for such outrageous behavior."

18 F1ana, 104 Nev. at 112.

9	It can be reasonably anticipated that the State will

20 assert that any error which occurred during closing argumetn

21 was harmless error becase the evidence of guilt was

22 overwhelming. If, indeed, the evidence of guilty was

23 overwhelming in this case, it makes the improper argument even

24 more eggregious. Is the State's position to be that in cases

25 where the evidence in strong prosecutors can intentionally

26 commit misconduct whereas in cases where the question is close
27 such conduct is not to be condoned? Under such circumstances

28 RIPPO urges this Court to "send a message" to prosuecutors tnat
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misconduct will not be tolerated. Reversal is the appropriate
postman for such a message.

The entire tenor of the closing arguments by the

rosecutors during the penalty hearing was improper. The jury

was influenced by factors that are not designed to narrow the

class of individuals eligible to receive the death penalty, but

ther played upon the passions and prejudices of the jury.
The only remedy to this improper argument is reversal of the

sentence imposed by the jury.9
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XII.

THE TIVE D EXCESSIVE VICTIM

U §
43.1	g

3 'Dc6> 'T'z.

During the course of the trial RIPPO filed several motions

.concerning the admissibility of victim impact evidence,

including a Motion to Bar the Admission of Cumulative Victim

Impact Evidence in Violation of the Due Process Clause (5 RCA

940-943). The State did not file a written oppositions,

however at the hearing of the Motions the State argued that the

only proper limitation was the witnesses not offer

interpretions about how heinous the crime was and not

volunteer information about their wishes for punishment. The

State's position was that the witnesses should be allowed to

explain what type of person the victim was and to share with
the jury things about the personality and life of the victim

and further offer a recital of what type of impact the murders

had upon the family (20 RCA 15). The Court's ruling was as

ollows:

-cqu>g
w

M g

15

6

7

8

0

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

'THE COURT: As long as they stay within the
parameters set by Mr. Harmon and do not -- these
impact witnesses do not state what they believe the
penalty should be or make any statements regarding
how heinous the crime was, stay within those
parameters, as to just the effects and -- character
of the victim and the effects on the family, I think
it should be allowed (20 RCA 17).

With respect to the presentation of cumulative testimony

the State indicated that only one victim impact witness would

be called on behalf of Jacobson family and that three witnesses

from the Taizzi family would testify but that they all had
different perspectives and would not offer any cumulative

testimony (20 RCA 19). The Court accepted the representation

84
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f the prosecutor:

THE COURT: 1 think Mr. Harmon said it's going
to be limited as to how each victim impact witness --
the effect it had on them personally.

Is that correct?

MR. HARMON: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: All right. It will be limited in
that way" (20 RCA 20).

The State first violated its representations to the Court

by calling a second witness concerning tope impact on the

Jacobson family, and then the witnesses proceeded to give

testimony far beyond the limits represented by the prosecutor

and ordered by the Court. At the conclusion of the State's

presentation of five different victim impact witnesses RIPPO

moved for a mistrial based on the violation of a pretrial

motion that had been granted limiting the extent of such

testimony:

	

17	 "We also had motions about the testimony of the
family members; and there was limitations sett That

	

8	it would not be cumulative; that they would not make 
efendant;-that-they-would not

	

9	make comments about the facts of the case; and almost
every one of them violated that, in one respect or

	

20	another.

	

21	The State knows we can't jump up in the middle of
these people and keep objecting. That could kill our

	

22	client. They know that. so they just sit back,
confident that they can get away with it" (23 RCA

	

23	209-210),

24 RIPPO therefore moved to strike the death penalty (23 RCA 209).

	

25	The United States Supreme Court in 2Axgg_x,_Tmnpaggag, 501

26 U.S. 808, 111 S.Ct. 2597, 115 L.Ed.2d 720 (1991) held that the

27 Eighth Amendment erects no per se bar to the admission of

28 certain victim impact evidence during the sentencing phase of a
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8

9

0
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12§
1330.4

4..12
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17

18

capital case. The Court did acknowledge that victim impact

evidence can be so unduly prejudica1 as to render the

sentencing proceeding fundamentally unfair and violate the Due

Process Clause of the Fourteenth Amendment. Payne, 111 S.Ct at

2608, 115 L.Ed.2d at 735. In Homick v. State, 108 Nev. 127,

136-137, 825 P.2d 600, 606 (1992) this Court embraced the

holding in Payne, and found that it comported fully with the

indendment of the Nevada Constitution and declined to search

for loftier heights in the Nevada ConstItution. In cases

subsequent to Homiale, the Court has reaffirmed its position,

finding that questions of admissibility of testimony during the

penalty phase of a capital murder trial are largely left to the

discretion of trial court. 5rilith v. State, 110 Nev. 1094,

1106, 881 P. 2d 649 (1994). The Court has not however addressed

the issue of presentation of cumulative victim impact evidence

or been presented with a situation where the prosecution went

beyond the scope of the order of the District Court restricting

ev_idenee_r_such_as_occurred-in- the-

at bar.bar.

Some ,State courts have voiced disapproval over the

admission of any victim impact evidence at a capital setnencing

hearing finding that such evidence is not relevant to any fact

or proposition of aggravating circumstance. state V. Gueek,

906 P.2d (Or. 1995)4 In considering a claim that victim impact

testimony violated due process and resulting in a sentence

imposed under the influence of passion, prejudice or other

arbitrary factors, the Kansas Supreme Court in State v._Gideon,

894 P.2d 850, 864 (Kan. 1995) issued the following warning
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1

I hile affirming the sentence:

"When victims' statements are presented to a jury,
the trial court should exercise control. Control can
be exercised, for example, by requiring the victims'
statements to be in question and answer form or
submitted in writing in advance. The victims'
statements should be directed toward information
concerning the victim and the impact the crime has on
the victim and the victims, family. Allowing the
statement to range far afield may result in
reversible error."

In the instant case the statements went far afield and

beyond the limits imposed by the Court Is a result of the

defense motion. RIPPO'S right to Due Process under the Nevada
and United states Constitution was thereby violated and his

sentence should be vacated and the case remanded for a fair
sentencing hearing.
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4	Without any objection from trial counsel the Court gave

prejudice or public opinion. Your decision should be
the product of sincere judgement and sound discretion

UI	 in accordance with these rules of law." (Emphasis
added). (5 ROA 1036)9

0 It was error to give an anti-sympathy instruction.

1	Sentencers may not he given unbridled discretion in

2 determining the fate of those charged with capital offenses.

3 Death penalty statutes must be structured to prevent the

4 penalty being imposed in an arbitrary and unpredictable

15 fashion. Gregg v, azorgia, 428 U.S. 153, 96 S.Ct. 2909, 49

6	.Ed.2d 859 (1976); Furman 7. Georgia, 408 U.S. 238, 92 S.Ct.

7 2126, 33 L.Ed.2d 346 (1972). However, a capital defendant must

8 be allowed to introduce any relevant mitigating evidence

9 egarding his character and record and circumstance of the

20 offense. 	 , 428 U.S. 280,96 S.Ct.

21 2978, 49 L.Ed.2d 944 (1976); Lddinas v. Oillahoma, 455 U.S. 104,

22 102 S.Ct. 869, 71 14.Ed.2d 1 (1982).

23	The anti-sympathy instruction given violated RIPPO'S

24 Eighth Amendment rights because it undermined the jury's

25 constitutionally mandated consideration of mitigating evidence.

26 An alleged error in jury instructions in the sentencing phase

27 of a capital case requires a determination of how a reasonable

28 juror could construe the instruction in such ways to make its

88

Instruction No. 23 at the penalty hearing, the second paragraph

6 of which provides:
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•
sentencing decision improper, the reviewing court should

reverse the sentencing decision. Mills V. Maryland, 486 U.S.
367, 108 S.Ct. 1850, 100 L.Ed.2d 384 (1988).

In Californie v. Brown, 479 U.S. 541, 107 S.Ct. 837, 93

L.Ed.2d 934 (1987), the United States Supreme Court reviewed a

jury instruction which a Defendant challenged on the ground

that the "simply" portion of the instruction interfered with the

jury's consideration of mitigating evidence. The challenged

instruction informed the jurors that thAr "must not be swayed

by mere sentiment, conjecture, sympathy, passion, prejudice,

public opinion or public feeling." The court, upheld the

instruction, as not being violative of the Eighth and

Fourteenth Amendments, in reliance upon the inclusion of the

word 'mere. According to the court, a reasonable juror would

understand the instruction not to rely on "mere sympathy" as a

directive to ignore only the sort of sympathy that would be

otally divorced from the evidence adduced during the penalty

In the instant case, the language of the instruction at
issue, is not modified by the word wilMarie which was crucial in
the decision to uphold the instruction in California v. Brown,

supra. The instant instruction is comparable to the

instruction that was struck down in tazkz_m,_111,Loggn, 860 F.2d

1545 (10th Cir. 1938), which was as follows; "You must avoid

ny influence of sympathy, sentiment, passion, prejudice or

ther arbitrary factor when imposing sentence." In reaching
this conclusion, the 10th Circuit found the instruction

precluded any consideration of sympathy and thus created an

89
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mpermissible risk that a reasonable juror might disregard

itigating evidence.

Although the jury was instructed to consider any

mitigating circumstance, it was also instructed that its

verdict may never be influenced by sympathy. The mitigating

instruction did not cure the constitutionally defective anti-

sympathy instruction. At best, the jury received conflicting

instructions. In Francis 7, Pranklin, 471 U.S. 307, 105 S.Ct.

1965, 85 L.Ed.2d 344 (1985), the Court gltated:

"Language that merely contradicts and does not
explain a constitutionally infirm instruction will
not suffice to absolve the infirmity."

A capital defendant has a constitutional right to have the

Jury give w individualized" consideration to the mitigating

circumstances of his character, record and the circumstances of

he crime. gant v. Stephen, 462 U.S. 862, 103 S.Ct. 2733, 77

L.Ed.2d 235 (1983).

Based upon this erroneous instruction, Rim is entitled

ed a

hearing.
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1 XIV.
2 THERE WAS NOT SUFFICIENT EVIDENCE

FOR THE JURY TO FIND TORTURE
AS 7k$ AGGIRAVATTIO QTRCUMSTANCE

4 When the sufficiency of evidence to support an aggravating

circumstance only raises suspicion or conjecture as to the

existence of facts to be found, the issue should not be

submitted to the jury. $tare v Moose, 313 S.E.2d 507 (N.C.

1984).

There is Eighth Amendment error when the sentencer weighs

an "invalid" aggravating circumstance in reaching the ultimate

decision to impose a death sentence. Zochor_a,„_nerisile, 504

U.S. 525, 112 S.Ct. 2114, 119 L.Ed.2d 326 (1992). Employing an

invalid aggravating factor in the weighing process "creates

possibility...of randomness," Springer v.5, 503 U.S. 222,

112 S.Ct. 1130, 117 L.Ed.2d 3367 (1992).

In Dates v. State, 465 S.2d 490 (Fla. 1985), the court

ndicated that the analysis of aggravating and mitigating

ircumbtelluk,	 aild the appropriate	sentence-is-not a in	

counting process. As a reviewing court, *Ike do not raweigh the

evidence . p When the evidence does not support an aggravating

factor and there are mitigating circumstances, the death

sentence should be vacated and remanded for reconsideration

without utilizing the insufficiently established aggravating

circumstances because there is no way of knowing if the result

would have been differently absent the offensive aggravating

circumstances. Likewise, in Willjffms vState, 274 Ark. 9, 621

5.W. 2d 686 (1981), the court ruled that where a jury has no

substantial basis for finding a particular aggravating
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circumstance; the error cannot be held to be harmless on the

theory that the jury found other aggravating circumstances and

no mitigating ones. In a death case the appellate court is not

in a position to speculate about what the jury might have done

if it had been presented with fewer aggravating circumstances.

As in Nevada, the Arkansas jury is not required to impose death

even if it finds aggravators and no mitigators.

In vacating the death sentence the court, in Neal v.

5tate, 274 Ark. 217, 623 S.W.2d 191, 191 (1951), stated: We
10

may not speculate about what a jury might have done if it had

considered different combinations of aggravating and mitigating

circumstances."

When the trier of fact does the balancing, courts on

appeal can only speculate. No one can know with the degree of

certainty required, (See, Gardner v. Floridd, 430 U.S. 349,

60, 97 S.Ct. 1197, 1205, 31 L.Ed.2d 393 (1977)) what a jury,

properly instructed, would have done in the penalty phase.

As one of the aggravating circumstances alleged by the

State was not supported by sufficient evidence the validity of

the sentence of death is questionable. Under the circumstances

of this case the penalty must be reversed.
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Based on the arguments and authorities herein in contained

it is respectfully submitted that the conviction and sentence

of Micheal Rippo cannot stand. The United States Constitution

and the Constitution of the State of Nevada have been trampled,

ignored and violated by the rulings and actions of the District

Court and by the conduct of the prosecutors on the case.

mproper and prejudical evidence was presented to the jury and

evidence was concealed from the defenseS Reversal and remand

are the only options available to remedy the wrong.

DATED;

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED,

BY
DAVID L.	HEKES .
302 East Carson, Suite 600
Las Vegas, Nevada 89101
Attorney for Appellant
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CERTIFIcATr_a_OmPT,TANcE

I hereby certify that I have read this appellate brief,

and to the best of my knowledge, information, and belief, it is

not frivolous or interposed for any improper purpose, I further

certify that this brief complies with all applicable Nevada
Rules of Appellate Procedure, in particular NRAP 28(e), which
requires every assertion in the brief regarding matters in the

record to be supported by appropriate references to the record

on appeal. I understand that I may be albject to sanctions in

the event that the accompanying brief is not in conformity with

the requirements of the Nevada Rules of Appellate Procedure.

DATED:.	)q9 

BY	
DAVID M. SCHIECK, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No 0824
The Law Office of David M. Schieck
302 East Carson, Suite 600
Las Vegas, Nevada 89101 
702-382-1844
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DISTRICT COURT AFRK
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

*****

CHRISTOPHER R. ORAM, ESQ.
Nevada State Bar #004349
520 S. Fourth Street, 2nd Floor
Las Vegas, Nevada 89101
(702) 384-5563
Attorney for Defendant
MICHAEL RIPPO

8 STATE OF NEVADA, CASE NO.:	C106784
DEPT. NO.:	)(iv

NuNc lama TUNC ()Riga

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED, that CHRISTOPHER R. ORAM, ESQ., was hereby

appointed to represent Defendant, MICHAEL RIPPO, as of April 16, 2003 through

'14	/	 Id •-

DATED and DONE this MAR 1 0 2005
, 2005.

DISTRICT COURT JUDGE
21

Respectfully submitted by:
22

23

24
CHRISTOPHER R. ORAM, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 004349
520 S. Fourth Street, 2nd Floor
Las Vegas, Nevada 89101
(702) 384-5563
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MICHAEL DAMON RIPPO,

vs.

THE STATE OP NEVADA,

Case NZ C106784
Dept Ng: XIV

CLARK COUNTY, NEVAD

Petitioner,

Respondent,	f	 NOTICE OF ENTRY OF
DECISION AND ORDER
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PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that on December 1, 2004, the court entered a decision or order in this matter,

true and correct copy of which is attached to this notice.

You may appeal to the Supreme Court from the decision or order of this court. If you wish to appeal,

must file a notice of spout/ with the clerk of this court within thirty-three (33) days after the data this notice

mailed to you This nonce was mailed on December 15, 2004.

SRIRLEY B. PARRAGU1RRE, CLERIC. OF COURT

By:	
RobinJ.

CERTIFICATE 

I hereby certify that on this 15 day pf December 2004,1 placed a copy of this Notice of Entry of Decision

and Order in:

The bin(s) located in the Office of the County Clerk of;
Clark County DiStriCt Attorney's Office
Attorney General's Office — Appellate Division

FLI The United States mail addressed as follows:
Michael Damon Rippo # 17097	Christopher R. Oram, Esq.
Pe, Box 650	 520 S. Fourth St., #370
Indian Springs, NV 89018	 Las Vegas, NV 89101
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520 S. Fourth Street, 2nd Floor
Las Vegas, Nevada 89101 zz,,, cc,T n

(702) 384-5563
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Attorney for Defendant
MICHAEL RIPPO

DISTRICT COURT

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

*****

CASE NO. Cl 06784
DEPT. NO. XIV

ORM& OF APPOINTMENT

The above entitled mater having come on for hearing before this Court on the 10th

A

representative of the District Attorney's Office appearing on behalf of the State; the Court

being fluky advised in the premises, and good cause appearing

/1/
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DONALD M. MOSLEY

DISTRICT COURT JUDGE
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CHRISTOPHER R. ORAM, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No, 004349
520 South Fourth Street, 2'd Floor
Las Ve s, Nevada 89101
(702) 384-5563

Respeetfuilly submitted by:

9

10

IT IS HEREBY ORDER, ADJUDGED AND DECREED that CHRISTOPHER R.

ORAM, ESQ. be appointed as counsel to represent MICHAEL RrPPO in his appeal to the

Nevada Supreme Court.

IT IS ORDERED ADJUDGED AND DECREED that CHRISTOPHER R. ORAM,

ESQ. be paid by the County of Clark as set forth in NRS 7.125.

DATED and DONE: this	 , 2004.
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NOTC
CHRISTOPHER R. ORAM, ESQ,
Nevada Bar no. 4349
520 South 4th Street, # 370
Las Vegas, Nevada 89101
(702) 384-5563

Attorney for Defendant
MICHAEL RIPPO

2
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f f D

UV 12 4	F!4'04

CLERK

6

DISTRICT COURT

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

* *

THE STATE OF NEVADA,	 CASE NO. C106784
Plaintiff;	 DEPT. NO. XIV

vs.

MICHAEL POPO,

Defendant.

NOTICE OF

9
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2 1	16
Ism

ao	 16

NOTICE is hereby given that Defendant, MICHAEL RIPPO, hereby appeals to the Supreme

Court-of the-State of-Nevada-from-his-denial-of-his !11	i • ;

Conviction), the Notice of Entry of Order having not been entered as of this date.

DATED this 1 	day of October, 2004.

By	
CHRISTOPHER R. ORAM
Nevada Bar #004349
520 South Fourth Street., 0370
Las Vegas, Nevada 89101
Attorney for Defendant
MICHAEL RIPPO
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Brian Sandoval
Attorney General
555 E. Washington Ave., 3rd Floor
Las Vegas, NV 89101

is

16

David Roger
District Attorney
200 South Third Street, 7th floor
Las Vegas, Nevada 89155

14

17

	 M	18 iit l ottitu R	
An employee of Christ°19

12

13

CERTIFICATE OF MAILING

I hereby certify that I am an employee of CHRISTOPHER. R ORAM and that on the

t _ day of October, 2004, I did deposit in the United States Post Office, at Las Vegas, Nevada,

in a sealed envelope with postage fully pre-paid thereon, a true and correct copy of the above and

foregoing NOTICE OF APPEAL, addressed to:

Supreme Court Clerk
Supreme Court Building
201 S. Carson Street
Carson City, NV 89170
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REX BELL
DISTRICT ATTORNEY
Nevada Bar '001799
200 S. Third Street
Las Vegaso Nevada 09155
(702) 455-4711
attorney For plaintiff
STATE 0? NEVADA

STATE MNEVADA )
) se;

couNTY or cLux

by the Clark County Grand Jury of the crime of TUFT (Felony MIA

205.0032, 205.0835), committed at and within the County of Clark,

March, 15931 did then and there wilfully, unlawfully, feloniously,'

knowingly, and without lawful authority control the property of

another person with the intent to deprive that person of tha

07166-SALE000 I
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I proparty and/9r obtained the personal property of another person by

a material misrepresentation with the intent to deprive that person

of the property, in the following manner, to-wit: by the defendant

4 fraudulently pretending and purporting himself to be CAMILLO

5 MAZZETTI, thereafter signing CAMILLO MAZZETTI's naue upon a

ithdrawal slip which was tendered to the CALIFORNIA FEDERAL BANK

7 upon acccunt number 007-9023721-7 in the amount of $7000.00* said

8 account containing monies belonging to CAMILLO MAZZETTI and/or his

9 l egal heirs and/or the estate of CAMILLO MAZZETTI; which actions

0 by the Defendant caused CALIFORNIA FEDERAL BAHR to present the

11 Defendant with $7000.00 belonging to CAMILLO MA2ZETTI and/or his

2 legal heirs and/or the estate of CAMILLO 1IA2EETTI; said actions of

13 the Defendant being instrumental in causing the wrongful control or

14 transfer of the property of CAMILLO MAZZETTI and/or his legal hairs

15 and/or the estate of CAMILLO MAZZEITI to the Defendant in the

18 amount of 87000.00, an avount greater than $250.00 to Which the

17 Defendant was not entitled.

IS COUNT TI - THEFT

19 ..  Defendant TERRY ABRAHAM SALEM, on or about the 5th day of

20 March/ i993, did then and there wilfully, unlawfully, feloniously,

21 knowingly, and without lawful authority control the property of

22 another person with the intent to deprive that person of the
0 property and/or obtained the personal property of another person by

24 a material misrepresentation with the intent to deprive that person

25 of the property, in the following manner, to-wits by the defendant

26 fraudulently pretending and purporting himself to be CAMILLO

27 MAZZETTI, thereafter signing CAMILLO MAZZETTI t s name . Upon- a
28 withdrawal slip which was tendered to the CALIFORNIA FEDERAL BANK

upon account number 007-9023721-7 in the amount of $241663.77;

07166-SALE0002
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said account containing monies belonging to CAMILLOMABBETTI and/or

2 hie legal heirs and/or the estate of CAMILLO MAKZETTI1 which

actions by the Defendant caused CALIFORNIA FEDERAL BANK to present

4 the Defendant with $14,663.77 belonging to cAMMLO MAZZETTI and/or

5 his legal heirs and/or the estate of cAm/LLO MAZZETTII said

6

7 control or transfer of the property of CAMILLO MAZZETTI and/or his

8 legal heirs and/or the estate of CAMILLO NAZZETTI tO the Defendant

9 in the amount of $14,663.77, an amount greater than $250.00 to

O which the Defendant was not entitied,

UNT III - THEFT

2 Defendant TERRY AERANAm SALEM, on or about the Sth day of

arch, 1993, did than and there wilfully, unlawfully, feloniously,

knowingly, and without lawful authority control the property of

another person with the intent to deprive that person of the

property and/ obtained the personal property of another person by

a material misrepresentation with the intent to deprive that person

of the property, in the following manner, to-vita by the defendant

MAKZETTZ, thereafter signing CAM/LLO MAZZETTI f e name upon a

withdrawal slip which was tendered to the CALIFORNIA FEDERAL BANK

upon account number 007-46449-9 in the amount of $51,013.477 said

account containing monies belonging to CAMILLO MAZZETTI and/or his

legal heirs and/or the estate of CAMILLO MAZZETTI; which actions

by the Defendant caused CALIFORNIA FEDERAL BANK to present the

Defendant with $51,013.47 belonging to CAMILLO MAZIETTI and/or his

legal heirs and/or the estate of CAMILLO MAZZETTI: said actions of

the Defendant being instrumental in causing the wrongful control or

tions of the Defendant being instrumental in causing the wrongful
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•
transfer of the property of CAMILLO MA2ZETTI and/or hie legal heirs

and/or the estate of CAMILLO MAZZETTI to the Defendant in the

aeount of $51,013.47, an amount greater than $250.00 to which the

Defendant was not entitled.

COUNT IV THEFT

Defendant TERRN ABRAHAM SALEM, on or about the 26th day of

March, 1993, did then and there wilfully, unlawfully, feloniously,

knowingly, and without lawful authority control the property of

another person with the intent to deprive that person of the

property and/or obtained the personal property of another person by

a material misrepresentation with the intent to deprive that person

of the property, in the following manner, to-vitt by the defendant

fraudulently pretending and purporting hinself to be CAMILLO

MAUETTI, thereafter signing CAMILLO MAZZETTI's name upon a

withdrawal slip which was tendered to the CALIFORNIA FEDERAL BANK

upon account nunber 177-0018239-3 in the amount of $85,000,00;

said account containing monies belonging to CAMILLO HAZZIwn end/or

his legal heirs and/or the estate of CAMILLO MAZIETTIF which

actions by the Defendant caused cmiromm FenEmAL BANE to present

the Defendant with $85,000.00 belonging to CAMILLO MA22ETTI and/or

his legal heirs and/or the estate of CAMILLO MAZZETTI; said

actions of the Defendant being instrumental in musing the wrongful

control or transfer of the property of CAMILLO MAZZETTI and/or his

legal heirs and/or the estate of CAMILLO MAZZETTI to the Defendant

in the amount of $85,000.00, an amount greater than $250.00 to

which the Defendant wee not entitled.

COUNT V - THEFT

Defendant TERRY ABRAHAM SALM on or about the 5th day of

4

07166-SALE0004

JA009190



April, 1993, did then and there wilfuily, unlawfully, feloniously,

knowingly, and without lawful authority control the property of

another person with the intent to deprive that person of the

roperty epc1/0r, obtained the personal property or another person by

a material misrepresentation With the intent to deprive that person

f the property, in the fon:owing manner, to-wit: by the defendant

raudulently pretending and purporting himself to be COI=

RAZZED'S, thereafter signing mama MAZEETTI's name upon a

withdrawal slip which was tendered to the CALIFORNIA FEDERAL Mgt

upon account number 177-0018239-3 in the amount of $B 4 O00.00; said

account containing monies belonging to CAMILLO MAZZETT/ and/or his

legal heirs and/or the estate of CAMILLO MAEZETTI: which actions

by the Defendant caused CALIFORNIA FEDERAL BANK to present the

Defendant with $8,000.00 belonging to cAMILLO RAZZES?' and/or his

legal heirs and/or the estate of CAMILLO MAEZETTI; said actions of

the Defendant being instrueental in causing the wrongful control or

transfer of the property of CANTTJLO MA2ZrZfl and/or h eqa

and/or the estate of matzo mAZZETTI to the Defendant in the

amount of $8,000.00, an amount greater than $280.00 to which the

Defendant was not entitled.

COUNT VI - THEFT

Defendant TERRY ABRAHAM SALEM, on or about the 13th day of

April, 1993, did then and there wilfully, unlawfully, feloniously,

knowingly, and without lawful authority control the property of

another person with the intent to deprive that person of the

property and/or obtained the personal property of another person by

a material misrepresentation with the intent to deprive that parson

f the property, in the following manner, to-vitt by the defend
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RSEMENT: A True Bill

•
fraudulently pretending and purporting himself to be CAMILLO

2 MAZZETTT, thereafter signing CAMILLO MAZZETTI f s name upon a

3 withdrawal slip which was tendered to the CALIFORNIA FEDERAL ZANE

4 upon account number 177-0018239-3 in the amount of 88,000.00; said

account containing monies belonging to CAMILLO MAZZETTI and/or his

6 l egal heirs and/or the estate of CAMILLO MAZEETTI, which actions

7 by the Defendant caused CALIFORNIA FEDERAL BANK to present the

8 Defendant with $8,000.00 belonging to CAMILLO MUTT/ and/or his

9 legal heirs and/or the estate of CAMILLO MA2ZETTI; said actions Of

0 the Defendant being instrumental in causing the wrongful control or

II transfer of the property Of CAMILLO MAZ2ETT/ and/or his legal heirs

2 and/or the estate of cAMILLO MAZZEITT to the Defendant in the

3 amount of $11,0moo, an amount greater than $250.00 to which the

4 Defendant was not entitled.

	

5	DATED this _

	

6	

1.54k-day of 	BEL:ca,,,,„44 

DISTR/CT ATTORNEY
7

18

	

19	 W. SMITI

25

26

27

28

''. eva a
Nevada 0022

•1

By;
ULRICH
Deputy Dietrict Attorney

A
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ammo of witnesses testifying before the Grand Jury:

2 ohn H. Richolson, LVMPLI

up Johnson

Miss Leaver, LVMPD4

a
7



REX BELL
DISTRICT ATTDANNy
Nevada Bar 1001799
200 B. Third Street
Las Vegas, Nevada 09155
(702) 459-4711
Attorney For Plaintiff
STATE OF NEVADA

DISTRICT COURT

CLARX COUNTY, NEVADA

)	CASE NO. C /02,910
iff	

)
)	DRPT. NO, IV))	DOCXET NO. Co
)
)
)
)
)
)

by the Clark County Grand Jury of the crime of THEFT (Peiony BRB

205.0132, 20.9935), &omitted at and within the County of Clark,

state of Nevada, on or between March 3, 1993, and April 13, 1993!

as follmet

Defendant TERRY ABRAHAM SALEM, on or about the 3rd day of

March, 1993, did then and there wilfully, unlawfully, feloniously,'

knowingly, And without lawful authority control the property of

another person with the intent to deprive that person Of the

07166-SALE0001

JA009194
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1 property andipr obtained the personal property of another person by

2 a ater tal misrepresentation with the intent to deprive that person

3 of the property, in the following manner, to-wit: by the defendant

4 fraudulently pretending and purporting himself to be CAMILLO

5	22ETTI, thereafter signing cAMILLO MAllETTI o s name upon a

6 Withdrawal slip which Was tendered to the CALIFORNIA FEDERAL BAHR

7 upon account number 007-9023721-7 in the amount of $7000.00; said

account containing aonies belonging to CAMILLO MAZZETTI and/or his

9 legal heirs and/or the estate of CAMILLO MA2ZETTI; which actions

10 by the Defendant caused CALIFORNIA FEDERAL BANK to present the

11 Defendant with $7000.00 belonging to CAMILLO MAZEETTI end/or his

2 legal heirs and/or the estate of CAMILLO MAZZETTI; said actions of

3 the Defendant being instrumental in causing the wrongful control or

14 transfer of the property of CAMILLO MA2ZETTI and/or his legal heirs

5 and/or the estate of CAMILLO HAMM to the Defendant in the

18 amount of $7000.00, an amount greater than $250.00 to which the

17 Defendant was not entitled.

18 oUVI It - THEFT

Defendant TERRY ABRAHAM SALEM, on or about the 5th day of

March, 1.993, did then and there wilfully, unlawfully, feloniously,

knowingly, and without lawful authority control the property of

another person with the intent to deprive that person of the

property and/or obtained the personal property of another person by

a material misrepresentation with the intent to deprive that person

of the property, in the following manner, to-wit: by the defendant

fraudulently pretending and purporting himielf to be CAMILLO

HAMMITT, thereafter signing CAMILLO MAZZETTI o s name Amon, a

withdrawal slip which was tendered to the CALIFORNIA FEDERAL BANK

upon account number 007-9023721-7 in the amount of 214,663!77;

07166-SALE0002
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said account containing monies belonging to cmizzomAllETTI and/or

his legal heirs and/or the estate of CAM/LW MAEIETTI; which

actions by the Defendant caused CALIFORNIA FEDERAL BANK to present

the Defendant with $14,663.77 belonging to cAMILLO HAMM and/or

his legal heirs and/or the estate of CAMILLO MAZZETTIF said

actions of the Defendant being instrumental in causing the wrongful

control or transfer of the property of CAMILLO MAZZETTI and/or his

legal heirs and/or the estate of CAMILLO MAZZETTI to the Defendant

in the amount of $14,663.77, an amount greater than $250.00 to

which the Defendant was not entitled.

COUNT II/ THEFT

Defendant TERRY AERAHAm sALEM, on or about the Sth day of

March, 1993, did than and there wilfully, unlawfully, feloniously,

Xnowingly, and without lawful authority control the property of

another person with the intent to deprive that parson of the

property andhex obtained the personal property of another person by

a material misrepresentation with the intent to deprive that person

of the property, in the following manner, to-witt by the defendant

EZETTI, thereafter signing CAMILLO MAEZETTI t s name upon a

withdrawal slip which was tendered to the CALIFORNIA FEDERAL BARE

upon account number 007-46449-9 in the amount of $51,013.47; said

account containing monies belonging to CAMILLO MAUETTI and/or his

legal heirs and/or the estate of cAMILLO MAKIETTI: which actions

by the Defendant caused CALIFORNIA FEDERAL BANK to present the

Defendant with $51,013.47 belonging to CAMILLO MAEZETTI and/or his

gal heirs and/or the estate of CAMiLLOMAZZETTI: said actions of

1141 Defendant being instrumental in causing the wrongful control or
.-•."'
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transfer of the property of CAMILLO MANETTI and/or his legal heirs

and/or the estate of CAMILLO MAZZETTI tO the Defendant in the

amount of 15X,013,47, an amount greeter than 1250,00 to Which the

Defendant was not entitled.

cum' IV THEFT

Defendant TERRY ABRAHAM SALEM, on or about the 26th day of

'carob, 1993, did then and there wilfully, unlawfully, feloniously,

knowingly, and without lawful authority control the property of

another person with the intent to deprive that person of the

property nielige obtained the personal property Of another parson by

a eaterial misrepresentation with the intent to deprive that person

of the property, in the following !tanner, to-vita by the defendant

fraudulently pretending and purporting himself to be CAM/LLO

MAZIETTI, thereafter signing CAMILLO MAZZETTI's name upon a

withdrawal slip which was tendered to the CALIFORNIA FEDERAL BANK

Upon account number 177-0018239-3 in the amount of 185,000.00$

said account containing monies belonging to CAHILL° MAZEBTTI and/or

his legal heirs and/or the estate of CAMILLO MA22ETTI; which

actions by the Defendant caused CALIFORNIA FEDERAL BANX to present

the Defendant with $85,000.00 belonging to CAMILLO MAXZETTI and/or

hie legal heirs and/or the estate of CAMILLO MASZETTI; said

actions of the Defendant being instrumental in causing the wrongful

control or transfer of the property of CAMILLO MANETTI and/or his

legel heirs and/or the estate of cAMILLO MAZ2VITI to the Defendant

in the amount of $85,000,00, an amount greater than 1250.00 to

which the Defendant was not entitled.

COUNT V - THEFT

Defendant TERRY ABRAHAM sALEM, on or about the 5th day of

4
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April, 1993, did then and there wilfully, unlawfully, feloniously,

knowingly, and without lawful authority control the property of

another person with the intent to deprive that person of the

roperty apd/oe obtained the personal property of another person by

a material misrepresentation with the intent to deprive that person

Of the property, in the following manner, to -wit* by the defendant

fraudulently pretending and pUrporting himself to be CAMILLO

MAZZETTI, thereafter signing cAM/LLO MAZESITI's name upon

withdrawal slip which was tendered to the CALIFORNIA FEDERAL BARE

upon account number 177-0016239-3 in the amount of $0.000.00; said

account containing monies belonging to cAmilito MAZESTTI and/or hie

legal hairs and/or the estate of CAMILLO MA2ZETTI; which actions

by the Defendant caused CALIFORNIA FEDERAL BANK to present the

Defendant with $8,000.00 belonging to CAMILLO MAZZETTI and/or his

legal heirs and/or the estate of CAMILLO MAEZETTI; said actions of

he Defendant being instrumental in causing the wrongful control or

ransfer of the property of CAM/LLOMAZZETTI and/orhie li4iheirs

iS and/or the estate of cAMILLO mAffETTI to the Defendant In the

1 amount of $8,000.00, an amount greater than $250.00 to which the

20 Defendant was not entitled.

21 rami_yz THErr

Defendant TERRY ABRAHAM SALEM, on or about the 13th day of

April, 1993, did then and there wilfully, unlawfully, feloniously,

24 knowingly, and without lawful authority control the property of

another person with tea intent to deprive that person of 'the

property and/or obtained the personal property of Another person

a material misrepresentation with the intent to deprive that person

28 of the property, in the following manner, to-wit: by the defend:01

07166-SALE0005
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fraudulently pretending and purporting himself to be CAMILLO

MA2ZETTI 0 thereafter signing CAMILLO MASZETTI's name upon a

withdrawal slip which was tendered to the CALIFORNIA FEDERAL RAM

upon account number 177-0019239-3 in the amount of ES # 000,00; said

account containing monies belonging to CAMILLO MAZUTT7 end/or his

legal heirs and/or the estate of CAMILLO MAZSETTI; which actions

by the Defendant caused CALIFORNIA FEDERAL BANK to present the

Defendant with $8,000,00 belonging to CAMILLO MAZZETTI and/or his

legs' heirs and/or the estate of CAMILLO MMETTI; said actions or

the Defendant being instrumental in cbusing the wrongful control or

transfer of the property of CAMILLO HAZZETT/ and/or his legal heirs

and/or the estate of CAMILLO MA2ZETTI to the Defendant in the

amount of w000.00, an amount greater than 4250.00 to which the

Defendant was not entitled.

(IAA	 rDATED this 	/ 	day of	 1994.

REX BELL
DISTRICT ATTORNEY
NeVada-Bar 1001799r-- -
Nevada Ber4OO22

By:
D
Deputy District Attorney

ENDORSEMENT: A True Bill
%

'ISLA 

JIYA r Foreper8011
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the Grand Jury%Names of witnesses testifying baf

2 John N. Nicholson, LVNPD

3 Philip Johnson

4 William LOAVer, umrn

5

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

7

18

9 4GJ221X/te
LVt4PD 9305250826

t r



•	•
EXHIBIT 3 3 8

EXHIBIT 338

JA009201



DISTR%CT COURT CfMG/INAL

CLARK COuNTY, NEvADU	z 02 iss

GRAND JURY IMMNELED

DISTRICT COURT

REPORTER'S TRANSCRIPT OF PROCEEDINGS

Reported by: Marcia J. Leonard, CC$ No. 204
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1

2

3

4

6

7

9

10

11

12

GRAND JURORS PRESEFT ON DECEMBER 15, 1994:

411	13

14

15

16

17

18	 Also present at the request of the Grand

19

20

21

22

23

410	
24

25

LAS VAS, NEVADA REPORTING SERVICES	2)	30

2

„.

•

WILLIAM MORRIS, Foreperson

JOSEPH D. NEUMAN, Deputy Forepereon

NEITA W. WHITE, Secretary

PATSY ARNOLD

KATHRYN BERGEMEYER

HELEN CARTER

PATRICK C. ESTY

EUGENE HENRY FISHER

MARJORIE OLSON

DIANNA J. pAcrux

/MUSTER L. ROBINSON, JR.

CARLENE M. SCOTT

LELA A. SOAR?

CAROL W. STEELE

ANGELA V, MARTIN

Jury:

ULRICH SMITH, ESQ,
Deputy District Attorney

07166-SALE0022
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crime before you a couple times this year, but let

me take a moment and explain how the State needs to

The State must show that within the County of Clark,

of course, on the certain day, that the defendant

did then and there willfully, unlawfully,

feloniously and knowingly and without lawful

authority control -- let me tell you, we can do this

two ways. It's kind of pled in the alternative.

The theft statute, it you were to take

a look at it, that being Nes 205„0832, allows the

crime of theft to occur at leaSt five, maybe si,

The first way is that this person, the

defendant, controlled the property of another

person, with the intent to deprive that person

see underlined R andior obtained the personal

property of another person by a material

VADA REPORTING SERVICES (702) 382-7530
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misrepresentation" -- 	1.: explain what that is in

just a moment -- "with the intent to deprive that

that the defendant engaged in W8,6 that sufficient

Mazzetti, As a result of representing he was

maezetti and signing mazzetti's name on a withdrawal

cause of the bank doing that, and that's

that the actions of the defendant were instrumental

in causing the wrongful control or the transfer of

07166-SALE0027

JA009208
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Can a dead •an be a victim?

2	 Of course, a dead man can be a victim.

3	 But we've also charged in the

4	alternative, that it was either Mr. Mazzetti who was

the victim in this case or his legal heirs.

As you know, when somebody dies, an

estate is set up, and the people who are the lawful

6

7

a	heirs of the victim	this case, they do have a

9

10	victim as

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18	 THE FOREPERSON: Yes.

19	 MR. SMITH: Thank you.

20	 May I call my first witness?

21	 THE FOREPERSON: Yes.

22	 You do solemnly swear that the

23	testimony that you're about to give upon the

410	24	investigation now pending before this Grand Jury

25	shall be the truth, the whole truth and nothing but

claim to that money, so they could be as much of a

Mr. Mazzetti himself.

Now, the other five counts are

identical in the language that was used to plead it,

except they involve different amounts of money,

different dates and different account numbers.

With that in mind, Mr. Foreman, can you

now assure me that the Grand jury full understands

all of the elements of the crime of theft here?

2

LAS VEGAS, NEVADA REPORTING SERVICES (702) 362-7530
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You were here today to give testimony

in the investigation pertaining to the offenses

theft involving the defendant named in this

Is that your understanding?

THE WITNESS: Yes, it is.

spell your at name for us, and tell us how you are

LAS VEGAS, NEVADA REPORTING SERVICES (702) 302-7530

07166-SALE0029
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15

16

17

18

19

20

21

n
23

24

25

LAS vEGASt N vADA REPORTIN G SERYTC2S (702) 382-7

-
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Exhibit Number 9, and see if you can identify this

Why don, t you tell the Grand Jury about

pour investigation, how you were led to the

investigation, and what you uncovered; and I will

interrupt you intermittently to have you look at

When r first obtained the information

from the California Federal Bank from the

security director Phillip 0ohnson.

Is he out here today ready to testify?

one of the collection drafts, Number

07166-SALE0031
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well, its actually in tGe lever right corner

Grand Jury subpoena for the subscriber information

to that phone number during the time frames of this

At that point, the information obtained

from that Grand Jury subpoena was that it returned

to a T. Salem, with a social Security number listed

information in SCOPE and obtained a printout and a

This is the information that I received

from Central Telephone Company in regards to the

phone number, 896-1260, who was a subscriber during

07166-SALE0032
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On this information here, it shows the

billing information on the number listed along with

3 the subscriber information on here.

4 Does it also show the residence?

5 A	Yes, it does.	It comes back to a

6 Salem, T., at 625 Ravenglen -- one word -- Drive.

Las Vegas,	Nevada,	89133.

Did you -- I think you already told us,

9	but let's go over that again.

10	 Did you check that particular address

11	to find out whether a T. Salem actually resided

12	there?

13	 A	His ex-wiLe still resides there.	He

14	was divorced,	I believe, after the time of the

15	crime, and moved to Arizona, and then was relocated

16 in California.

17 Q	Now, you had some -- ultimately had

18	some discussions with Mr. Salem; is that correct?

19	 A	That's correct.

20 Q	Did he at any point in time during the

21	discussions indicate to you that he had resided at

22	that particular residence during the appropriate

23	time period -- and let's make sure that we clarify

24	the time period up -- that being, between March 3rd

25	of 1993 and April 13th of 19937

LAS VEGAS, NEVADA REPORTING SERVICES (702) 382-7530
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interviw was there any doubt, in either your mind

or Mr. Salem's mind, this was a non-custodian

interrogation -- excuse me -- non-custodial

Let me show you also Grand Jury fthibit

07166-SALE0034

JA00921 5
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1

1
	referred to earlier that you obtained where it

2
	

indicated a certain telephone number and that the

3	person was supposed to call that telephone number

4	when the money came in?

A	That correct.

Where did you get that particular

document from?

8
	 A	This is an original Xerox copy of the

9	original documents which I had in my possession.

10	submitted those to the Identification Bureau of the

11	Las Vegas Metropolitan Police Department, to the

12
	handwriting analysis section along with the

13	fingerprint section.

14	 Q	Where did you get those documents from,

by the way?

16
	 A	Those came through corporate security.

17	Phillip Johnson presented those to the Metropolitan

18	Police Department.

19	 Who'll be able to testify as to their

20	validity; is that correct?

21
	 A	That's correct.

22
	 Let me show you Grand Jury Exhibit

23
	Number 2.

24
	 Tell no what that is.

25
	 A	This is a collection draft, Number

LAS VEGAS, NEVADA REPORTING SERVICES (702) 382-7530
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The documents that you referred to,

Exhibit 10 and Exhibit 2, those are the documents

that you earlier made reference to when you said

telephone number, through Centel, and we can tell

that through Exhibit Number 3; and then you also

verified the fact that he resided at that particular

residence during the relevant time period, by his

own admission, when you had an interview with him;

During the interview, I asked Mr. Salem

LAS VEGAS, NEVADA REPORTING SERVICES

07166-SALE0037

JA00921 8



He stated no; that they had a maid that

came to the residence twice a week, and they --

3 usually one of them were home during that time

4 frame.

5

6 (Znterruption in proceedings.)

THE WITNESS:	I also asked him what his

9	telephone number was during the time frame that he

10	lived there, and he responded it was 496-1260.

11	OY M.	SMITH:

12	 Q	Which is the same telephone number that

13	we're talking about, correct?

14	 A	That's correct.

15	 And also,	just to make sure	a	we

16	understand this, that when you are ta/king about

17	this time period that he lived there, that was

15	inclusive of the time period March 3rd through April

19	13th,	1993,	correct ,	sir?

20	 A	That's correct.

21	 Q	Go ahead,

22	 A	I asked him if he had any accounts or

23	had any dealings with California Federal Bank in Las

24	Vegas.

25	 He stated no, that he'd never been in

LAS VEGAS, NEVADA REPORTING SERVICES (702) 382-7530
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the bank; he did not know anybody in the bank; he

A two sheet is a handwriting analysis,

which is already -- basically, it ha$ Ehings on the

sheet that they want you to copy; they want you to

07165-SALE0039
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numerOus times the name of the deceased

victim, Camillo Massetti, which he completed.

handwriting documents section of the Metropolitan

Police Department and received a report back from

William Leaver, one of our handwriting experts on

07166-SALE0040

A009221
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1

2

3

that document?

Yes, he does.

You know that

testify; is that correct?

That's correct.

Did Mr. Leaver also have possession of

various other documents contained within Exhibit

Number 2?

Specifically, is it correct that he

within Exhibit Number 2, these withdrawal

slips, that are contained within Exhibit Number 2?

Yes. All photographs in this package

that have been marked as Grand Jury Exhibit Number 2

6

•

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

he'll be here later on to

Yes, he did.

la	were given to William Leaver.

19	 Q	Okay. And and also -- contained within

20	Exhibit Number 2, is there also a signature card

21	from a bank?

22	 A	Yes, there is.

23	 Q	All right. As well. as some wire

24	transfer documents; is that correct?

25	 A	Yes, they're collection drafts.

LAS VEGAS, NEVADA REPORTING SERVICES (702) 382-7530

William Leaver?

A	Yes, it was.

Does he currently have posseision



Leavers findings were that the same person who

filled out the two sheet Wde the same person who

filled out the six withdrawal slips; is that

M. SMITH: We , 11 have Mr. Leaver, of

The same ones that are found in Exhibit

the two sheet prepared by Mr. Salem;

NEVADA REPORTING SERVICES (702) 382-7530
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filled out when you go into a bank to open an

On this it gives the deceased victim's

name, Maszetti, his account number, his address, his

Social Security number -- the location is

California -- and also his date of birth, which

indicated 6/20 of '121 and the signature at the

07166-SALE0043
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During the investigation, corporate

security had conducted an interview with Mr.

Did you come across some information

that the date of birth had been altered on the

with your indulgence, can I look for it

You did come across some documentation,

did you not Detective, that would seem to indicate

that the date of birth for Mr. Mazzetti's account

07166-SALE0045
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account number 177-0018239-3, dated 4/5 of '93, the

withdrawal was $8,000 to the name of Mazzetti.

was in reference to Count Number V, just so we got

07165-SALE0047

JA009228



BY MR. SMITH:

Pleaaa	Xot, sorry, air -- go ahead.

The second withdrawal is account number

177-0018239-3, dated 4/13 in the name of Mazzetti,

for the amount of $8,000, with a signature at the

bottom that appears to be under the name Mazzetti.

MR. SMITH: Okay. Ladies and

gentlemen, that would be in reference to Count 6.

THE wITHESS: The next withdrawal slip

Is account number 177-0018239-3, dated 3/26 Of '93,

in the name of Kazzetti, for the amount of $85,000,

with the signature --a signature at the bottom in

the name of Mazzetti.

MR, SMITH: Ladies and gentlemen, that

would be in reference to Count IV.

THE WITNESS: The next withdrawal is

17	ace unt number 007-	 a

18	of Mazzetti, to the amount of $14,663.77, with a

19	signature at the bottom in the name of Mazzetti.

20	 M. SMITH: Ladies and gentlemen,

21	that's in reference to Count

22	 THE WITNESS: The next withdrawal is

23	account number 7-902372-1, dated 3/3 in the name of

24	Mazzetti, for the amount of $7,000, and a signature

25	that appears at the bottom in the name of Mazzetti.

LAS VEGAS, NEVA0A REPORTING SERVICES (702)	2-7530
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Mt. Salem impersonate Mr. Mazzetti on those various

dates, taking thousands of various monies from the

not, that if he signed those and if his telephone

number came back to his residence, that it was he

who signed those withdrawal Slips and that it Was he

THE FOREPERSON: Any members Of the

THE FOREPERSON: Detective, in this

case, by law, these proceedings are secret and you

statement made in the presence of the Grand Jury, or

any information obtained by the Grand Jury.

Failure to comply with this admonition

is a gross misdemeanor/ punishable by a year in the

Clark County Detention Center and a $3,000 fine.

07166-SALE0050
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contempt of court, punishable by an additional $500

fine and 25 days in the Clark County Detention

testimony that you are about to give upon the

07166-SALE0051

JA009232
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LAS VEGAS, NEVADA REPORTING SERVICES 702 82-7530

Where do yol, reside,. Mr. Johnson?

Saugus, California.

What is your occupation?

I'm director of corporate security for

California Federal Bank.

Where does California Federal Bank do

business at?

A	California, Nevada, Florida.

Now long have you been doing your

particular job?

A	Eight years.

And what kind of other background do

you have?

A	Law enforcement.

You were a police officer, I take it?

A	Yea.

17	 Q	Somewhere in California?

18	 A	L.A.P.D. and Tulare County Sheriff's

19	Department.

20 Q	what kind of work did you do as a law

21	enforcement officer, some of the investigations that

22	you've been involved in?

23	 A	I was assigned to homicide, patrol,

24	burglary detail, detective; bunko also.

25	 Q	As head of the corporate security for

07166-SALE0053

JA009234



34
California Federal Bank, would it be fair to say

2	that you commence and you conduct investigations

concerning California Federal Bank being stolen

4	from, internal problems involving employees, such as

5	embezzlement, that sort of thing; is that correct?

6	 A	Thatts correct; exactly, protection of

7	the assets.

8	 Let me direct your attention to a

9	specific individual by the name of Camillo Mazzetti.

10	 Do you know that name?

11	 A	Yes, I do.

12	 Q	Did you come to find out in 1993

13	sometime that Mr. Mazzetti had various accounts with

14	California Federal Bank?

15	 A	Yes, sir.

16	 Q	And so would it be fair to say that Mr.

17	Mazzetti Was a customer of California Federal Bank;

1B	is that correct?

19	 A	Yes.

20	 0	Now, did you also become aware that Mr.

21	Mazzetti sometime in 1993 died?

22	 A	Yes.

23	 Q	me show you Grand Jury Exhibit

24	Number 50 and see if you can recognize that

25

LAS VEGAS, NEVADA REPORTING SERVICES (702) 382-7530

particular document.
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35

from?

E0055

JA009236

A	Yes, I do. This is --

Q	It's a photocopy of the death

certificate from Mr. Maszetti, is it not?

A	Yeaf it is.

Can you testify that this particular

death certificate relates to the same Camillo

Maztetti that had various account; with California

Federal sank?

A	Yes.

And, actually, you're the One whO

obtained that particular document, correct?

Yee.

Can you tell us where you obtained it

A	County Administrator 	 oun o

Los Anodes,

And you have seen death certificates

before; it that correct?

Yes. I have.

Does that appear to be a true and

accurate copy of a death certificate that's kept in

the normal course of business with -- what did you

say -- the Coroner's Of

A	Well this is the County Administrator.

The Coroner's Office would issue this, though, yes.

LAS VEGAS, NEVADA REPORTING SERVICES ( 02) 3E2-7530
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Does that look like a death certificate

accurate document; it's not a bogus document?

February 2nd of '93.

All right. sow, you didn't become

that Mr. marzetti died until, of course,

sometime after that; isn't that fair to say?

about your investigation and how it started and some

I received word on a possible problem

over here with a branch at -- our branch located on

Marylaad Parkway an April 16th of 1g93

07166-SALE0056

JA009237



37

1Q	Would that be April 16 of 1993?

2	 A	yes. Yes, sir.

3	 Q	Go ahead.

4	 A	They relayed information to me that

5	they felt a customer from our Inglewood branch

6	located in California had made withdrawals at their

7	branch, and now on April 16th they felt that this

5	was not our true customer that was making these

9	withdrawals.

10	 MR. SMITH: Okay. Ladies and

11	gentlemen, please do not take that into

12	consideration as to what Mr. Johnson did next, not

411	13	for the truth of the matter asserted, because it is

14	technically hearsay.

iS	BY MR. SmITE:

16	 Please proceed, sir.

17	 My investigation started at that time.

iS	 In looking up the account number that

19	they gave me, the 177 branch, the Maryland Parkway

20	branch, and by going over the history on that

21	account, and the information that they cave me,

22	showed that on march 3rd, an individual came into

23	the Maryland Parkway branch, identified himself as

24	Camillo Masaetti, advised the branch that he had two

25	accounts at the Inglewood branch, and that he was

LAS VEGAS, NEVADA REPORTING SERVICES (702) 382-7536
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3rd --

A	Yes.

-- 199, in the amount of #7.000?

A	Yes,.

Who has those original documents right

now?

A	Metropolitan Police Department.

!!'	R • t occtrred on	 chat

30

1A	When a withdr-lwal is done from a

2	branch, interbranch -- in other words, the

3	individual has his aocouvt in Inglewood, and he,s

4	making this withdrawal at any other branch, this

being Maryland Parkway, the Maryland Parkway branch

does not hare a signature card of that individual;

7	the Inglewood branch does.

8	 So the procedure is that Maryland

Parkway would call Inglewood; they fax a copy of the

10	signature card. The procedure is that the Maryland

11	Parkway would compare signatures of the withdrawal

12	ticket in front of you, along with the faxed copy of

13	the signature card from Inglewood.

14	 Q	et me show you Grand Jury Exhibit

15	Number 2.

16	 Does that appear to be a photograph of

17	the original withdrawal slip of that one that we

LAS VEGAS, NEVADA RP0R'r2NG SER C	(702} 82-7530

07166-SALE0059
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investigation - joint activity between

JA10685-JA10692

LVMPD and FBI, Homick v.
McDaniel, October 9, 2003

44 67	Chart detailing evidence of joint
investigation - information sharing
between LVMPD and FBI, Homick

JA10693-JA10696

v. McDaniel, October 9, 2003

44 68	Chart detailing evidence of joint
investigation - admissions, Homick

JA10697-JA10705

v. McDaniel, October 9, 2003

44 69	Declaration of Joseph Wright,
Homick v. McDaniel (Homick 176),

JA10706-JA10707

October 9, 2003

44 70	Petitioner's Motion for Leave to JA10708-JA10738
45 Conduct Discovery, Homick v. JA10739-JA10756

McDaniel, October 10, 2003

45 71	Recorder's Transcript Re: JA10757-JA10786
Evidentiary Hearing, State v.
Jiminez Case No. C77955, Eighth
Judicial District Court, April 19,
1993

45 72	Transcript of Proceedings Sentence,
State v. Bezak, Case No. CR89-

JA10787-JA10796

1765, Second Judicial District Court,
November 27, 1989 (Jones)

45 73	Response to Motion to Compel JA10797-JA10802
Discovery, Jones v. McDaniel, et al.,
Case No. CV-N-96-633-ECR,
District of Nevada, March 1999
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45 74	Declaration of David J.J. Roger,
Chief Deputy District Attorney,
concerning Jones v. McDaniel, Case

JA10803-JA10805

No. CV-N-96-633 ECR, District of
Nevada, June 30, 1999

45 75	Transcription of VCR Tape of the JA10806-JA10809
Adam Evans hearing in front of
Judge Hardcastle, In The Matter of
Adam Owens Evans, Case No.
J52293, Juvenile Court (Lisle)

45 76	Excerpt of trial record, State v. Lisle JA10810-JA10812
Case No. 129540, Vol. 10 page 15,
March 12, 1996

77	Not Used

78	Not Used

45 79	Letter from Inv. Larry A. JA10813-JA10816
Schuchman, City of Orlando,
Florida, Police Department, to Inv.
Bob Milby, Nevada Division of Inv.
and Narcotics re Terry Carl
Bonnette, January 29, 1981
(Milligan)

45 80	Notice of Entry of Decision and JA10817-JA10838
Order and Amended Findings of
Fact, Conclusions of Law, and
Order, State v. Miranda, Case No.
CO57788, Eighth Judicial District
Court, February 13, 1996

45 81	Reporter's Transcript of JA10839-JA10846
Proceedings, State v. Rippo, Case
No. C106784, Eighth Judicial
District Court, February 8, 1996

45 82	Reporter's Transcript of Calendar JA10847-JA10859
Call, State v. Morelli, Case
Nos.C64603 and C64604, Eighth
Judicial District Court, January 12,
1984 (Snow)
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45 83	Reporter's Transcript of Proceedings JA10860-JA10884
(Testimony of Richard Morelli),
State v. Snow, Case No.C61676,
Eighth Judicial District Court, April
17, 1984

45 84	Letter from Melvyn T. Harmon,
Chief Deputy, Office of the District

JA10885-JA10886

Attorney, To Whom It May Concern
re Richard Joseph Morelli, July 20,
1984 (Snow)

45 85	Deposition of Melvyn T. Harmon,
Esq., Snow v. Angelone, Case No. 6-

JA10887-JA10921

12-89-WPHC, Seventh Judicial
District Court, September 25, 1992

45 86	Las Vegas Review Journal excerpt, JA10922-JA10924
May 3, 2004, "Police Say Binion
Witness Not Credible" (Tabish)

45 87	Letter from Kent R. Robison of JA10925-JA10929
Robison, Belaustegui, Robb and
Sharp, to E. Leslie Combs, Jr., Esq.
Re: Kathryn Cox v. Circus Circus, et
al., October 16, 1995, in relation to
Witter v. McDaniel, CV-S-01-1034-
RLH (LRL), District of Nevada

45 88	LVMPD Certificate of [Informant] JA10930-JA10931
Management Course completion,
April 14, 1994

45 89	Las Vegas Metropolitan Police JA10932-JA10934
Department Cooperating Individual
Agreement and Special Consent and
Waiver of Liability

45 90	David J.J. Roger letter to Nevada JA10935-JA10936
State Parole Board Chairman
regarding Robert Bezak (Jones),
December 3, 1990

45 91	Declaration of Herbert Duzant dated JA10937-JA10938
May 15, 2008

45 92	Records request to Juvenile Justice JA10939-JA10948
Division dated May 14, 2008

12



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

Vol. Title Date Page

45 93	Records request to Nassau County JA10949-JA10973
Department of Social Services dated
May 15, 2008

46 94	Records request to Central Medicaid JA10974-JA10996
Office dated May 15, 2008

46 95	Records request to Central Medicaid JA10997-JA11007
Office dated November 29, 2007

46 96	Records request to Office of the JA11008-JA11010
Clark County District Attorney dated
November 27, 2007 (re
Bongiovanni)

46 97	Records request to Office of the JA11011-JA11013
United States Attorney dated
November 27, 2007 (re
Bongiovanni)

46 98	Records request to the Clark County JA11014-JA11026
District Attorney dated December 5,
2007 (re: Michael Beaudoin, James
Ison, David Jeffrey Levine, Michael
Thomas Christos, Thomas Edward
Sims (deceased), William Burkett
(aka Donald Allen Hill), Diana Hunt
and Michael Rippo)

46 99	Records request to Clark County JA11027-JA11034
District Attorney dated December 5,
2007 (re Victim/Witness
information)

46 100	Records request to Franklin General JA11035-JA11050
Hospital dated November 29, 2007

46 101	Records request to Justice Court,
Criminal Records dated December 5,
2007

JA11051-JA11055

46 102	Records request to Nassau County JA11056-JA11069
Department of Social Services dated
November 28, 2007

46 103	Records request to Nevada JA11070-JA11080
Department of Corrections dated
November 29, 2007 (re: Levine)
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46 104	Records request to Nevada JA11081-JA11095
Department of Parole and Probation
dated November 29, 2007 (re
Levine)

46 105	Records request to Nevada JA11096-JA11103
Department of Parole and Probation
dated April 12, 2007 (re: Rippo)

46 106	Records request to Word of Life JA11104-JA11110
Christian Center Pastor David
Shears, Assistant Pastor Andy Visser
dated November 29, 2007

46 107	Response to records request from JA11111-JA11112
Nevada Department of Parole and
Probation dated December 3, 2007

46 108	Response to records request from JA11113-JA11114
Office of the District Attorney dated
January 28, 2008 (re Victim Witness)

46
109	Response to records request from JA11115-JA11116

Word of Life Christian Center
Assistant Pastor Andy Visser dated
December 11, 2007

46
110	Records request to Franklin General JA11117-JA11128

Hospital dated May 16, 2008 (re:
Stacie Campanelli)

46
111	Records request (FOIA) to Executive JA11129-JA11132

Offices for the United States
Attorneys dated November 27, 2007

46
112	Records request (FOIA) to the FBI

dated November 27, 2007
JA11133-JA11135

46
113	Response to records request to JA11136-JA11137

Executive Offices for the United
States Attorneys, undated

46
114	Records request to Nevada Division

of Child and Family Services dated
JA11138-JA11144

May 16, 2008 (re: Stacie)
46

115	Records request to Claude I. Howard JA11145-JA11156
Children's Center dated May 16,
2008 (re: Stacie Campanelli, Carole
Ann Campanelli (deceased))
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46 116	Records request to Clark County JA111457-JA11171
School District dated May 16, 2008
(re: Stacie Campanelli and Carole
Ann Campanelli (deceased))

46 117	Records request to University JA11172-JA11185
Medical Center dated May 16, 2008
(re: Stacie Campanelli and Carole
Ann Campanelli (deceased))

46 118	Records request to Valley Hospital JA11186-JA11199
Medical Center dated May 16, 2008
(re: Stacie Campanelli and Carole
Ann Campanelli (deceased))

46 119	Records request to Desert Springs JA11200-JA11213
Hospital Medical Center dated May
16, 2008 (re: Stacie Campanelli and
Carole Ann Campanelli (deceased))

46 120	Records request to Reno Police JA11214-JA11221
Department, Records and ID Section
dated May 16, 2008

47 121	Records request to Washoe County JA11222-JA11229
Sheriff's Office dated May 16, 2008

47 122	Records request to Sparks Police JA11230-JA11237
Department dated May 16, 2008

47 123	Response to records request to JA11238-JA11239
Justice Court re: Michael Beaudoin

47 124	Response to records request to JA11240-JA11241
Justice Court re: Michael Thomas
Christos

47 125	Response to records request to JA11242-JA11244
Justice Court re: Thomas Edward
Sims

47 126	Response to records request to JA11245-JA11248
Justice Court re: request and clerk's
notes

127	Omitted.
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47 128	Subpoena to Clark County District JA11249-JA11257
Attorney, Criminal Division (re:
Michael Beaudoin, James Ison,
David Jeffrey Levine, Michael
Thomas Christos, Thomas Edward
Sims (deceased), William Burkett
(aka Donald Allen Hill), Diana Hunt
and Michael Rippo)

47 129	Proposed Order to the Clark County JA11258-JA11267
District Attoreny

47 130	Subpoena to Central Medicaid JA11268-JA11272
Office, New York, New York

47 131	Subpoena to Claude I. Howard JA11273-JA11277
Children's Center

47 132	Subpoena to City of New York,
Department of Social Services

JA11278-JA11282

47 133	Subpoena to Desert Springs Hospital JA11283-JA11288

47 134	Subpoena to Las Vegas Metropolitan JA11289-JA11295
Police Department Fingerprint
Bureau

47 135	Subpoena to Las Vegas Metropolitan JA11296-JA11301
Police Department Communications
Bureau

47 136	Subpoena to Las Vegas Metropolitan JA11302-JA11308
Police Department Confidential
Informant Section

47 137	Subpoena to Las Vegas Metropolitan JA11309-JA11316
Police Department Criminalistics
Bureau

47 138	Subpoena to Las Vegas Metropolitan JA11317-JA11323
Police Department Evidence Vault

47 139	Subpoena to Las Vegas Metropolitan JA11324-JA11330
Police Department Criminal
Intelligence Section

47 140	Subpoena to Las Vegas Metropolitan JA11331-JA11337
Police Department Narcotics
Sections I, II, and III
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47 141	Subpoena to Las Vegas Metropolitan JA11338-JA11344
Police Department Property Crimes
Bureau

47 142	Subpoena to Las Vegas Metropolitan JA11345-JA11352
Police Department Records Bureau

47 143	Subpoena to Las Vegas Metropolitan JA11353-JA11360
Police Department Robbery /
Homicide Bureau

47 144	Subpoena to Nevada Parole and JA11361-JA11368
Probation (re: Michael Beaudoin,
James Ison, David Jeffrey Levine,
Michael Thomas Christos, Thomas
Edward Sims (deceased), William
Burkett (aka Donald Allen Hill),
Diana Hunt and Michael Rippo)

47 145	Proposed Order to the Nevada JA11369-JA11373
Department of Parole and Probation

47 146	Subpoena to Las Vegas Metropolitan JA11374-JA11379
Police Department Gang Crimes
Bureau

47 147	Subpoena to Las Vegas Metropolitan JA11380-JA11385
Police Department SWAT Division

47 148	Subpoena to Las Vegas Metropolitan JA11386-JA11392
Police Department Vice Section

47 149	Subpoena to Clark County Public JA11393-JA11399
Defender (re: Michael Beaudoin,
James Ison, David Jeffrey Levine,
Michael Thomas Christos, Thomas
Edward Sims (deceased), William
Burkett (aka Donald Allen Hill),
Diana Hunt and Michael Rippo)

47 150	Subpoena to Henderson Police JA11400-JA11406
Department (re: Michael Beaudoin,
James Ison, David Jeffrey Levine,
Michael Thomas Christos, Thomas
Edward Sims (deceased), William
Burkett (aka Donald Allen Hill),
Diana Hunt and Michael Rippo)
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47 151	Subpoena to Nevada Department of JA11407-JA11411
Health and Human Services,
Division of Child and Family
Services

47 152	Subpoena to Reno Police Department JA11412-JA11418
(re: Michael Beaudoin, James Ison,
David Jeffrey Levine, Michael
Thomas Christos, Thomas Edward
Sims (deceased), William Burkett
(aka Donald Allen Hill), Diana Hunt
and Michael Rippo)

47 153	Subpoena to Sparks Police JA11419-JA11427
Department (re: Michael Beaudoin,
James Ison, David Jeffrey Levine,
Michael Thomas Christos, Thomas
Edward Sims (deceased), William
Burkett (aka Donald Allen Hill),
Diana Hunt and Michael Rippo)

47 154	Subpoena to University Medical JA11428-JA11432
Center

47 155	Subpoena to Valley Hospital JA11433-JA11438

47 156	Subpoena to Washoe County Public JA11439-JA11445
Defender (re: Michael Beaudoin,
James Ison, David Jeffrey Levine,
Michael Thomas Christos, Thomas
Edward Sims (deceased), William
Burkett (aka Donald Allen Hill),
Diana Hunt and Michael Rippo)

47 157	Subpoena to Washoe County JA11446-JA11453
Sheriff's Office, Records and ID
Section (re: Michael Beaudoin,
James Ison, David Jeffrey Levine,
Michael Thomas Christos, Thomas
Edward Sims (deceased), William
Burkett (aka Donald Allen Hill),
Diana Hunt and Michael Rippo)
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47 158	Subpoena to Washoe County JA11454-JA11460
Sheriff's Office, Forensic Science
Division (re: Michael Beaudoin,
James Ison, David Jeffrey Levine,
Michael Thomas Christos, Thomas
Edward Sims (deceased), William
Burkett (aka Donald Allen Hill),
Diana Hunt and Michael Rippo)

47 159	Deposition Subpoena to Dominic JA11461-JA11463
Campanelli

47 160	Deposition Subpoena to Melody JA11464-JA11466
Anzini

47 161	Subpoena to the Clark County JA11467-JA11471
District Attorney's Office (re: Nancy
Becker)

48 162	Subpoena to Nancy Becker JA11472-JA11476

48 163	Subpoena to Clark County Human JA11477-JA11481
Resources Department (re: Nancy
Becker)

48 164	Subpoena to Nassau County JA11482-JA11486
Department of Social Services

48 165	Subpoena to the Clark County JA11487-JA11490
School District

48 166	Subpoena to the Clark County JA11491-JA11495
District Attorney's Office (re: Gerard
Bongiovanni)

48 167	Subpoena to the Office of the United JA11496-JA11499
States Attorney (re: Gerard
Bongiovanni)

48 168	Subpoena to the Clark County JA11500-JA11505
District Attorney, Victim-Witness
Assistance Center

48 169	Proposed Order to the Clark County JA11506-JA11508
District Attorney, Victim-Witness
Assistance Center
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48 170	Subpoena to the Office of Legal JA11509-JA11513
Services, Executive Offices for
United States Attorneys -- FOIA (re:
Bongiovanni)

48 171	Subpoena to the Federal Bureau of JA11514-JA11518
Investigation (re Bongiovanni)

48 172	Subpoena to the Las Vegas JA11519-JA11522
Metropolitan Police Department,
Criminal Intelligence Section,
Homeland Security Bureau, Special
Operations Division (re
Bongiovanni)

48 173	Subpoena to Leo P. Flangas, Esq. JA11523-JA11526
(re: Bongiovanni)

48 174	Subpoena to Nevada Department of JA11527-JA11530
Investigation

48 175	Subpoena to Bureau of Alcohol,
Tobacco and Firearms

JA11531-JA11534

48 176	Subpoena to Robert Archie (re: JA11535-JA11538
Simms)

48 177	Subpoena to Nevada Department of JA11539-JA11545
Corrections (re: lethal injection)

48 178	Deposition subpoena to Howard JA11546-JA11548
Skolnik, NDOC

48 179	Deposition subpoena to Robert JA11549-JA11551
Bruce Bannister, D.O., NDOC

48 180	Deposition subpoena to Warden Bill JA11552-JA11554
Donat

48
1

181	Deposition subpoena to Stacy Giomi,
Chief, Carson City Fire Department

JA11555-JA11 557

37 Opposition to Motion to Dismiss Petition
for Writ of Habeas Corpus (Post-

05/21/08 JA08758-JA08866

Conviction)

37 Exhibits to Opposition to Motion to Dismiss05/21/08 JA08867-JA08869
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37 329.	Leonard v. McDaniel, Eighth JA08870-JA08884
Judicial District Court, Case No.
C126285, Reply to Opposition to
Motion to Dismiss, filed March 11,
2008.

37 330.	Lopez v. McDaniel, Eighth Judicial JA08885-JA08890
District Court, Case No. C068946,
State's Motion to Dismiss Petition
for Writ of Habeas Corpus, filed
February 15, 2008.

38 331.	Sherman v. McDaniel, Eighth JA08991-JA09002
Judicial District Court, Case No.
C126969, Reply to Opposition to
Motion to Dismiss, filed June 25,
2007.

38 332.	Witter v. McDaniel, Eighth Judicial JA09003-JA09013
District Court, Case No. C117513,
Reply to Opposition to Motion to
Dismiss, filed July 5, 2007.

38 333.	Floyd v. McDaniel, Eighth Judicial JA09014-JA09020
District Court, Case No. C159897,
Recorder's Transcript of Hearing Re:
Defendant's Petition for Writ of
Habeas Corpus, filed December 28,
2007.

38 334.	Floyd v. McDaniel, Eighth Judicial JA09021-JA09027
District Court, Case No. C159897,
State's Opposition to Defendant's
Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus
(Post-Conviction) and Motion to
Dismiss, filed August 18, 2007.

38 335.	State v. Rippo, Eighth Judicial JA09028-JA09073
District Court, Case No. C106784,
Supplemental Brief in Support of
Defendant's Petition for Writ of
Habeas Corpus (Post-Conviction),
filed February 10, 2004.

38 336.	Rippo v. State, Nevada Supreme JA09074-JA09185
Court, Case No. 28865, Appellant's
Opening Brief.
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38 337.	State v. Salem, Eighth Judicial JA09186-JA09200
District Court, Case No. C124980,
Indictment, filed December 16, 1994.

38 338.	State v. Salem, Eighth Judicial JA09201-JA09240
39 District Court, Case No. C124980,

Reporter's Transcript of
JA09241-JA09280

Proceedings, Thursday, December
15, 1994.

39 339.	Declaration of Stacie Campanelli
dated April 29, 2008.

JA09281-JA0289

39 340.	Declaration of Domiano Campanelli,
February 2008, Mastic Beach, N.Y.

JA09290-JA09300

39 341.	Declaration of Sari Heslin dated JA09301-JA09305
February 25, 2008.

39 342.	Declaration of Melody Anzini dated JA09306-JA09311
February 26, 2008.

39 343.	Declaration of Catherine Campanelli
dated February 29, 2008.

JA09312-JA09317

39 344.	Declaration of Jessica Parket-Asaro
dated March 9, 2008.

JA09318-JA09323

39 345.	Declaration of Mark Beeson dated JA09324-JA09328
March 26, 2008.

39 346.	State's Trial Exhibit 1: Laurie JA09329-JA09330
Jacobson photograph

39 347.	State's Trial Exhibit 2: Denise Lizzi
photograph

JA09331-JA09332

39 348.	State's Trial Exhibit 99: Michael JA09333-JA09334
Rippo

39 349.	State's Trial Exhibit 31: Autopsy
photo Denise Lizzi

JA09335-JA09336

39 350.	State's Trial Exhibit 53: Autopsy
photo Laurie Jacobson

JA09337-JA09338

39 351.	State's Trial Exhibit 125: Laurie JA09339-JA09360
Jacobson victim-impact scrapbook
photographs
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39 352.	State's Trial Exhibit 127: Denise JA09361-JA09374
Lizzi victim-impact scrapbook
photographs

39 353.	Declaration of Jay Anzini dated May JA09375-JA09377
10, 2008

39 354.	Declaration of Robert Anzini dated JA09378-JA09381
May 10, 2008

39 355.	Juvenile Records of Stacie JA09382-JA09444
Campanelli

39 356	Blackstone District Court Case JA09445-JA09450
Inquiry: Case No. C136066, State v.
Sims, Case Activity, Calendar,
Minutes

39 357	Justice Court Printout for Thomas JA09451-JA09490
40 Sims JA09491-JA09520

40 358	Justice Court Printout for Michael JA09521-JA09740
41 Beaudoin JA09741-JA09815

41 359	Blackstone District Court Case JA09816-JA09829
Inquiry: Case No. C102962, State v.
Beaudoin, Case Activity, Calendar,
Minutes

41 360	Blackstone District Court Case JA09830-JA09838
Inquiry: Case No. C95279, State v.
Beaudoin, Case Activity, Calendar,
Minutes

41 361	Blackstone District Court Case JA09839-JA09847
Inquiry: Case No. C130797, State v.
Beaudoin, Case Activity, Calendar,
Minutes

41 362	Blackstone District Court Case JA09848-JA09852
Inquiry: Case No. C134430, State v.
Beaudoin, Case Activity, Calendar,
Minutes

41 363	Justice Court Printout for Thomas JA09952-JA09907
Christos

41 364	Justice Court Printout for James Ison JA09908-JA09930
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41 365	State v. Rippo, Eighth Judicial JA09931-JA09933
District Court, Case No. C106784,
Order dated September 22, 1993

41 366	Declaration of Michael Beaudoin
dated May 18, 2008

JA09934-JA09935

41 367	State v. Rippo, Eighth Judicial JA09936-JA09941
District Court, Case No. C106784,
Amended Indictment, dated January
3, 1996

41 368	State's Trial Exhibits 21, 24, 26, 27,
28, 32, 34, 38, 39, 40, 41, 42, 45, 46,
47, 48, 51, 56, 57, 58, 60, 61, 62

JA09942-JA09965

41 369	State's Trial Exhibit 54 JA09966-JA09967

41 370	Letter from Glen Whorton, Nevada JA09968-JA09969
Department of Corrections, to Robert
Crowley dated August 29 1997

41 371	Letter from Jennifer Schlotterbeck to JA09970-JA09971
Ted D'Amico, M.D., Nevada
Department of Corrections dated
March 24, 2004

41 372	Letter from Michael Pescetta to Glen JA09972-JA09977
Whorton, Nevada Department of
Corrections dated September 23,
2004

41 373	State v. Rippo, Eighth Judicial JA09978-JA09981
District Court, Case No. C106784,
Warrant of Execution dated May 17,
1996

41 374	Declaration of William Burkett dated JA09982-JA09984
May 12, 2008

41 375	Handwritten Notes of William Hehn JA09985-JA09986

48 Objection to Proposed Order 11/21/08 JA11612-JA11647

48 Opposition to Motion for Discovery 06/09/08 JA11558-JA11563

2 Order 11/12/92 JA00264-JA00265

2 Order 11/18/92 JA00266-JA00267

2 Order 09/22/93 JA00320-JA00321
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3 Order 04/22/94 JA00619-JA00320

15 Order 03/08/96 JA03412

41 Order Appointing Counsel 02/13/08 JA09987-JA09988

5B Order Sealing Affidavit 09/30/93 JA 1401-180 to
JA 1401-185

2 Order to Produce Handwriting / 09/14/92 JA00252-JA00253
Handprinting Exemplar

17 Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus 12/04/98 JA04040-JA04047
(Post-Conviction) and Appointment of
Counsel

19 Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus (Post- 01/15/08 JA04415-JA04570
20 Conviction) JA04571-JA04609

20 Exhibits to Petition for Writ of Habeas 01/15/08 JA04610-JA04619
Corpus

20 101.	Bennett v. State, No. 38934 JA04620-JA04647
Respondent's Answering Brief
(November 26, 2002)

20 102.	State v. Colwell, No. C123476, JA04648-JA04650
Findings, Determinations and
Imposition of Sentence (August 10,
1995)

20 103.	Doleman v. State, No. 33424 Order JA04651-JA04653
Dismissing Appeal (March 17, 2000)

20 104.	Farmer v. Director, Nevada Dept. of JA04654-JA04660
Prisons, No. 18052 Order Dismissing
Appeal (March 31, 1988)

20 105.	Farmer v. State, No. 22562, Order JA04661-JA04663
Dismissing Appeal (February 20,
1992)

20 106.	Farmer v. State, No. 29120, Order JA04664-JA04670
Dismissing Appeal (November 20,
1997)

20 107.	Feazell v. State, No. 37789, Order JA04671-JA04679
Affirming in Part and Vacating in
Part (November 14, 2002)

20 108.	Hankins v. State, No. 20780, Order JA04680-JA04683
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of Remand (April 24, 1990)
20 JA04684-JA04689

109.	Hardison v. State, No. 24195, Order
of Remand (May 24, 1994)

20 JA04690-JA04692
110.	Hill v. State, No. 18253, Order

Dismissing Appeal (June 29, 1987)
20 JA04693-JA04696

111.	Jones v. State, No. 24497 Order
Dismissing Appeal (August 28,
1996)

20 JA04697-JA04712
112.	Jones v. McDaniel, et al., No.

39091, Order of Affirmance
(December 19, 2002)

20 JA04713-JA04715
113.	Milligan v. State, No. 21504 Order

Dismissing Appeal (June 17, 1991)
20 JA04716-JA04735

114.	Milligan v. Warden, No. 37845,
Order of Affirmance (July 24, 2002)

20 JA04736-JA04753
115.	Moran v. State, No. 28188, Order

Dismissing Appeal (March 21, 1996)
20 JA04754-JA04764

116.	Neuschafer v. Warden, No. 18371,
Order Dismissing Appeal (August
19, 1987)

20 JA04765-JA04769
117.	Nevius v. Sumner (Nevius I), Nos.

17059, 17060, Order Dismissing
Appeal and Denying Petition
(February 19, 1986)

20 JA04770-JA04783
118.	Nevius v. Warden (Nevius II), Nos.

29027, 29028, Order Dismissing
Appeal and Denying Petition for
Writ of Habeas Corpus (October 9,
1996)

20 JA04784-JA04788
119.	Nevius v. Warden (Nevius III), Nos.

29027, 29028, Order Denying
Rehearing (July 17, 1998)

20 JA04789-JA04796
120.	Nevius v. McDaniel, D. Nev. No.

CV-N-96-785-HDM-(RAM),
Response to Nevius' Supplemental
Memo at 3 (October 18, 1999)
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20 JA04797-JA04803
121.	O'Neill v. State, No. 39143, Order of

Reversal and Remand (December 18,
2002)

20 JA04804-JA04807
122.	Rider v. State, No. 20925, Order

(April 30, 1990)
20 JA04808-JA04812

123.	Riley v. State, No. 33750, Order
Dismissing Appeal (November 19,
1999)

20 JA04813-JA04817
124.	Rogers v. Warden, No. 22858, Order

Dismissing Appeal (May 28, 1993),
Amended Order Dismissing Appeal
(June 4, 1993)

21 JA04818-JA04825
125.	Rogers v. Warden, No. 36137, Order

of Affirmance (May 13, 2002)
21 JA04826-JA04830

126.	Sechrest v. State, No 29170, Order
Dismissing Appeal (November 20,
1997)

21 JA04831-JA04834
127.	Smith v. State, No. 20959, Order of

Remand (September 14, 1990)
21 JA04835-JA04842

128.	Stevens v. State, No. 24138, Order
of Remand (July 8, 1994)

21 JA04843-JA04848
129.	Wade v. State, No. 37467, Order of

Affirmance (October 11, 2001)
21 JA04849-JA04852

130.	Williams v. State, No. 20732, Order
Dismissing Appeal (July 18, 1990)

21 JA04853-JA04857
131.	Williams v. Warden, No. 29084,

Order Dismissing Appeal (August
29, 1997)

21 JA04858-JA04861
132.	Ybarra v. Director, Nevada State

Prison, No. 19705, Order
Dismissing Appeal (June 29, 1989)

21 JA04862-JA04873
133.	Ybarra v. Warden, No. 43981, Order

Affirming in Part, Reversing in Part,
and Remanding (November 28,
2005)
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21 134.	Ybarra v. Warden, No. 43981, Order JA04874-JA04879
Denying Rehearing (February 2,
2006)

21 135.	Rippo v. State; Bejarano v. State, JA04880-JA04883
No. 44094, No. 44297, Order
Directing Oral Argument (March 16,
2006)

21 136.	State v. Rippo, Case No. C106784, JA04884-JA04931
Supplemental Brief in Support of
Defendant's Petition for Writ of
Habeas Corpus (Post-Conviction),
February 10, 2004

21 137.	State v. Rippo, Case No. C106784, JA04932-JA04935
Findings of Fact, Conclusions of
Law and Order, December 1, 2004

21 138.	Rippo v. State, S. C. Case No. JA04936-JA04986
44094, Appellant's Opening Brief,
May 19, 2005

21 139.	Rippo v. State, S. C. Case No. JA04987-JA05048
44094, Respondent's Answering
Brief, June 17, 2005

22 140.	Rippo v. State, S. C. Case No. JA05049-JA05079
44094, Appellant's Reply Brief,
September 28, 2005

22 141.	Rippo v. State, S. C. Case No. JA05080-JA05100
44094, Appellant's Supplemental
Brief As Ordered By This Court,
December 12, 2005

22 201.	Rippo v. State, Nevada Supreme JA05101-JA05123
Court Case No. 28865, Opinion filed
October 1, 1997

22 202.	Rippo v. State, Nevada Supreme JA05124-JA05143
Court Case No. 44094, Affirmance
filed November 16, 2006

22 203.	Confidential Execution Manual,
Procedures for Executing the Death

JA05144-JA05186

Penalty, Nevada State Prison
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22 204.	Brief of Amici Curiae in Support of JA05187-JA05211
Petitioner, United States Supreme
Court Case No. 03-6821, David
Larry Nelson v. Donal Campbell and
Grantt Culliver, October Term, 2003

22 205.	Leonidas G. Koniaris, Teresa A. JA05212-JA05214
Zimmers, David A. Lubarsky, and
Jonathan P. Sheldon, Inadequate
Anaesthesia in Lethal Injection for
Execution, Vol. 365, April 6, 2005,
at has ://www.thelancet.com

22 206.	Declaration of Mark J.S. Heath, JA05215-JA05298
23 M.D., dated May 16, 2006, including

attached exhibits
JA05299-JA05340

23 207.	"Lethal Injection: Chemical JA05341-JA05348
Asphyxiation?" Teresa A. Zimmers,
Jonathan Sheldon, David A.
Lubarsky, Francisco Lopez-Munoz,
Linda Waterman, Richard Weisman,
Leonida G. Kniaris, PloS Medicine,
April 2007, Vol. 4, Issue 4

23 208.	Rippo v. State, Nevada Supreme JA05349-JA05452
Court Case No. 28865, Appellant's
Opening Brief

23 209.	Rippo v. State, Nevada Supreme JA05453-JA05488
Court Case No. 28865, Appellant's
Reply Brief

23 210.	Rippo v. State, Nevada Supreme JA05489-JA05538
Court Case No. 44094, Appellant's
Opening Brief, filed May 19, 2005

24 211.	Rippo v. State, Nevada Supreme JA05539-JA05568
Court Case No. 44094, Appellant's
Reply Brief, filed September 28,
2005

24 212.	Rippo v. State, Nevada Supreme JA05569-JA05588
Court Case No. 44094,Appellant's
Supplemental Brief as Ordered by
this Court filed December 22, 2005
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24 213.	Rippo v. State, Nevada Supreme JA05589-JA05591
Court Case No. 44094, Order
Directing Oral Argument filed
March 16, 2006

24 214.	Rippo v. State, Nevada Supreme JA05592-JA05627
Court Case No. 44094, Transcript of
Oral Argument on June 13, 2006

24 215.	Rippo v. State, Nevada Supreme JA05628-JA05635
Court Case No. 44094, Appellant's
Petition for Rehearing filed
December 11, 2006

24 216.	Supplemental Points and Authorities
in Support of Petition for Writ of

JA05636-JA05737

Habeas Corpus (Post-Conviction)
and attached exhibits filed August 8,
2002

24 217.	Letter dated August 20, 2004 from JA05738
Rippo to Judge Mosley

24 218.	State v. Rippo, Case No. 106784, JA05739-JA05741
Amended Notice of Intent to Seek
Death Penalty, filed March 24, 1994

24 219.	State v. Rippo, Case No. 106784, JA05742-JA05782
Jury Instructions, filed March 6,
1996

25 220.	State v. Rippo, Case No. 106784, JA05783-JA05785
Notice of Alibi, filed September 2,
1993

25 221.	Affidavit of Alice May Starr dated JA05786-JA05791
January 26, 1994

25 222.	Letter dated October 12, 1993 from JA05792-JA05795
Starr to President Clinton

25 223.	State v. Rippo, Case No. 106784, JA05796-JA05801
Order Sealing Affidavit (and
exhibits), dated September 30, 1993

25 224.	Las Vegas Metropolitan Police JA05802-JA05803
Department Property Report dated
September 30, 1993
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25 225.	Letter dated November T?, 1993
from Starr to Rex Bell, District

JA05804-JA05807

Attorney

25 226.	State v. Rippo, Case No. C57388, JA05808-JA05812
Draft Affidavit in Support of Motion
to Withdraw Guilty Plea

25 227.	Justice Court Record, Thomas JA05813-JA05881
Edward Sims

25 228.	Justice Court Record, Michael JA05882-JA06032
26 Angelo Beaudoin JA06033-JA06282
27 JA06283-JA06334

27 229.	Las Vegas Metropolitan Police JA06335-JA06349
Department Voluntary Statement of
Michael Angelo Beaudoin dated
March 1, 1992

27 230.	Justice Court Record, Michael JA06350-JA06403
Thomas Christos

27 231.	Justice Court Record, David Jeffrey JA06404-JA06417
Levine

27 232.	Justice Court Record, James Robert JA06418-JA06427
Ison

27 233.	MMPI (Minnesota Multiphasic JA06428-JA06434
Personality Inventory) Scoring for
Diana Hunt dated September 2, 1992

27 234.	Handwritten Declaration of James JA06435-JA06436
Ison dated November 30, 2007

27 235.	Handwritten Declaration of David JA06437-JA06438
Levine dated November 20, 2007

27 236.	United States v. Bongiovanni, CR-S- JA06439-JA06483
96-98-LDG(RJJ), Government's
Trial Memorandum, filed August
25, 1997

27 237.	United States v. Bongiovanni, CR-S- JA06484-JA06511
96-98-LDG(RJJ), Motion to Dismiss
for Outrageous Government
Misconduct, filed September 13,
1996
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28 238.	United States v. Bongiovanni, CR-S- JA06512-JA06689
96-98-LDG(RJJ), Transcript of Jury
Trial Day 2, December 3, 1997

28 239.	United States v. Bongiovanni, CR-S- JA06690-JA06761
29 96-98-LDG(RJJ), Transcript of Jury JA06762-JA06933

Trial Day 3, December 4, 1997

29 240.	United States v. Bongiovanni, CR-S- JA06734-JA07011
30 96-98-LDG(RJJ), Transcript of Jury JA07012-JA07133

Trial Day 4, December 8, 1997

30 241.	United States v. Bongiovanni, CR-S- JA07134-JA07261
31 96-98-LDG(RJJ), Transcript of Jury JA07262-JA06332

Trial Day 6, December 10, 1997

31 242.	United States v. Bongiovanni, CR-S- JA07333-JA07382
96-98-LDG(RJJ), Transcript of Jury
Trial Day 8, December 15, 1997

31 243.	United States v. Bongiovanni, CR-S- JA07383-JA07511
32 96-98-LDG(RJJ), Transcript of Jury JA07512-JA07525

Trial Day 9, December 16, 1997

32 244.	Rippo v. State, Nevada Supreme JA07526-JA07641
Court Case No. 28865, Respondent's
Answering Brief, filed February 14,
1997

32 245.	United States v. Bongiovanni, CR-S- JA07642-JA07709
96-98-LDG(RJJ), Government's
Trial Memorandum, filed December
2, 1997

32 246.	State v. Salem, Eighth Judicial JA07710-JA07713
District Court, Clark County,
Nevada, Case No. 124980, Criminal
Court Minutes

32 247.	State v. Rippo, Eighth Judicial JA07714-JA07719
District Court, Clark County,
Nevada, Case No. 106784, Motion
for New Trial, filed April 29, 1996

32 248.	United States v. Bongiovanni, CR-S- JA07720-JA07751
96-98-LDG(RJJ), Superseding
Criminal Indictment, filed May 6,
1997
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33 249.	In the Matter of the Application of
the United States for an Order

JA07752-JA07756

Authorizing the Interception of Wire
Communications dated October 11,
1995

33 250.	Clark County School District JA07757-JA07762
Records for Michael D. Rippo

33 251.	Neuropsychological Assessment,
Thomas F. Kinsora, Ph.D., dated

JA07763-JA07772

February 1, 1996

33 252.	Addendum to Neurological JA07773-JA07775
Assessment Report, Thomas F.
Kinsors, Ph.D., dated March 12,
1996

33 253.	Pre-Sentence Report, State v. Rippo, JA07776-JA07782
Case No. 97388, dated April 23,
1982

33 254.	Psychiatric Evaluation, Norton A. JA07783-JA07789
Roitman, M.D., dated February 17,
1996

33 255.	SCOPE printout for Carole Ann JA07790
Rippo

33 256.	Progress Reports dated October 15,
1981

JA07791-JA07792

33 257.	Supplemental Report, Case No. JA07793-JA07801
23042, Juvenile Division, Clark
County, Nevada, filed April 29, 1981

33 258.	Order, Case No. 23042, Juvenile JA07802-JA07803
Division, Clark County, Nevada,
filed May 9, 1981

33 259.	Terms of Probation, Case No. 23042,
Juvenile Division, Clark County,
Nevada, filed May 1, 1981

JA07804-JA07805

33 260.	Transcript of Proceedings, Case No. JA07806-JA07811
23042, Juvenile Division, Clark
County, Nevada, filed May 14, 1981
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33 261.	Petition No. 1, Recommendation for JA07812
Adjudication and Order of Approval,
Case No. 23042, Juvenile Division,
Clark County, Nevada, filed April
19, 1981

33 262.	Petition, Case No. 23042, Juvenile JA07813
Division, Clark County, Nevada,
filed April 8, 1981

33 263.	Certification, Case No. 23042,
Juvenile Division, Clark County,
Nevada, filed October 19, 1981

JA07814

33 264.	Probation Officer's Report, Case No. JA07815-JA07823
23042, Juvenile Division, Clark
County, Nevada, filed April 29, 1981

33 265.	Baseline Psychiatric Evaluation,
Southern Desert Correctional Center,
by Franklin D. Master, M.D., dated

JA07824

April 9, 1982

33 266.	Confidential Psychological JA07825-JA07827
Evaluation by Eric S. Smith, Ph.D.,
Timothy L, Boyles, M.A., James F.
Triggs, Ed.D., dated February 11,
1982

33 267.	Petition, Case No. 23042, Juvenile JA07828-JA07829
Division, Clark County, Nevada,
filed January 27, 1982

33 268.	Petition, Case No. 23042, Juvenile JA07830-JA07831
Division, Clark County, Nevada,
filed January 27, 1982

33 269.	Petition, Case No. 23042, Juvenile JA07832-JA07833
Division, Clark County, Nevada,
filed January 27, 1982

33 270.	Petition, Case No. 23042, Juvenile JA07834-JA07835
Division, Clark County, Nevada,
filed January 27, 1982

33 271.	Petition, Case No. 23042, Juvenile JA07836-JA07837
Division, Clark County, Nevada,
filed January 27, 1982
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33 272.	Petition, Case No. 23042, Juvenile JA07836-JA07837
Division, Clark County, Nevada,
filed January 27, 1982

33 273.	Las Vegas Metropolitan Police JA07838
Department Arrest Report dated
January 27, 1982

33 274.	Petition, Case No. 23042, Juvenile JA07839-JA07840
Division, Clark County, Nevada,
filed January 29, 1982

33 275.	Certification Report, Case No. JA07841-JA07853
23042, Juvenile Division, Clark
County, Nevada, filed February 23,
1982

33 276.	Petition, Case No. 23042, Juvenile JA07854
Division, Clark County, Nevada,
filed February 2, 1982

33 277.	Judgment of Conviction, Case No. JA07855
C57388, State v. Rippo, Clark
County, Nevada, filed May 28, 1982

33 278.	Psychological Report: Corrections JA07856-JA07859
Master, dated June 2, 1982

33 279.	Test of Educational Development
dated March 9, 1983

JA07860-JA07862

33 280.	Psychological Evaluation dated JA07863
December 2, 1983

33 281.	Parole Progress Report, March 1985 JA07864-JA07865
Agenda

33 282.	Institutional Progress Report, March JA07866-JA07868
1987 Agenda

33 283.	Psychological Evaluation for Parole
dated January 29, 1987

JA07869

33 284.	Psychological Evaluation for Parole
dated August 12, 1988

JA07870

33 285.	Parole Progress Report, September JA07871-JA07872
1988 Agenda
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33 286.	Psychological Evaluation dated JA07873
August 23, 1989

33 287.	Parole Progress Report, September JA07874-JA07875
1989 Agenda

33 288.	Parole Officers' Notes beginning JA07876-JA07884
December 4, 1989

33 289.	Institutional Progress Report dated JA07885-JA07886
May 1993

33 290.	Health Services, Psychology Referral JA07887
Form dated April 28, 1993

33 291.	Handwritten notes dated February JA07888
17, 1994

33 292.	Handwritten notes dated March 9,
1994

JA07889

33 293.	Handwritten exam notes (Roitman)
dated January 13, 1996

JA07890-JA07894

33 294.	Psychological Panel Results JA07895
Notification dated January 10, 1996

33 295.	Norton A. Roitman, Addendum,
dated March 11, 1996

JA07896-JA07897

33 296.	Bongiovanni Off the Bench, Las JA07898-JA07899
Vegas Sun, April 18, 1996

33 297.	Fraud probe led to judge, Las Vegas JA07900
Sun, April 18, 1996

33 298.	Charge opens judge's race, Las JA07901-JA07902
Vegas Sun, April 18, 1996

33 299.	Judge Bongiovanni Indicted, Las JA07903
Vegas Sun, April 18, 1986

33 300.	Judge's actions examined, Las Vegas JA07904-JA07906
Review-Journal, April 19, 1996

33 301.	Mental Health Progress Notes dated JA07907
June 20, 1993

33 302.	Affidavit of David M. Schieck dated JA07908
March 16, 1998
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33 303.	Declaration of Carole A. Duncan
dated January 19, 2000

JA07909-JA07910

33 304.	Union Free School #24, Pupil JA07911-JA07912
History Record, Michael Campanelli

33 305.	United States v. Bongiovanni, CR-S- JA07913-JA08006
34 96-98-LDG(RJJ), Transcript of Jury JA08007-JA08039

Trial Day 7, October 27, 1998

34 306.	United States v. Bongiovanni, CR-S- JA08040-JA08155
96-98-LDG(RJJ), Transcript of Jury
Trial Day 8, October 28, 1998

34 307.	United States v. Bongiovanni, CR-S- JA08156-JA08225
96-98-LDG(RJJ), Emergency Motion
to Disqualify John Fadgen, Esq.
From Representing Defendant
Bongiovanni at Trial, July 24, 1997

308.	OMITTED

34 309.	United States v. Bongiovanni, CR-S- JA08226-JA08246
96-98-LDG(RJJ), Notice of Tape
Recordings Intended for Use in
Government's Case in Chief, filed
August 2, 1996

35 310.	Letter from Donald J. Green
requesting additional discovery dated

JA08247-JA08253

July 9, 1996

35 311.	United States v. Bongiovanni, CR-S- JA08254-JA08399
96-98-LDG(RJJ), Transcript of Jury
Trial Day 5, December 9, 1997

35 312.	State v. Rippo, Eighth Judicial JA08400-JA08405
District Court, Clark County,
Nevada, Case No. 106784, Answer
in Opposition to Motion for New
Trial, filed May 1, 1996
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35 313.	State v. Rippo, Eighth Judicial JA08406-JA08413
District Court, Clark County,
Nevada, Case No. 106784,
Defendant's Motion to Strike
Aggravating Circumstances
Numbered 1 and 2 and for
Specificity as to Aggravating
Circumstance Number 4, filed
August 20, 1993

35 314.	State v. Rippo, Eighth Judicial JA08414-JA08417
District Court, Clark County,
Nevada, Case No. 106784, State's
Response to Defendant's Motion to
Strike Aggravating Circumstance
Numbered 1 and 2 and for
Specificity as to Aggravating
Circumstance Number 4, filed
February 11, 1994

35 315.	State v. Rippo, Eighth Judicial JA08418-JA08419
District Court, Clark County,
Nevada, Case No. 106784, Special
Verdict filed March 14, 1996

35 316.	State v. Rippo, Eighth Judicial JA08420-JA08421
District Court, Clark County,
Nevada, Case No. 106784, Special
Verdict filed March 14, 1996

35 317.	Social History JA08422-JA08496
36 JA08497-8538

36 318.	Parental Agreement, Case No. JA08539
23042, Juvenile Division, Clark
County, Nevada, dated April 29,
1981

36 319.	Mark D. Cunningham, Ph.D., and JA08540-JA08564
Thomas J. Reidy, Ph.D., Integrating
Base Rate Data in Violence Risk
Assessments at Capital Sentencing,
16 Behavioral Sciences and the Law
71, 88-89 (1998)

36 320.	Letter from Michael Rippo to Steve JA08565
Wolfson dated April 17, 1996

36 321.	Report of Jonathan Mack, Ph.D. JA08566-JA08596
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36 322.	Trial Exhibit: Photograph of Michael JA08597
Rippo

36 323.	State v. Rippo, Eighth Judicial JA08598-JA08605
District Court, Clark County,
Nevada, Case No. 106784,
Application and Order for Fee in
Excess of Statutory Amount for
Investigator, filed December 3, 1996

36 324.	Wiretap Transcript, Tommy Simms JA08606-JA08609
[sic], dated June 8, 1992

36 325.	State v. Rippo, Eighth Judicial JA08610-JA08619
District Court, Clark County,
Nevada, Case Nos. 57388, 57399,
Reporter's Transcript of Proceedings
-- Continued Initial Arraignment,
heard March 25, 1982

36 326.	State v. Rippo, Eighth Judicial JA08620-JA08626
District Court, Clark County,
Nevada, Case Nos. 57388, 57399,
Reporter's Transcript of Further
Proceedings and/or Continued Initial
Arraignment heard March 30, 1982

36 327.	State v. Rippo, Eighth Judicial JA08627-JA08652
District Court, Clark County,
Nevada, Case No. C106784,
Instructions to the Jury, filed March
14, 1996

36 328.	Declaration of Elisabeth B. Stanton,
dated January 15, 2008

JA08653-JA08664

48 Reply to Opposition to Motion to Dismiss 06/09/08 JA11564-JA11574

48 Reply to Opposition to Motion for Leave to 09/16/08 JA11575-JA11585
Conduct Discovery

1 Reporter's Transcript of Arraignment 07/06/92 JA00242-JA00245

2 Reporter's Transcript of Arraignment 07/20/92 JA00246-JA00251

36 Reporter's Transcript of Defendant's 02/11/08 JA08665-JA08668
Motion for Appointment of Counsel

2 Reporter's Transcript of Defendant's 02/14/94 JA00378-JA00399
Motion to Continue Trial Proceedings;
Defendant's Motion to Disqualify District
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Vol. Title Date Page

Attorney's Office

19 Reporter's Transcript of Evidentiary 09/10/04 JA04347-JA04408
Hearing

48 Reporter's Transcript of Hearing 09/22/08 JA11586-JA11602

2 Reporter's Transcript of Hearing in re 09/20/93 JA00316-JA00319
Attorney General's Motion to Quash and for
Protective Order

2 Reporter's Transcript of Hearing in re 09/10/93 JA00304-JA00315
Motion to Continue Jury Trial

3 Reporter's Transcript of Motions Hearing 03/09/94 JA00565-JA00569

18 Reporter's Transcript of Preliminary [sic] 11/27/02 JA04202-JA04204
Hearing

19 Reporter's Transcript of Proceedings before
the Honorable Donald M. Mosely

08/20/04 JA04321-JA04346

17 Reporter's Transcript of Proceedings: 05/02/02 JA04048-JA04051
Argument and Decision

1 Reporter's Transcript of Proceedings: 06/04/92 JA00001-JA00234
Grand Jury

3 Reporter's Transcript of Proceedings: Jury 01/30/96 JA00634-JA00641
Trial, Vol. 1; 10:00 a.m.

3 Reporter's Transcript of Proceedings: Jury 01/30/96 JA00642-JA00725
4 Trial, Vol. II; 1:30 p.m. JA00726

4 Reporter's Transcript of Proceedings: Jury 01/30/96 JA00727-JA00795
Trial, Vol. III; 3:30 p.m.

4 Reporter's Transcript of Proceedings: Jury 01/31/96 JA00796-JA00888
Trial,	11:15 AM

4 Reporter's Transcript of Proceedings: Jury 01/31/96 JA00889-JA00975
5 Trial, 2:30 PM JA00976-JA01025

5 Reporter's Transcript of Proceedings: Jury 02/01/96 JA01026-JA01219
Trial, Vol. I; 10:20 a.m.

5 Reporter's Transcript of Proceedings: Jury 02/02/96 JA01220-JA01401
Trial, Vol. VI; 10:20 a.m.

5B Reporter's Transcript of Proceedings: Jury 02/05/96 JA01401-001 to
Trial, Vol. 1,1:30 p.m. JA01401-179

5 Reporter's Transcript of Proceedings: Jury 02/02/96 JA01402-JA01469
6 Trial, Vol. II; 2:30 p.m. JA01470-JA01506
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Vol. Title Date Page

7 Reporter's Transcript of Proceedings: Jury 02/06/96 JA01507-JA01688
Trial, 10:15 AM

8 Reporter's Transcript of Proceedings: Jury 02/06/96 JA01689-JA01766
Trial, 2:30 PM

8 Reporter's Transcript of Proceedings: Jury 02/07/96 JA01767 JA01872
Trial,	1:45 PM

8 Reporter's Transcript of Proceedings: Jury 02/08/96 JA01887-JA01938
9 Trial, 10:15 AM JA01939-JA02054

9 Reporter's Transcript of Proceedings: Jury 02/26/96 JA02055-JA02188
10 Trial, 10:45 AM JA02189-JA02232

10 Reporter's Transcript of Proceedings: Jury 02/27/96 JA02233-JA02404
Trial, 11:00AM

11 Reporter's Transcript of Proceedings: Jury 02/28/96 JA02405-JA02602
Trial, Vol. I, 10:30 a.m.

12 Reporter's Transcript of Proceedings: Jury 02/29/96 JA02630-JA02879
13 Trial, Vol. I, 10:35 a.m. JA02880-JA02885

13 Reporter's Transcript of Proceedings: Jury 03/01/96 JA02886-JA03064
Trial 9:00 AM

13 Reporter's Transcript of Proceedings: Jury 03/04/96 JA03065-JA03120
Trial Vol. I, 10:30 a.m.

14 Reporter's Transcript of Proceedings: Jury 03/05/96 JA03121-JA03357
Trial, 11:00 a.m.

16 Reporter's Transcript of Proceedings: Jury 03/13/96 JA03594-JA03808
Trial Vol. 1
11:30 a.m.

17 Reporter's Transcript of Proceedings: Jury 03/14/96 JA03841-JA04001
Trial, 9:30 AM

3 Reporter's Transcript of Proceedings: 03/18/94 JA00575-JA00582
Motions Hearing

3 Reporter's Transcript of Proceedings: 04/14/94 JA00591-JA00618
Motions Hearing

15 Reporter's Transcript of Proceedings: 03/12/96 JA03413-JA03593
Penalty Phase
10:00 a.m.

2 Reporter's Transcript of Proceedings Re: 03/07/94 JA00403-485
3 Defendant's Motion to Disqualify District JA00486-564

Attorney's Office
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Vol. Title Date Page

2 Reporter's Transcript of Proceedings re: 01/31/94 JA00322-JA00333
Oral Request of District Attorney

3 Reporter's Transcript of Proceedings: 03/11/94 JA00570-JA00574
Ruling on Defense Motion

17 Reporter's Transcript of Proceedings: 05/17/96 JA04014-JA04036
Sentencing

15 Reporter's Transcript of Proceedings: 03/06/96 JA03403-JA03411
Verdict

2 Response to Defendant's Motion for 02/07/94 JA00351-JA00357
Discovery of Institutional Records and Files
Necessary to His Defense

36 State's Motion to Dismiss and Response to04/23/08 JA08673-JA08746
37 Defendant's Petition for Writ of Habeas JA08747-JA08757

Corpus (Post-Conviction)

2 State's Motion to Expedite Trial Date or in
the Alternative Transfer Case to Another

02/16/93 JA00268-JA00273

Department

2 State's Opposition to Defendant's Motion
for Discovery and State's Motion for

10/27/92 JA00260-JA00263

Reciprocal Discovery

2 State's Opposition to Defendant's Motion to02/07/94 JA00346-JA00350
Exclude Autopsy and Crime Scene
Photographs

18 State's Opposition to Defendant's 10/14/02 JA04154-JA04201
Supplemental Points and Authorities in
Support of Petition for Writ of Habeas
Corpus (Post-Conviction)

2 State's Response to Defendant's Motion to 02/14/94 JA00367-JA00370
Strike Aggravating Circumstance
Numbered 1 and 2 and for Specificity as to
Aggravating Circumstance Number 4

18 State's Response to Defendant's 04/06/04 JA04259-JA04315
Supplemental Petition for Writ of Habeas
Corpus (Post-Conviction)

2 State's Response to Motion to Disqualify
the District Attorney's Office and State's

02/14/94 JA00358-JA00366

Motion to Quash Subpoenas

18 Supplemental Brief in Support of 02/10/04 JA04206-JA04256
Defendant's Petition for Writ of Habeas
Corpus (Post-Conviction)
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Vol. Title Date Page

17 Supplemental Points and Authorities in 08/08/02 JA04052-JA04090
18 Support of Petition for Writ of Habeas JA04091-JA04153

Corpus (Post-Conviction)

15 Verdicts 03/06/96 JA03399-JA03402

16 Verdicts and Special Verdict 03/14/96 JA03835-JA03840
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DAVID ROGER
Clerk County :District Attorney
Nen& Bar -#002781
STEVEN S. OWENS
Chief Deputy District Au

4 Nevada Bar #004352
2.00 Lewis Avenue

5 Las Vines, Nevada $9155-2212
02) 671-2500
orney for Plaintiff

8

9

10

11

12
DONALD SHERMA/4,

13 #1212992

14

15

16

17

18
19	COMES OW-Ohe-Stat orN

20 STEVEN S. OWENS, Chief Deputy

21 Points and Authorities in Stare's Reply

22 Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus.
23	This Reply is made and based up

24 attached points and authorities in support

25 deemed necessary by this Honorable Court.
26 /11

27 Iii

2$ // /

CASE NO: C126969

DEPT NO: II

OPPOSITION TO MOTION TO DISMISS
T OF HABEAS CORPUS

G: 7/12/07
10:30 AM

ct Attorney. and hereby submits the attached

Defendant's Opposition to Motion to Dismis

all the papers and pleadings on file herein, the

and oral argument at the time of hearing, if

THE STATE OF NEVADA,

Plaintiff,

STATE'S REPLY TO DEFENDANT'
PE1TTION FOR W

DATE OF
TIME OF

Gi

PI2OCK7OPP4S410212402

07222-MISC0002
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5

7

1. Applicable Standards of Review

Deft:Main maintains that the standard of review for the district court to use

when evaluating a Motion to Dismiss is dist it must liberally construe the defendant's

petition and accept as true all of the factual allegations. While this may be the proper

standard for a Motion for Summary Jud t in a civil case or for dismissal under NRCP

Rule 12(bX5), the Nevade SuFeme Court has determined that is not the proper standard

when considering dl ogreinal of a Petition for Writ of Habeas Corps.

"priabess emus is a proceeding w ch should be characterized as neither civil nor

criminal for all purposes. It is a special ry remedy which is essentially unique." Mil v. 

Wardle, 96 Nev. 38, 40, 604 P.2d 807, SOS 1980). "This court may look to general civil or

criminal rules for guidance only When the atutes governing habeas proceedings have not

addressed the issue presented," 109 Nev. 1067. 1070, 863 Pid 103$. 1036

(1993). NRS 34.820 speeifcally provides f thc procedure in cases where the petitioner has

been sentenced to death. NRS 34,770, NR 34.800 and NRS 34.810 provide for the manner

in which the district court decides whether evidentiary hearing should be held, a petition

should be dismissed or a writ should be gr d.

None of the statutes governing paid for post-conviction relief provide for the civil

y of summary judgment as a method for determining the melts of a post-conviction

petition fir a writ of habeas corpus. Beets v S 110 Nev. 339, 871 Pid 357 (1994). The

Nevada Rules of Civil Procedure apply oni to the extent they are not inconsistent with NRS

Chapter 34. NRS 34.780. Because NRS 34 addresses the applicable standards for

resolving post-conviction petitions for a t of habeas corpus the rules of civil paced=

and the standard for summaryjudgment enutciated by the defense simply do not apply.

Defendant also maintains that the pToper burden of proof for claims of ineffective

assistance of counsel is simply prepond e of the evidence. Meanut..gg, 120 Nev.

1001, 103 P.3d 25 (2004). While this is genrai1y true, Defendant overlooked footnote 29 of

the °plaice where the court limited its holdi

07222-MESC0003

JA008993
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VeftlOtiknit

FM 29. In Hogan v. Wardell, 109
(quoting &M yer v. nirdit 505 U
269 (1992)), we held that a p
attempting to overcome a
ineligible for the death penalty due
by " 'clear and convincing evi
reasonable juror would have found
=lei the applicable state taw.' "Old
baron of proof of facts marl),
counsel that are ratted ht a post
otherwise procederaRy barred.
turaffected and intact. [emphasis

co. 962, 960, 860 Pld 710, 716 (1993)
333, 334 112 &Ct. 2514, 120 L.F.d.2d

conviction habeas petitioner who was
default by demonstrating he was

actual innocence was required to prove
that but for a constitutional error, no
petitioner eligible for the death penalty

holding today is Molted to a petitioner's
ng claims of Ineffective assistance of

nviction habeas petition that are not
court's prior holding in Hogan remains

2

3
4

5

6
7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

Mime, supra. at footnote 29. The petition

at state post-conviction relief and consti

claims of ineffective assistance of counsel

been raised in the first post-conviction

showing of good cause or prejudice. The

burden of proof for such defaulted claims

'clencc, not preponderance.

2. Good Cause — Intervening Case

Defendant alleges that recent Interi

failing to raise Claims 11, 12 and 14

natent case is Defendant's second attempt

a successive petition per NRS 34.810. My

either at trial or on appeal, which should have

dings, are now procedurally bared absent a

was correct in its motion to dismiss, that the

is the higher standard of clear and convincing

case authority constitutes good cause for

iously. The State agrees with the general

ural bars melt be shown where the legal

20 bags SW a claim was not reasonably avst

21 1.24ts 122 Nev.	146 P3d 265 (2006

22 years of precedent in	1

23 application of that luting retroactively i

24 case authorhy giving rise to a new claim no

25	Accordingly, in response to Claim 1

26 may constitute good cause to raise the dupi

27 in a successive petition. However, to crverc

28 show prejudice which Defendant can not d

the time of any default. §ste e.g., Bejaratio 

The Nevada Supreme Court's overruling of 20

120 Nev. 1043, 102 112d 606 (2004) and

supra, is one such example of intervening

oust), available to Dellsndant.

the State agrees that Mecoona and fleiarane 

tive felony-aggravator claim for the first time

e the procedural bars the Defendant must also

In three separate cases the Nevada Supreme

PAMOXIKIPPOOPPADS'Al 12402

07222-MISC0004
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542 U.S. 296, 124 S.Ct. 2531 (2004)II , for the proposition that juries must be specifically

instructed that aggravating circumstances must outweigh the mitigating circumstances

'beyond a reasonable doubt." However, Blakely was not a death penalty case and it held

only that "any fact that increases the penalty for a crime beyond the statutory maximum must

submitted to a Jury and proved beyond reasonable doubt," Id In so holdin& Blakely 

is petition and her relied it Ibr the firm done
p.332, filed December 12, 2005.

P3WPDOCWP

Note*. lkfendant did not cite to
In hb opixthlan ib the Stere's Motion to DibbilL

Chan: 12
ndmit's Wig

0I,04/ZD 7 99:11 MA 38,15463	 DA all D V SIM
	 ii1004

of subsequently invalidated felorry-aggrevetors

ss been found harmless. agjarano v. State. 122

ta 122 Nev.	146 P.3d 279 (2006);

1008 (2006). This is consistent with the US.

tor is subsequently found invalid. Brown v. 

Court has considered the prejudicial

2 under higramil, and every time the

3	Nev. 	, 146 P3d 265 (2006); 11.01.1

4	laign.L.Sign, 122 NOV.	145 P.

5 Supreme Court's analysis when a felony-

6 anstm, 126 S.Ct. 884 (2006).

7	Defendant's characterization o

8 compelling" is inaccurate, The jurors Ma

9 hams but apparently did not afford them

voted for death. That is why a detailed reeo

11 In a harmless error analysis, the court siznp

12 equation and considers whether the jury

13 Dims" supra. Removal of the felony

14 evidence that was admitted hi the penalty

15 robbery convictions as aggravators has

16 i be regarded as a conetituttonal defect •

17 supra. Faced with exactly the same

18 obviously would have still sentenced the De

In regards to Claim 12, Defend=

cause for Ming to previously challenge

the aggravating and mitigating c	P.t

Is mitigation evidence 33 "substantial and

have found the existence of a fbw mitigating

much weight or significance bemuse they still

ting of the mitigation evidence is unnecessary.

y removes the two felony-aggravators from the

11 would have imposed a sentence of death.

aggravators does not change in any way the

• taring. The mere labeling of the burglary and

an Inconsequential" impact that can not fairly

sentencing process.fige	laman...!Aandem

encc In aggravation and mitigation, the jury

t to dealt

at intervening case law constitutes good

ufficiency of the jury instruction on weighing

. Defendant cites to aejse.1 42a,/

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

07222-MISC0005
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case decided four years earlier. Agionnadi v,

2000). Litlakely does not support Defendant's

an intervening change in the law that would

ging this claim more than five years after

simply repeated the holding of a well-kno

2 &dawn, 530 U.S. 466, 120 Set. 234

3	position and even if it did, it certainly is

4 constitute good cause for the delay in

5AnPrend1.

6	Sherman's jury Win in filet i

7 received no instruction on any other stand

8 support Defendant's novel argument that

9 reasonable doubt standard applies to the

10 that the jury obtained, and used some other

11	and mitigating circumstances, there is no
12 advance this claim In a successive habeas

13	In regards to Claim 14. Defendant a

14 cause for Whig to previously challenge

15 wee &juvenile as an aggravating circums

16 yaignagas 543 US. 541, 125 St, 11

17 under 18 years of age at the time of

penalty. Defendant cites no authority

19 committed as a juvenile can not serve as

20 murder committed as an adult.

21 murder in Idaho, did not receive the dea

22 does not apply.

23	The other case relied upon by

24 establish cams offender classification un

25 Nedg,k„ 359 F.Supp.2d 521 (W.D.Va. 20

26 to hold that career offender status could

27 convictions were for crimes occurring be

28 classified 83 a career offender and the ju

"reasonable doubt in the penalty phase and

of proof. There is no case law or authority to

must be specifically in.structed that the

INOCC83. In the absence of any evidence

of proof when weighing the aggravathig

d certainly no good taut ihr nine to

an aggravating circumstance for a subsequent

who was 17 years old at the time of his first

ty for that murder andBar IfiLI.Simnoe

dent involved the use of prior convictions to

or the federal sentencing guidelines. 11..y,

5), The judge in that case specifically declined

be imposed on a defendant whose predicate

age eighteen. Instead, Naylor was properly

simply exercised his discretion to sentence

leges that intervening case law constitutes good

use of his prior conviction for murder when he

in the present case. Defendant cites to BA=
005), which held only that defendants who arc

kid offense are not eligible for the dead'

a position that a prior murder conviction

PAWPDOCSOMPOITWON0512402
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of the defendant's youth at the time of the

applies at all, it validates the use of the

the instant murder to capital status even

Unlike the judge in Naylor, the jury in the

nt's youth at the first murder and was free to

ony had towaid proving Sherman 3 theory was

misleading the jury or confusing the issues."

((998).

was to be excluded from her tether's will

Bruce Bauer's deposition in a wrongfid death

t s Exhibit 2.14. This was three months before

case and Defendant has no explanation why the

It is nothing but sheer speculation that such

files reviewed in =era by the district court

that the intended change in the will was never

PAWPDOCtIOOPOOPPuM0111402

the advisory sentencing guideline

2 predicate offense. To the extent the

Idaho murder as a predicate offense to

4 though Defendant was a juvenile at the

5 peasant case was not persuaded by De

6 exercise discretion in favor of imposing 4

7	3. (3odCause—A1IegdBradyVioatIons

8	Defendant allege' that the State's Odium to disclose evidence prevented him from

9 misingC1aims131 8and19prevIously.	State agrees with the general proposition that

cause to overcome procedural bars night be shown where en Impediment external to

1	the defense, such as Interference by officisils, prevent him from complying with procedural

12 rules. Ags e.g., itetelaoyea 122 Nev. L, 138 P.3(1453 (2006).

13	In regards to Claim 1, the defense clicgca that the actions of the trial court judge

14 denying discovery of Lester Bauer's tru4 files constituted an external impediment that

15 prevented Defendant from fully raising iii f issue concerning the exclusion of evidence of

16 Diane Bauce's relationship with her father. However, on direct appeal the Nevada Supreme

17 Court reached the merits of this issue and eed with the district court that Diane's motive

18 to Idll her father so she could inherit from m ' s.vas not relevant for any purpose other than

19 fmpeachmentorthetany evancythistes

20 substantially outweighed by the risk of

21	m v. State, 114 Nev. 998,965 P.2d

22	Evidence showing that Diane B

23 apparently became known to the defense

24 action taken on March 3, 1998.	Defert

25 r the first post-conviction proceedings In Thi

26 issue could not have been raised at

27 evidence was also in the subpoenaed

28 Judge in this case, especially considering

07222-MISC0007
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"%we

2	No matter how or when such in

3 would have been excluded as an improper

4 would have been outweighed by the risk

5 no consequence instead of focusing On

6 judge's in camera inspection of files and su

7 the defense's ability to raise this issue

ich would allow consideration of this

9 reazittitur on direct appeal.

10	In regards to Claims 3 and 8, the

11 disclose material exculpatory and

12 83 S.Ct. 1194 (1963), However. the State

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

e available to the defense, it still

!lateral attack on Diane. Any probative value

jury would be sidetracked into this issue of

levant issue of Defendant's guilt The trial

wit avidendszy rutin& did not interfere with

y. There is no good cause or prejudice

merit/ass issue seven years alter issuance of

that it has a constitutional obligation to

Brady v. Marylanii 373 U.S. 83,

did not misstate the definition of materiality as

claimed by the defense, On page 32 of its Motion to Dismiss, the State correctly cited to -

&..__YLbilfle where Nevada adopted the "reasonable possibility" standard;

We conclude that the proper standarI for analyzing whether a Brady violation
has occulted alter a specific request is whether there mdsts a reasonable
possibility that the claimed eviden would have affected the judgment of the
trier of fact. and thus the outcome o

agtheayAggeg, 1 N	121, 881 P.2d 1 (1994) (reversed on other grounds). Contrary to

defense contagions, nowhere in its	has the State suggested the standard was

simply one of preponderance or probability.

Defendant's allegations of withheld evidence and prosecutorial misconduct, even t

would have no reasonable posslbilit of changing the outcome of the trial. As the

Supreme Court noted on direct ap

The evidence against Sherman was overwhelming. Although he had never
wee met Bauer, his fingerprint wa found at Bauer's house. Sherman used
Bauer's credit card to pay for escort crvicas and hotel rooms. When Sherman
was awned in Santa Barbara, he wa in possession of Bauer's car and other

07222-MISC0008
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personal property. Sherman told at least two people, McCoy and Hulbert, that
be had killed someone in Nevada.

Skim v, State, 114 Nev. 998, 965 P.2d 903. (1998). Diane Bauer testified that she

reported to the FBI in Washington that her father was in danger, not the Longview police.

Thai such information does not appear in the Longview police reports in no way suggests

such testimony was tithe.

At the time of trial, District Attorney David Roger provided a written summery of

known or expected benefits provided to wkricssca. Michael Placentia and Christine Kilter's

testimony was corroborated by Defendant's written insttuctions and a wiretap of

Defendant's conversation planning an escape. Stacey Malter's testimony was corroborated

by her sup:rvieor Carrie Wilkins, motel manager Micky Suarez, and the fact that Defendant

was subsequently arrested in possession of Lester Bauer's credit cards. Allegations of

undisclosed inducements to these witnesses simply would not have undermined their

credibility or affected the outcome of the case in any way.

Sevenl claims of prosecutorial misconduct were heard on direct appeal tmd found to

be harmless error. There was no impediment external to the defense which prevented

Defendant from raising all of his claims of prosecutorial misconduct occurring during

orpiment and questioning of witnesses at that time. Even if such claims had been timely

raised, they would not have been successful in light o thit—e—overwhelmin* g evidice ageing

Defendant AS found by the Nevada Supreme Court.

As to Claim 19, Defendant maintains that release of written protocol standards to him

in April of 1996 constitutes good cause for not challenging the particular chemicals and

injection procedures earlier. Even if this is true, it does not change the face that a challenge

to the execution protocol is not cognizable in a petition for writ of habeas corpus because it

neither requests reli ef from a judgment of conviction nor a sentence. NRS 34.720.

Defendant's sentence would remain lawful and unaffected by such a challenge because

Defendant was only sentenced to lethal injection1 not to a particular execution protocol.

Such protocol can be changed at any time and solely within the discretion of the Department

PAWFDOOSVPIN1
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1 of Corrections. NRS 176.355. Defendant can not direct this court to any case where

2 execution protocols have been suecessfidly raised in a post-conviction petition.

3 Additionally, if and when Defendant's execudon ever becomes imminent, it is lilt* that the
4 protocols in affect at that time will be different, making such a challenge at this time either

5 moot or not ripe for adjudication.

6	4. Good Cause — Ineffective Assistance of Post-Conviction Counsel

7	Defendant alleges that ineffective assistance of his post-conviction counsel constitutes

good Mae far not raising the following claims previously: Claims 1, 2, 3, 4, 8, 16, 17, 18

9 end 19. The State totes that as a death row petitioner, Defendant had a right to efftctive

10 assistance of counsel in his first post-conviction proceeding, so be may raise claims of

11 ineffective 231iStUICO of post-conviction counsel in a successive petition. be McNekon V. 

12 State, 115 Nev. 296, 416 n.5, 990 P.2d 1263, 1276 n.5 (1999); gaugiguAgglen, 113 Nev.

13 293, 303, 934 Pld 247,253 (1997). However, he Mg TRiNC these matters in a reasonable

14 time to avoid application of procedural default rules. See Pellegini V. State, 117 Nev. 860.

15 869-70, 34 P.3d 519, 525-26 (2001) (holding that the time bar in NRS 34.726 applies to

16 successive petitions); en generally Lletagyieutjtes 119 Nev. 248, 25243, 71 P.3d 503,

17 506-07 (2003) (stating that a claim reasonably available to the petitioner during the statutory

18 time period did not constitute good use to excuse a delay hi filing).

19	Defendant wafted	 Years alter conclusion of his first post-conviction proceedings

20 In December of 2000 to file the Instant petition. Instead of timely filing a BINX023iVe state

21 petition to challenge the effectiveness of his first post-conviction counsel, Defendant

22 proceeded to federal court where he managed to file a timely federal habeas petition on

23 October 11, 2002, in ene 2:02-CV-01349-LRH(LRL). Even then, Defendant waited an

24 additional three years before returning to state court.

25	The fetal flaw in Defendant's current petition is that he can not demonstrate good

26 cause for this delay. Pursuit of federal remedies dots not conetitute good cause to overcome

27 state procedural bars. =raj= 105 Nev. 2351 rn Pid 1229 (1989). Colley argued

2$ that he appropriately refrained from filing a state habeas petition during the four years he

PAWPDCCS	 19
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a federal writ of habeas corpus. The Nevada Supreme Court disagreed:

Should we allow Colley's poet-conviction relief proceeding to go forward, we
would encourage offeivins to file groundless petitions fbr &decal habeas
eaPus relief, secure in the knowledge that a petition fbr post-conviction relief
remained Indefinitely available to them. This situation would prejudice both
the accused and the State since the interest of both the petitioner and the
government are best served if post-conviction claims are abed while the
evidence is still fresh.

Id. The state procedural rules simply do not afford a petitioner the luxury of federal comel

and an investigation ',attire being required to bring state dihrit Accordhsgly, no matter how

diligent and expensive the federal investigation may have been, it does not constitute good

cause as a matter of law,

Dertadaret Opposition fails to demonstrate any good =Me for the bringing of a

suceessive petition at this late date. Neither intervening me law, nor alleged Batt

violations, nor the ineffective assistance of post.convictlon counsel constitute good cause in

the present case for the delay in bringing a successive petition. Defendant caused the delay

himself by electing to pursue federal relief before exhausting his state remedies.

DATED this	day of June, 2007.

Respectfully submitted,

07222-MISC0011
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DISTRICT COURT
8

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
9

THE STATE OF NEVADA,
10

CASE NO: C117513
11

-vs-	 DEPT NO: II
12

WILLIAM WITTER,
13 #1204227

14 	Defendant.

15

16	STATE'S REPLY TO DEFENDANTS OPPOSITION TO MOTION TO DISMISS

17	 DATE OF HEARING: 7/12/07

18	
TIME OF HEARING: 10:30 AM

19	COMES NOW, the State of Nevada, by DAVID ROGER, District Attorney, through

20 STEVEN S. OWENS, Chief Deputy District Attorney, and hereby submits the attached

21 Points and Authorities in State's Reply to Defendant's Opposition to Motion to Dismiss.

22	This Reply is made and based upon all the papers and pleadings on file herein, the

23 attached points and authorities in support hereof; and oral argument at the time of hearing, if

24 deemed necessary by this Honorable Court.

25	/1

26 / /

27 /

28
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POINTS AND AljTHORITTES 

Defendant maintains that the proper standard of review for the district court to use

evaluating a Motion to Dismiss is that it must liberally construe the defendant's

petition and accept as true all of the factual allegations. While this may be the proper

standard for a Motion for Summary Judgment in a civil case or for dismissal under NRCP

Rule 12(b)(5), the Nevada Supreme Court has determined that is not the proper standard

when considering dismissal of a Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus.

"[If]abeas corpus is a proceeding which should he characterized as neither civil nor

criminal for all purposes. It is a special statutory remedy which is essentially unique," Hill v. 

Flagg 96 Nev. 38, 40,604 P.2d 807, 808 (1980). "This court may look to general civil or

criminal rules for guidance only when the statutes governing habeas proceedings have not

addressed the issue presented." Mazur' v. State, 109 Nev. 1067, 1070, 863 P.2d 1035, 1036

(1993). NRS 34.820 specifcally provides for the procedure in cases where the petitioner has

been sentenced to death. NRS 34.770, NRS 34.800 and NRS 34.810 provide for the manner

in which the district court decides whether an evidentiary hearing should be held, a petition

should be dismissed or a writ should be granted.

None of the statutes governing petitions for post-conviction relief provide for the civil

remedy of summary judgment as a method for determining the merits of a post-conviction

petition for a writ of habeas corpus. Beets v. State, 110 Nev. 339, 871 P.2d 357 (1994). The

Nevada Rules of Civil Procedure apply only to the extent they are not inconsistent with NRS

Chapter 34. NRS 34.780. Because NRS Chapter 34 addresses the applicable standards for

resolving post-conviction petitions for a writ of habeas corpus, the rules of civil procedure

and the standard for summary judgment enunciated by the defense simply do not apply.

Additionally, the petition in the instant case is Defendant's second attempt at state

post-conviction relief and constitutes a successive petition per NRS 34.810. Any claims of

ineffective assistance of counsel either at trial or on appeal should have been raised in the

first post-conviction proceedings, are now procedurally barred absent a showing of good

cause or prejudice. The defense's burden of proof for such defaulted claims is the higher

2	 FLAVPDOCEVOPFIFOPP,3011/30894002
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tandard of clear and convincing evidence. Means v. State, 120 Nev. 1001, In 29, 103 P.3d

2	25 (2004).

3	It has long been the rule in Nevada that Itihe law of a first appeal is the law of the

4 case on all subsequent appeals in which the facts are substantially the same." Hall v. State.

91 Nev. 314, 315, 535 P.24 797, 798 (1975) (quoting Walker v. State. 85 Nev. 337, 343. 455

6 P.2d 34, 38 (1969); see also Bejarano v. State, 106 Nev. 840, 801 P.2d 1388 (1990).

7 Additionally, the law of the case doctrine "cannot be avoided by a more detailed and

8 precisely focused argument subsequently made after reflection upon the previous

9 proceedings." Hogan v. Stab, 109 Nev. 952, 959, 860 P.24710, 715 (1993). This limitation

10 forbids "a more focused review of the issues stemming from the illumination of hindsight" to

11	avoid application of the law of the case doctrine. Id. Defendant's attempt to distinguish his

12 current claims from past claims is only an exercise in semantics and futility. No matter how

13 artfully Defendant re-crafts his arguments, it remains that the Nevada Supreme Court

14 disposed of many of these same issues previously.

15	The legal standard and reasoning process by which this court is to evaluate the

16 McConnell claim has been explained and implemented by the Nevada Supreme Court in at

17 least three different published cases. Beigreno v„ State, 122 Nev.	146 P.34 265 (2006);

18	Rippo v. State, 122 Nev.	, 146 P.3d 279 (2006); , liartian v. Sta_0, 122 Nev.	, 145

19 P.3d 1008 (2006). In Beiarano, the Nevada Supreme Court explained the re-weighing

20 process as follows:

21

28

POWPDOCS/OPPROPF/301.130894002

Reweighimg requires us to answer the following question: Is it clear beyond a22
masonable doubt that absent the invalid aggravators the jury still would have

23	imposed a sentence of death? If we answer this question "yes," then the
errors were harmless, and Bejarano's McConnell claim is procedurally barred

24	for lack of a showing of prejudice. If we answer this question "no," then
25	prejudice has been shown, and we must remand to the district court for a new

penalty hearing.	citing State v, Bennett (Benneft rm, 119 Nev. 589, 604,
26	81 P.3d 1, 11-12 (2003); Leslie v. Warden, 118 Nev. 773, 782-83, 59 P.3d 440,
27	446-7 (2002).

JA009006
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1 The Beiarano Court then reviewed only that evidence, both aggravating and mitigating, that

2 had been presented at the original penalty hearing absent the invalid felony-aggravators. Id.

Although other procedurally defaulted claims existed in the ease, such were not considered

4 in the reweighing process. N. A proper reweighing or harmless error analysis does not add

5 to what the jury already found, but asks only whether the outcome would have been the same

6 without the alleged error. In the only three published cases where the Nevada Supreme

7 Court has conducted reweighin' g under McConnell. the error has been found harmless every

8 time. &imam. supra; Rippe, supra; Archaning. supra.

	

9	In a harmless error analysis, the court simply removes the two felony-aggravators

10 from the equation and considers whether the jury mill would have imposed a sentence of

Ii death. Bejarano, supra. Removal of the felony aggravators does not change in any way the

12 evidence that was admitted in the penalty hearing. The mere labeling of the burglary and

13 attempt sexual assault convictions as aggravators has only an "inconsequential" impact that

14 can not fairly be regarded as a constitutional defect in the sentencing process. See Brom v. 

15 Sag= 126 &Ct. 884 (2006). Faced with exactly the same evidence in aggravation and

16 mitigation, the jury obviously would have still sentenced the Defendant to death.

	

17	Even the case authority relied upon by the defense, follows the same reweighing

18 process of looking only at the evidence actually presented to the jury when an aggravating

19 circumstance is subsequently invalidated. Leslie v. Warden, 118 Nev. 773, 59 P.3d 440

20 (2002). Although in Leslie the invalidation of the "at random and without apparent motive"

21 aggravator was not found harmless and a new penalty bearing was ordered in that case, the

22 reweighing analysis did not include new matters outside the record. 14. House v. Bell is

23 distinguished because it is an actual innocence case based on newly discovered evidence.

24 House v. Bell, 126 S.Ct. 2064 (2006). A McConnell error, on the other hand, has nothing to

25 do with newly discovered evidence. Rather, it concerns only an invalid aggravating

26 circumstance that should not have been given to the jury.

	27	The defense is arguing for a change in law and rejects the kind of reweighing engaged

28 in by the Nevada Supreme Court in Bejarano, Rippo, and Archanian. supra. However, the

4	 POWPDOCSIOPPIFOPP1308130894002
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district court is bound by this precedent and any good faith arguments by the defense for a

change in law are now preserved for the record and can be addressed to the Nevada Supreme

Court on appeal. In the meantime, the law on reweighing remains that when invalidating an

aggravating circumstance, the harmless error analysis does not include new evidence that

was never presented to the jury.

The defense acknowledges that Atkins only exempts the mentally retarded from the

death penalty. Atkins v. Vireinia, 536 US. 304 (2002). Any argument for an extension of

that same rationale to fetal alcohol syndrome is a novel argument not endorsed by any court.

A claim that requires a change or extension of law can not qualify for consideration in a

successive habeas petition because one can not show good cause and prejudice. Only if the

Nevada or United States Supreme Court first adopted such a legal ruling would Witter then

have cause to overcome the procedural bars.

Defendant maintains that release of written protocol standards to him in April of 1996

constitutes good cause for not challenging the particular chemicals and injection procedures

earlier. Even if this is true, it does not change the fact that a challenge to e execution

protocol is not cognizable in a petition for writ of habeas corpus because it neither requests

relief from a judgment of conviction nor a sentence. NRS 34.720. Defendant's sentence

would remain lawful and unaffected by such a challenge because Defendant was only

sentenced to lethal injection, not to a particular execution protocol. Such protocol can be

changed at any time and solely within the discretion of the Department of Corrections, NRS

176.355, Defendant can not direct this court to any case where execution protocols have

been successfully raised in a post-conviction petition. Additionally, if and when Defendant's

execution ever becomes imminent, it is likely that the protocols in effect at that time will be

different, making such a challenge at this time either moot or not ripe for adjudication.

Defendant alleges that ineffective assistance of his post-conviction counsel constitutes

good cause for not raising his claims in the successive petition sooner. The State agrees that

as a death row petitioner, Defendant had a right to effective assistance of counsel in his first

post-conviction proceeding, so he may raise claims of ineffective assistance of post-

NWPD0CS/OPPIFOPP/308/3G94002
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conviction counsel in a successive petition. See McNehon v.. State, 115 Nev. 296, 416 n.5,

990 P.2d 1263, 1276 n..5 (1999); Crump v Warden, 113 Nev. 293, 303, 934 P.2d 247, 253

(1997). However, be must raise these matters in a reasonable time to avoid application of

procedural default rules. See Pellegrin' i v. State, 117 Nev. 860, 869-70,34 P.3d 519, 525-26

(2001) (holding that the time bar in NRS 34.726 applies to successive petitions); see

generally liatbaway v. State, 119 Nev. 248,252-53, 71 P.3d 503, 506-07 (2003) (stating that

a claim reasonably available to the petitioner during the statutory time period did not

constitute good cause to excuse a delay in filing).

Defendant waited seven years after conclusion of his first post-conviction proceedings

in September of 2000 to file the instant petition. Instead of timely filing a successive state

petition to challenge the effectiveness of his first post-conviction counsel, Defendant

proceeded to federal court where be managed to file a timely federal habeas petition on

September 18, 2001, in case 2:01-CV-01034-RLII(LRL). Even then, Defendant waited an

additional six years before returning to stale court.

The fatal flaw in Defendant's current petition is that he can not demonstrate good

cause for this delay. Pursuit of federal remedies does not constitute good cause to overcome

state procedural bars. colley v. State. 105 Nev. 235, 773 11.2d 1229 (1989). Colley argued

that he appropriately refrained from filing a state habeas petition during the four years he

pursued a federal writ of habeas corpus. The Nevada Supreme Court disagreed;

Should we allow Colley's post-conviction relief proceeding to go forward, we
would encourage offenders to file groundless petitions for federal habeas
corpus relief, secure in the knowledge that a petition for post-conviction relief
remained indefinitely available to them. This situation would prejudice both
the accused and the State since the interest of both the petitioner and the
government are best served if post-conviction claims are raised while the
evidence is still fresh.

The state procedural rules simply do not afford a petitioner the luxury of federal counsel

and an investigation before being required to bring state claims. Accordingly, no matter how

PIWPDOCN3PP/1'OPP1308,30194002
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diligent and expansive the federal investigation may have been it does not constitute good

2 cause as a matter of law.

DATED this 5th	day of July, 2007.

4	 Respectfully submitted,

5

BY /V STEVEN S. OWENS

Chief Dejauty _District Attorney
Nevada Bar . 04352

DAVID ROGER
Clark County District Attorney
Nevada Bar 4002781
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THURSDAY, DECEMBER 13, 2007; 8:41 A.M.

THE COURT: How about the folks on Zane Floyd, are we ready to go on

that one? Is Mr. Owens here?

MR. OWENS: Yes.

THE COURT: All right this is page one, and are you Ms. Hurst?

MS. HURST: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: From the federal public defender's office?

MS. HURST: Yes.

THE COURT: And we have Mr. Owens for the State.

MR. OWENS: Correct.

THE COURT: This is petition for writ of habeas corpus. Are you going to

submit it on what you provided to us, the thousands of pages? Were -- is there

something you want to highlight?

MS. HURST: Your Honor I just would like to highlight the need for an

evidentiary hearing in this matter. We have, I believe, effectively spelled out all

the reasons that Mr. Floyd is in need of one; however I would emphasize that

the main reason has to do with the fact that prior post conviction counsel was

ineffective in bringing several important issues before the Court in the first post

conviction proceedings, specifically Mr. Floyd's organic brain damage and the

fact that he suffered from numerous psychological issues that were never

presented to the jury.

Post conviction counsel was supposed to research extra record

claims prior to filing the petition on Mr. Floyd's behalf and we have attached an

affidavit from prior post conviction counsel indicating that he never did that,

Page -2

2

4

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

JA00901 6



which there are -- we've cited numerous cases which indicate that that is

2 ineffective; and so Your Honor, in order to resolve the issues that are presented

before you, we would strongly urge you to grant Mr. Floyd an evidentiary

4 hearing and we had emphasized all of the reasons that this claim is not

5 procedurally defaulted in our pleadings.

If Your Honor has any specific questions in connection with the

7Il area of procedural default I certainly invite them, but I would highlight the fact

once again that because prior post conviction counsel was ineffective, that in

and of itself is able to support the fact that our -- that that particular claim is

10 not procedurally defaulted according to the statutes. Thank you.

11	THE COURT: Okay, Mr. Owens.

12	MR. OWENS: Judge this is a second state habeas petition. The

13 procedural rules contemplate everyone getting one state habeas petition. There

14 are few extraordinary exceptions, one of which is the capital litigants can bring

15 a successive petition to challenge the ineffective assistance of counsel of their

16 post conviction counsel who in this case was David Schieck, one of the most

17 competent capitol litigators that we have.

18	 It's my argument that they delayed in going to federal court and

19 seeking federal remedies for well over a year, almost a year and a half before

20 returning to state court; and that delay of a year and a half and their selection

21 of a federal remedy over coming to -- back to state court constitutes a waiver

22 of that claim. You can't delay in bringing your successive habeas petition.

23 That's exactly what they've done here, so I think they've waived any claims of

24 ineffective assistance as to David Schieck,

25	 This organic brain damage, you know basically they've got a new

Page - 3
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label here and it's fetal alcohol syndrome, and that's really all it is, is a label for

symptoms that the jury heard about. The jury heard that Zane Floyd abused

alcohol and abused drugs, and that his mother abused alcohol and drugs; and

it's that abuse of alcohol and drugs that causes the brain damage.

So did they hear that Zane Floyd suffered brain damage? No, but

they certainly heard about all the symptoms and the way that he grew up.

They heard from two psychologists at the time, or at least the defense had

access to two psychologists. I believe they only put up one psychologist, we

put up another one.

The only exception to the successive habeas petition that they're

entitled to because of their waiver by going to federal court is really something

along the lines of actual innocence; and organic brain damage is something

more in line of a additional mitigation evidence. The Supreme Court has never

held that additional mitigation evidence constitutes actual innocent.

If there's a failure to -- if there's some new evidence that

undermines one of our aggravating circumstances where the Defendant would

not have been eligible for the death penalty then yes, conceivably actual

innocence may come into play for the death penalty, but not simply because

they discover new mitigation evidence which the State never interfered with.

We did not prevent them from discovering that in a more timely

fashion; so I think they're successive petition is barred procedurally, the same

way that the first was barred, which the Nevada Supreme Court affirmed.

MS. HURST: Your Honor, if I may have a two minute reply.

THE COURT: Sure.

Page -4
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MS. HURST: I just quickly would like to point out, number one, that

we're appointed by the federal court so we cannot physically file a petition in

state court until we're appointed by the federal court; and furthermore, the

statute that he's citing to does not have a specific number of months or years

in terms of indicating exactly what is untimely. So unlike other statutes where

there may be a year limitation or a five-year limitation, this particular statute

does not have -- it's a reasonableness statute.

Now we filed here in federal court within -- I believe the number

was eight months of discovering all of this new evidence. So we were

appointed, we did due diligence in terms of reading, researching, investigating

the record, and then we filed as soon as we could in federal court. We were

then -- we then had to have the federal court judge order us back to state

court. That's how we get to state court.

THE COURT: Right

MS. HURST: So we -- as soon as he did that we filed immediately. This

is one — this case is one of the fastest cases to get back to state court that you

probably will see on the docket, so I would strongly urge you not to find that

it's procedurally defaulted based upon those facts; and just -- although Mr.

Schieck is certainly a very competent attorney, we all have our moments, and I
would suggest that the -- Mr. Shieck's affidavit where he admits that he did no

research extra record claims, evidence is that the failure to find or the claim of

organic brain damages was one of his and warrants a hearing on this matter.

THE COURT: We'll have a hearing on that limited issue. That's the only

one. That's it. So we will have to set up a time to have that take place. What

-- the rest of it -- the rest of all these claims in here, it would be denied other
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ACHELLE HAMILTON
Recorder/Transcriber

Page - 6

than having the very narrow listen to me carefully, narrow, narrow issue that

we're talking about with regards to Schieck raising these issues on the brain --

organic brain injury. That's it.

So what I'm going to need for you to do is step back and ask my

secretary, Elena, when we can conduct this hearing.

MR. OWENS: Thanks.

MS. HURST: Thank you, Your Honor.

THE COURT: And then we'll do that.

9
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13	 [Proceeding concluded 8:49 a.m.]
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19 ATTEST: I do hereby certify that I have truly and correctly transcribed the

20 
audio/video recording in the above-e	led case to the best of my ability.
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DAVID ROGER
Clark County District Attorney
Nevada Bar #00278I
STEVEN S. OWENS
Chief Deputy District Attorney
Nevada Bar #004352
200 Lewis Avenue
Las Vegas, Nevada 89155-2212
702) 671-2500

Attorney for Plaintiff

DISTRICT COURT

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

THE STATE OF NEVADA,	 )

Plaintiff

I	

CASE NO: CI59897

-VS-	 DEPT NO: V

ZANE FLOYD,
#1619135

Defendant. i-
STATES OPPOSITION TO DEFENDANTS PETITION FOR WRIT OF HABEAS

CORPUS (POST-CONVICTION) AND MOTION TO DISMISS

DATE OF HEARING: 11/15/07
11ME OF HEARING: 8:30 AM

CONES NOW, the State of Nevada, by DAVID ROGER, District Attorney, through

STEVEN S. OVsTENS, Chief Deputy District Attorney, and hereby submits the attached

Points and Authorities in Opposition to Defendant's Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus

(Post-Conviction).

This opposition is made and based upon all the papers and pleadings on file herein,

the attached points and authorities in support hereof, and oral argunient at the time of

heating, if deemed necessary by this Honorable Court.

/1/
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motion for rehearing was denied on May 7, 2002. Appellate counsel then filed a Petition for

Writ of Certiorari to the United States Supreme Court which was denied in February of

2003, and Remittitur issued on March 10, 2003. Defendant then filed his first Petition for

Writ of Habeas Corpus on June 19, 2003, through attorney David Schieck and filed a

supplemental petition on October 6, 2004. The District Court denied Defendant's petition

and issued Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law on February 4, 2005. See Exhibit 1.

Upon denial of his petition, Defendant appealed to the Nevada Supreme Court. The

Supreme Court affirmed the denial of Defendant's petition for writ of habeas corpus on

February 16, 2006, in an unpublished order. See Exhibit 2. Thereafter, Defendant initiated

federal habeas corpus proceedings in Case No. 2:06-CV-0471-PMP-LRL on April 14, 2006,

and requested a stay and abeyance, which was granted on April 25, 2007, for exhaustion of

state court remedies. Defendant then filed the instant successive petition for writ of habeas

corpus on June 8, 2007.

ARGUMEn

DEFENDANT'S CLAIMS ARE PROCEDURALLY BARRED.

The current petition is Defendant's second attempt at state habeas relief and is filed

than four years following issuance of remittitur on direct appeal, 'Application of the

tutory procedural default rules to post-conviction habeas petitions is mandatory." State v.

ighth Judicial District Court, 121 Nev. 225, 112 P.3d 1070, 1074 (2005). Post-conviction

abeas petitions that arc filed several years after conviction unreasonably burden the

criminal justice system. Id. "The necessity for a workable system dictates that there must

exist a time when a criminal conviction is final." Id.

Absent good cause for delay, a defendant must file a petition that challenges the

validity of a judgment or sentence within one year after entry of the judgment. NRS 34.726.

Those claims not raised within one year from the entry of the judgment are time barred.

Furthermore, pursuant to NRS 34.810, a petition which raises claims that could have been

5	 PAVPDOCSOPP/FOFP	1803
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•
raised on direct appeal or in a prior post-conviction petition for writ of habeas corpus must

be dismissed absent a showing of good cause and prejudice,

Good cause exists when; (1) The petitioner establishes that the delay is not his fault;

and (2) Dismissal of the petition will unduly prejudice the petitioner. Id. A defendant must

show that his delay was due to an external impediment to the defense which prevented him

from complying with the procedural default rules. Crump v. Warden, Nevada State Prison,

113 Nev. 293, 302, 934 P.2d 247, 252 (1997)(citing Passanisi v. Director Dept Prisons, 105

Nev. 63, 66, 769 P.2d 72, 74 (1989)). An external impediment might exist where "the

factual or legal basis for a claim was not reasonably available to counsel, or [where] 'some

interference by officials' made compliance impracticable." Hathaway v. State, supra, 119

Nev. at 252 (quoting Murray v. Carrier, 477 U.S. 478 (1986)); see also, Gonzales v. State,

118 Nev. 590, 595, 53 P.3d 901, 904 (2002Xc1ting Harris v. Warden, Southern Desert

Correctional Cir., 114 Nev. 956, 959-60 n. 4, 964 P.24 785 n. 4 (1998)). Importantly, any

delay in filing of the petition must not be the fault of the petitioner. NRS 34.726(1)(a).

"Generally, 'good cause' means a 'substantial reason; one that affords a legal excuse."

Hathaway v. State, 119 Nev. 248, 252, 71 P.3d 503, 506 (2003). Erroneous rulings by the

state courts and federal district courts in denying a Defendant's first petition constitute good

cause. Lozada v. State, 110 Nev. 349, 353, 871 P.2d 944, 946 (1994). On the other hand, a

defendant's alleged organic brain damage, limited intelligence, and poor assistance in

framing and presenting issues do not rise to the level of good cause needed to overcome the

procedural bar to successive petitions. Phelps v. Director, Dept. of Prisons, 104 Nev. 656,

660, 764 P.24 1303, 1306 (1988).

Prejudice is proven where a Defendant establishes that the errors actually and

substantially disadvantaged him and affected the state proceedings with error of

constitutional dimensions. Id.; State v. Eighth Judicial District Court, supra, 121 Nev. at

1075. A defendant fails to meet this burden where he merely establishes a possibility of

prejudice. Crump v. Warden, Nevada State Prison, supra, 113 Nev. at 302.

Defendant acknowledges that claims One (in part), Three, Six (in part), Seven,

P4WPDOCSIOPP/FOPP/908/90g5 11,03
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in part), Nine, Ten, Fifteen, Seventeen, Eighteen and Nineteen have not been previously

raised. Because all of these issues were capable of being raised on direct appeal or in his

prior post-conviction petition for writ of habeas corpus, these claims are procedurally barred

pursuant to NRS 34.810. In addition, the claims are time barred. NRS 34.726.

Furthermore, Defendant has failed to establish good cause and prejudice sufficient to

overcome either procedural bar. Rather. Defendant makes a blanket assertion that the failure

to . raise these claims previously amounts to ineffective assistance of counsel which

constitutes the good cause necessary to overcome this procedural hurdle. However, this

claim is without merit.

To constitute good cause, claims of ineffective assistance of counsel must be raised in

a reasonable time to avoid application of procedural default rules, See Pellegrini V. State,

117 Nev. 860, 869-70, 34 P,3d 519, 525-26 (2001) (holding that the time bar in NRS 34.726

applies to successive petitions); see generally Hathaway v. State, 119 Nev. 248, 252-53, 71

P,3d 503, 506-07 (2003) (stating the a claim reasonably available to the petitioner during the

statutory time period did not constitute good cause to excuse a delay in filing). Defendant

waited nearly a year and a half after conclusion of his first post-conviction proceedings

before challenging the performance of his first post-conviction counsel, Pursuit of federal

remedies does not constitute good cause to overcome state procedural bars. Colley v. State,

105 Nev. 235, 773 Pld 1229 (1989).

Additionally, an appellate/post-conviction attorney has no obligation to raise every

conceivable issue on appeal. Janes v. Barnes, 463 U.S. 745, 751 (1983). Trained counsel

have a superior ability to examine the record, research the lavv, and marshal arguments on

behalf of their clients. Id.' Thus, a "defendant has [no] constitutional right to compel

•n •nn •nn •nn •1.1

"Experienced advocates since time beyond memory have emphasized the importance of winnowing out
weaker arguments on appeal and focusing on one central issue if possible or at most on a few key issues.
Justice	Jackson,	after	observing	appellate	advocates	for	many	years,	stated:
'One of the first tests of a discriminating advocate is to select the question, or questions, that he will present
orally. Legal contentions, lace the currency, depreciate through over-issue. The mind of an appellate Judge is
habitually receptive to the suggestion that a lower court committed an error. But receptiveness declines as the
number of assigned errors increases. Multiplicity hints at lack of confidence in any one.... [E]xperience on the
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appointed counsel to press nonfrivolous points requested by the client, if counsel, as a matter

of. professional judgment, decides not to present those points." Id. at 751. Therefore, to

succeed on a claim that counsel was ineffective in failing to raise an issue on direct appeal or

in a post-conviction petition for writ of habeas corpus, a Defendant must establish that

counsel's conduct fell below an objective standard of reasonableness as measured by

prevailing professional norms, and that he was prejudiced by such conduct. Strickland v.

Washington, 466 U.S. 668, 687-88 (1984); Riley v. State, 110 Nev. 638, 646, 878 P.2d 272;

277-78 (1995). Prejudice is proven where the Defendant successfully establishes that the

issue had a reasonable probability of success on appeal. Rippo v. State, -- Nev. —, 146 P.3d

279, 285 (2006).

Defendant !Ms failed to prove that counsePs conduct in choosing not to raise every

conceivable issue on appeal in post-conviction proceedings fell below an objective standard

of reasonableness as measured by prevailing professional norms. Furthermore, Defendant

has not established that any of the omitted issues had a reasonable likelihood of success on

appeal in post-conviction proceedings. As such, Defendant has not proven that either

appellate counsel or post-conviction counsel were ineffective such that he has good cause for

failing to raise the issues on direct appeal or in post-conviction proceedings and in failing to

raise the issues within one year of the finality of his judgment of conviction. Moreover,

Defendant has not established that the complained of errors actually and substantially

prejudiced him such that the proceedings were infected with constitutional error. Thus, he

his not established prejudice sufficient to overcome the procedural bars.

bench convinces me that multiplying assignments of error will dilute and weaken a good case and will not
save a bad one.'" i0120S v. Barnes, 463 U.S. 745, 751-752 (19113)(citing Jackson, Advocacy Bejbre the
Supreme	Court,	25	Temple	L.Q.	115,	119	(1951)).

P-IIMPOOCWOPP/FOPP/90419085/803
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established that counsel's conduct fell below an objective standard of reasonableness or that

he was prejudiced in any manner.

F.

DEFENDANT BAD SUFFICIENT RESOURCES AT HIS DISPOSAL.

, Defendant argues that the Clark County Public Defender's office lacked adequate

resources to aid in his defense. Just because there is apparently no oversight or limit to the

expenditure of tax dollars at the federal level in defense of capital litigants, does not mean

that Nevada's more judicious allocation of resources is unconstitutional. None of the various

experts retained at the federal level were "reasonably necessary" in light of the

overwhelming evidence against Defendant and what little they add to the facts of this case

would not have changed the outcome. Counsel was not ineffective in failing to demand

more resources, as the record shows counsel retained reasonable everts and provided an

adequate defense. Defendant is not entitled to the best or most expensive defense available.

As such, Defendant suffered no prejudice.

G.
NEITHER APPELLATE COUNSEL NOR POST-CONVICTION

COUNSEL WAS INEFFECTIVE.

Defendant asserts that appellate counsel and post-conviction counsel were ineffective

failing to raise substantial constitutional issues. However, as set forth more fully in

ection 1, supra, neither counsel's conduct fell below an objective standard of

reasonableness. This is a successive petition and Defendant has unreasonably delayed his

challenges to the effective assistance of post-conviction counsel by pursuing his federal

remedies for well over a year. Colley v, State, 105 Nev. 235, 773 P.24 1229 (1989).

FUrthermore, Defendant has not shown that appellate counsel failed to raise any issue that

had a reasonable likelihood of success on appeal Rippo v. State, supra, — Nev. —, 146 13.3d

at 285.

18
	

P:AVPDOCSPOPP/FOPP/901190851803

2

4

5

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

JA009027



•	•
EXHIBIT 335

EXHIBIT 335

JA009028



5

6

1

1

12

1

14

1

1

1

1

19

20

2

22

2

24

25

27

28

SUPP
I-. a

Nevada State Bar #004349
nos,. Fourth Street, 2nd Floor
Las Vegas, Nevada 89101
(702) 384-5563
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DISTRICT COURT

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

*****

THE STATE OF NEVADA

Plaintiff,

MICHAEL DAMON R1PPO,

1ETITIONJ!R
(POST-CONVICTION}

COMES NOW the Defendant, MICHAEL DAMON RIPPO, by and through his counsel

of record, CHRISTOPHER. R. ORAM, ESQ, and does hereby submit his supplemental brief in

support of Defendants Writ of Habeas Corpus filed with this Honorable COUlt
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t is made and based upon the pleadings and papers on file herein, the

ping Memorandum of Points and Authorities, and any oral argument adduced at the time of
3

DATED this / tt, day of February, 2004.

Respectfully submitted by

efrott-  -	
CHRISTOPHER R. ORAM, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 004349
520 S. Fourth Street, 2nd Floor
Las Vegas, Nevada 89101
(702) 384-5563
Attorney for Petitioner
MICHAEL DAMON RIPPO
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MICHAEL DAMON RIPPO (hereinafter referred to as RIPPO) stands convicted of a

number of felonies, including two counts of First Degree Murder. He was sentenced to death by

that injection by the trial jury. REPPO was represented by Steve Wolfson and Phil Danleavy at -

RIPp0 was indicted by the Clark County Grand hay on Jkale 5, 1992, on charges of

Murder, Robbery, Possession of Stolen Vehicle, Possession of Credit Cards Without the

Cardholder's Consent and Unautlaceized Signing of Credit Card Transaction Document (1 ROA

1-4) . R1PPO was arraigned on July 20, 1992, before the Honorable Gerard Bongiovanni and

waived his right to a trial within sixty days (5 ROA 18-23) „ Oral requests for discovery and

reciprocal discovery were granted by the Court (5 ROA 18-23) . RIPPO'S formal Motion for

Discovery was granted by the Court on November 4, 1992(5 ROA 1113-1125),

Prior to the District Court arraignment, the State filed a Notice of Intent to Seek the Death

Penalty alleging the existence of four aggravating circumstances, to wit: (1) the murders were

committed by a person under a sentence of	isonthent;

19 person who had been previously convicted of a felony involving violence, (3) the murders were

20 (*ramified during the perpetration of a robbery, and (4) the murders involved torture or
21

mutilation of the victims (1 ROA 7-8).
22

The trial date was continued several times, the first being at the request of defense
23

24 counsel on February 5, 1993, due to a scheduling conflict and the case was reset for trial for

25 September 11, 1993. On September 2, 1993, RIPPO filed a Notice of Alibi (2 ROA 2.84-28t1),

26 On September 10, 1993, the date set for the hearing of a number of pretrial motions the defense
27

oved to continue the trial date based on having just received from prosecutor John Lukens, on
213

3

14



rktn

September 7th, notice of the State's intent to use at least two new expert witnesses and a number

of jail house snitehes and discovery had not yet boon provided on any of the new witnesses (2

ROA 295-306) The Court granted the defense request to continue the trial date and same was

reset to February 14, 1994 (2 ROA 304)

A status hearing on the tried date was held on January 31, 1994, at which tinie the defense

icated that subpoenas had been served on the two prosecutors on the case, John Lukens and

cresa Lowry, as they had participated in the service of a search warrant and had discovered

vIdence thereby making themselves witnesses in the case (2 ROA 323-326) . A Motion to

the District Attorney's office was thereupon filed along with a Motion to Continue the

ROA 358-375; 351- 357). At the hearing of the Motions the Court continued the trial

March 28, 1994, in order to allow time for an evidentiary hearing on the disqualification

st end because the court's calendar would not accommodate the trial date (2 ROA 14-15).

The evidentiary hearing on the Motion to Disqualify the District Attorney's office was

on March 7, 1994, and two days later the Court granted the motion and irmoved Lukens

Levey from the case, hut	in to sq

'et attorneys be assigned to the ease (3 ROA 680-684) . Prosecutors Mel Harmon and Dan

anon were assigned the case. At a status hearing on March 18th defense counsel indicated that

ey had just been provided with a substantial amount of discovery that had been previously

"thheld and that the State had filed a motion to Amend the Indictment and that therefore the

fense was again put in the position of having to ask the Court to continue the trial date. The

ourt granted the motion and reset the trial date for October 24, 1994.

The October trial date was also vacated and reset based on representations made by the

'et Attorney at the calendar call on October 21, 1994 (4 ROA 828-829) . The date was

4
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set for August and September, 1995, however due to conflicting trial schedules, the date was

cr.+

once again reset for January 29, 1996. On January 3, 1996 thc State was allowed to

Amended Indictment over the objection of RIFF° (4 ROA 847-849).

Jury selection commenced on January 30, 1996, and the evidentiary portion of the trial

gan on February 2, 1996. An interruption of the trial occurred between February 7th and

26th based on the failure of the State to provide discovery concerning a confession and

neulpatery statements claimed to have been made by RIPPO to one of the State's witnesses, The

trial thereafter proceeded without further interruption and final arguments were made to the jury

on March 5, 1996.

Guilty verdicts were returned on two counts of first degree murder, and one count each of

bbery and unauthorized use of a credit card (5 ROA, 1001) The penalty hearing commenced

ti March 12, 1996 and concluded on March 14, 1996 with verdicts of deed" on both of the

der counts. On the remaining felony counts RIPPO was sentenced to a total of twenty-five

) years consecutive to the murder counts (Minutes page 40).
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sentence being affirmed on October 1, 1997. Rim) v,,State, 113 Nev. 1239, 946 P.2d 1017

(1997). RIPF0 filed for Rehearing and on February 9, 1998, an Order was entered Denying

Rehearing. A Petition for Writ of Certiorari was filed with the United States Supreme Court and

Certiorari was denied on October 5, 1998. The Nevada Supreme Court issued it's Remittitur on

November 3, 1998. RIPPO timely filed the instant Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus on

December 4, 1998.

H.5.TATE.MENT OF THE FACE

A. TRIAL TESTIMONY

5
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e scene analyst Cabrales learned that a number of police officers had entered and

viewed the crime scene and evidence was developed that showed that the crime scene had been

ntaminated (16 ROA 137-138) . Calnales prepared a memorandum stating that "Obviously,

the crime scene was not protected and the integrity of all evidence recovered from the scene has

been compromised" (16 ROA 138),

Denny Mason and Lizzi had been on and off boyfriend and girlfriend for four or five

years (16 ROA 38). Be had given Lizzi a Nissan 300ZX automobile (16 ROA 43), and about a

eek before she was found dead, let her use his Visa card to go shopping to buy some things for

house (16 ROA 48-49). Mason did not authorize anyone to make purchases from the

=gear Company (16 ROA 59) nor use the card at the Gold Coast from February 19th through

21st (16 ROA 61), Lizzi also had access to Mason's Dillard's card. To the best of his

ledge Mason had never met or heard of RIFF° (16 ROA 42).

Diana Hum, who was originally arrested and charged as a co-defendant with RIM, was

ailed by the State pursuant to her plea negotiations (11 ROA 164-166) , According to Bunt„ she

is tatted dating RIPPO in January, 1992, and they v. toget	or a peri

owan Road (11 ROA 30; 31) As of February 17th they were living with Deidre D'Amore, a

nd of RIPPO (11 ROA 32), and RIFPO told Hunt that he had been over to Jacobson's

partment helping her move (11 ROA 33;34). The following day, at about 9:00 a.m. RIPPO

oke up Hunt and they then drove to the Katie Arms, to help Jacobson move (11 ROA 36-38) .

entering. the apartment, Hunt at on the couch and Jacobson and RIPPO were running

and the apartment, laughing and doing drugs (II ROA 40). Hunt observed RI1PPO inject a

stance into his arm arid Jacobson to do the same 1110 her left wrist (11 ROA 41).

Denise Liz;ri arrived at the apartment complex and Jacobson went down and talked with

7
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for about twenty minutes (11 ROA 46) . While Jacobson was downstairs, RIPPO closed the

10

13

14

curtains and the window and asked Hunt for the stun gun that was in her purse, then made a

telephone call (II ROA 47-49) . Denise and Jacobson came back into the apartment and went

into the bathroom at which time RIPPO went into the kitchen and got a bottled beer and brought-

tie Hunt (It ROA 51) . When he handed her the beer, RIPPO told Hunt that "when Lauri

answers the phone, I want you to lilt her with the beide so I can rob Denise' (11 ROA 51) . A

few minutes later the phone rang and when Lauri bent over to get the phone. Hunt hit her on the

back of the head with the bottle (11 ROA 53) . Lauri fell to the floor but wasn't knocked out (11

ROA 53-54).

Hurd, after hitting Lauri with the bottle, could hear the stun gun going off in the bathroom

and RIPPO and Denise arguing (11 ROA 55). RIPPO wrestled Denise out of the bathroom and

nto a big closet across the hall (11 ROA 55) Hunt ran to the closet and observed ROW sitting

tap of Denise and still stunning her with the sum gun (1) ROA 56) Hunt went back to where

Lauri was located and helped her sit up and RIPPO came out of the closet with a knife in his

hand and cut the cords off of app lances	C 5B-5)). Thecords werethen

hands and the feet of Lauri (11 ROA 60) . A bandana was then used to gag her moteh (11 ROA

61).

23

24

25

27

Hunt went back and looked in the closet again and observed that Denise's hands and feet

e tied and KIPP° was asking her all kinds of questions (11 ROA 62) . RIPPO then put

ething inside of Denise's mouth and she fell over on her side (11 ROA 62). At that point ia

someone came to the door of the apartment and was yelling for Lauri and Act about five

tdes left (11 LOA 63-64).

Hunt's story continued with RIPPO allegedly putting another cord between the ones on
28
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hands and feet and picking her up and dragging her across the floor with it (11 ROA 68) .

1
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,auri was choking (11 ROA (8). Hunt threw up and then went and looked in the closet and saw

RIPPO with his knee in the small of Denise's back with something around her neck and pulling

real hard and choking her (11 ROA 69) . RIPPO started grabbing all kinds of things putting them-

to a bag and told Hunt to clean up everything and put everything into the hag (1 1 ROA 71-72) .

PO wiped down everything in the apartment (11 ROA 73) . At one point RIPPO untied

Denise's feet and removed her pants stating that he had bled on her pants (11 ROA 82).

When they left the apartment RIPPO had two bags with him and told Hunt to just go

home and wait and that nobody got hurt (11 ROA 79) . Later that evening RIPPO called and told

her to meet him at a friend's shop (II ROA 84). Hunt drove to the shop of Tom Sims and met

RUT° vit.° told her that he had a ear for her, which was a maroon Nissan (11 ROA M-85) .

Hunt had a friend, Tom Christos, who could get paperwork on the car and RTPPO asked her to do

o (11 ROA 86) . She therefore drove the ear over to Christos' house (11 RCA 88).

The following day RIPPO told her that he had purchased an air compressor and some

tools at Service Merchandise that morning	 11 RCA 90-91) .

Mall, Hunt and RIPPO purchased two pair of sunglasses for $160.00 using a Gold Visa credit

e.ard (11 RCA 92-93; 12 R0A163) The credit card yeas presented and signed in the name of

Denny Mason (12 RCA 173-174) Upon returning to Deitire's residence, Hunt got into R1PPO'S

wallet because she wanted to get away from him and took the Visa card (II RCA 93-96) The

credit card was in the name of Denny Mason (11 ROA 96).

According to Hunt after steal-mg the credit card, she went to the residence of Christos and

he told her to go get the TII810011 ear (11 RCA 97-9g). February 19, 1992 was the birthday of

P rillo and she was living with her boyfriend Tom Christos at that time, and she
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complained to Hunt that Christos had been beating her and that she didn I want to go back to the

house (11 ROA 99) . The two went to a shopping mall and on the way RIPPO beeped Hunt and

he wanted the credit card back and arrangements were made to meet at the mall, but RIPPO did

not show up (11 ROA 101-102) . While they were at the mall, Hunt bought cologne for Teresa -•

(11 ROA 102), and the pair went to several bars (11 ROA 103) and then got a room at thc Gold

Coast wing the Denny Mason credit card (11 ROA 104) . During the evening Hunt stopped at a

Mend's house and got some primer paint and sprayed the car because she knew it was stolen and

wanted to change the appeanmec of the car (11 ROA 105),

On February 29th, Hunt called the police and told them that she knew someAhing (11

12 ROA 112) . The next day RIPPO got into Hunt's Dodge Colt with her and as they were driving

13 made statements to her about what would happen to her if she left and that he had gone back to

14
the Jacobson apartment and cut the throats of the girls and jumped up and down on them (11

s

3

4

saying that she had killed the two girls and he had proof (12 ROA 92). A confrontation occurred
23

24 and Hunt yelled back that he had killed those girls and she could prove it, and IMPO ran around

25	front of the ear and started punching her in the face (11 ROA 156) He also stunned her with

2 "--stungunandwhhegothcrdnwnonthcgrounddcboknherandbangingherhead

ROA 115-118) The car ran out of gas and Hunt jumped out of the car, leaving her belongings

bind and ran down the street and called her friend (11 ROA 120) . Afler her friend picked her

p, they went back to her car and her bag vvas missing

19 ROA 121).

0	in the early morning homs of March 1, 1992, Hunt had further contact vvith RIPPO at a

°Ilse in North Las Vegas (11 ROA 1511-155) . As RIPPO was getting out of his car he was
22

27
tato thc pavement (11 ROA 159) . Other individuals pulled RIPPO off of Hunt and the police
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were called, but RIPPO left before the police arrived (11 ROA 159- 161).

Hunt was wrested for the killing and robbery of Lizzi and Jacobson on April 21. 1992 in

Yerington, Nevada (11 ROA 162), On June 2, 1992, she entered in to a plea agreement whereby

she wouldn't be prosecuted for the murders if she cooperated with the police and testified against

R1PPO (11 ROA 166) . She pled guilty to robbery and was sentenced to fifteen years in prison

(11 R.OA 168) . Also part of the pica agreement was that Hunt would not be prosecuted for any

other uncharged conduct, including credit card fraud, selling drugs and stealing cars (12 ROA 9).

While in prison Hunt asked the District Attorney's Office to help her get reclassified to a

minimum facility and such a letter was vkaittert by Deputy District Attorney Dan Seaton (12 ROA

105-106) . At the time of her testimony she bad already been before the parole board and been

denied parole (12 RO.A 120).

Hunt had been in a mental hospital for eleven and a half months when she was 16 years

Id (12 ROA 14) . She had a tattoo on her arm with two lightin bolts and the letters SWP which

stood for Supreme White Power (12 ROA 23) . Neither she nor RIPPO took a knife or gun to the

apartment which is something unti

commit robbery or murder (12 ROA 58),

Teresa Penile had lived with Tom Christos for about a year and was acquainted with

Hut-it through Hunt's cousin Carrie Burns (13 ROA 7-9) . On the way to the Mall, Hunt stopped

at an apartment complex and removed the ear cover from a maroon Nissan and stated that

because it was Patio's birthday she deserved to drive in a better car (13 ROA 10-12) . Hunt told

her that she had repossessed the ear from a bad drug deal (13 ROA 12) . They then went to

Dillards in the mall and Hant purchased perfume using a credit card (13 ROA 13). It was Hunt

that rented the motel mom at the Gold Coast (13 ROA 18) Sometime after their arrival at the

11

20

2

22

23

24

25

26

27

26
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Coast, Hunt left to go to Perillo's residence to pick up a phone book that had some

paperwork for the car in it (13 ROA 19). While Hunt was gone, Patin() checked the billing
431
1-11

intbrmation on the television and observed that the name on the room was Denny Mason (13
4

5 ROA 20) Perillo also observed Hunt to have identification belonging to other persons with her,

and remembered seeing the name Denise Lizzi (13 ROA 36) . At nine o'clock the following

evening they took a gentleman that they had picked up at the Club Rock back to the bar and went

21
arose between the two of them and Laurie Ins zoiced to move out (13 ROA 46-47). Liston was

12

8
to the house of a friend of Hunt's so that Hunt eould pere .hase a gon (13 R.OA 21) . There was no

transacti for a gun, but Hunt did ask for primer paint so that she could change the appearance

of the car (13 ROA 22), Runt then took Perin° back to her residence and Perillo did not see

g	12 Hunt again atter February 20, 1992 (13 ROA 25-26).

Frig r4 13 	 RIPPO had called the house of Christos on the 20th in the early evening hours looking for

f	14
Hunt and left a message with Christos that " tbg cat is out &Arlie bag" (19 ROA 48-49). Hunt had

3	15

previously talked with ChnStos about his experience with stolen vehicles and she had c ome to
.410
oa	16

him looking far a way to get rid of the stoic% car (19 ROA 52) . Christos wasn't surprised
17

X	she showed up OD his doorstep with a stolen

Laurie Jacobson had worked at a bar called Trampe with Wendy Liston (13 ROA 43) .

y had lived together in 1990 and 1991 (13 It0A 45) . When Laurie started doing drugs a rift

22
trying to get her off of drugs but Lizzi Icept earning over and trying to get her to continue to use

23

24 drugs (14 ROA 15) Liston had met Lizzi on only couple of occasions (13 ROA 49) . Laurie

25 would obtain her drugs from Lizzi or through a friend associated veldt Lizzi known to her as

28 RIPPO (13 ROA 52) . After Laurie moved into the Katie Arms apartments, Liston would go by

die apartment during her lunch hour take her food or money or anything she needed and at the
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same time was trying to convince her to move (13 ROA 54).

Liston had last seen Jacobson the Monday before she died; February 17, 1992 (13 ROA

58-59) . On the evening before Jacobson had asked her to come over, and when she got there

Jacobson and R11PO were discussing some morphine that she had (13 ROA 61) . RIPPO and

Jaeobson went into the bathroom and intravenously used the morphine (13 BOA 63) . Liston also

went over to the apartment on her lunch hour on the 17th and RIPPO was also present at said

time (13 ROA 64) Jacobson needed the tire fixed on her car and Liston followed her to

isommt Tire in her car and then dropped her back off at her apartment (13 BOA 64-67).

Liston went back to the Jacobson apartment on the 18th and observed that the tire had

n fixed on the car, and looked in the back of the ear and saw a pair of her boots that she

wanted back (13 BOA 73) . Liston went upstairs and knocked on the door and tried the (Joor and

window but they were locked and there was no answer at the door (13 BOA 74-75) After about

es she yelled through the door and left (13 ROA 76).

Thomas Sims had operated a maintenance company since 1989 in Las Vegas (14 BOA

27) . Sims bad known R1PPO since- 1985 and on Februalyntti,-RIPPO entered-his

the afternoon and said that he had a car that he wanted Sims to look at and wanted to know if he

wanted to buy it or knew someone that would want to buy the car (14 BOA 28-30) . RJPPO

brought a suitcase and perhaps a box with him and started going through the items on the couch

(14 ROA 31) . Sims asked where the car had came from and RIPPO told him that someone had

died for the ear (14 BOA 32) . ihe car was a Nis&an 300ZX anti Sims told him that he did not

want the car there and to get it away from his shop (14 BOA 33) R1PPO wanted $2,000.00 for

the car because he wanted to leave to (14 BOA 35). RIPPO gave Sims a number of tapes and

the suitcase (14 ROA 36-37) RIPPO left the car behind and was gone for about an hour and a

13

JA009041



S.
C

•••el I and came back around closing time with Diana Hunt (14 ROA 442) WPM had a stack of

hundred dollar bills and stated that he had just won a royal flush, and Sims emphasized to

that he wanted thc car gone hy the time he came to vvork the next o ing (14 ROA 42).

Sims came to 'mirk the next morning at 7:30 AM the ear was gone (14 ROA 45).

On the 21st of February, Sims saw a broadcast that two WOIXIC11 had been killed and that

diem was named Denise Lizzi and realized that was the same name that was on a number

the tapes that had been given to him bylKIPPO (.14 ROA 46- 47). On February 26th RIPPO

called Sims and wanted to come by and pick up a bottle of morphine he had le-ft in a refrigerator

at the office (14 ROA 49-50). Sims didn't want RIPPO coming to his shop and agreed to meet

somewhere to deliver it to him (14 ROA 53) „ Sims eventually met RIPPO at a K-Mart

king lot because RIPPO'S car had broken down and gave him the bottle (14 ROA 55-56).

According to Sims, he asked R1PPO about the murders and RIPPO said that he had choked those

wo hitches to death and that he had accidentally kined the one girl so he had to kill the other (14

ROA 56; 62) . Sims then drove RIPPO to the Stardust Hotel and on the way IMP° told him that

was cturying or dragging one of the galto the IT'

Diana Hunt was with him and had participated in the murders (14 ROA 57.58) When asked if

he trusted Hunt, RIPPO replied that Hunt had hit the girl over the head with a beer bottle and that

he trusted her fully (14 ROA 59) . Sims also asked why one of the girls had fin pants an and

RiPPO told him that he had cut his finger during the incident and dropped blood on her pants 30

he had to take the pants and dispose of them (14 ROA 61) . Finally, RIPPO indicated that he

could have flicked both of the girls and that he didn't and that meant that he was cured (14 ROA

63).

Sims had been interviewed by the police and only answered the specific questions that

14

JA009042



S.
y asked and did not vohmteer any information about the events he claimed occurred on

2
Febniary 26, 1992. (14 ROA 6546) The first time that Sims had told anybody about the

additional statements he claimed RIPPO made was around October, 1993, when he talked with

Teresa Lowry and John Lukens in the District Attorney's Office (14 R.OA 86-87) • Sims only

6 provided his story about what RIPPO allegedly told him after Sims had been arrested for drug

7 and ex-felon in possession of firearm charges.

Diana Hunt had provided Sims with copies of the discovery on the case (16 ROA 13).

The autopsies of Lizzi and Jacobson occurred on February 21, 1992, and were performed

Dr. Sheldon Green (17 ROA 59), Initial observations of Lizzi revealed that a sock had been

15
Pieces of cloth were tied around each wrist (17 ROA 68) Two ligature marks were completely

. 	6
c" 17 circling the neck that were consistent with. an electrical type of cord (17 ROA 73; 81) There were

ew tiny pinpoint hemorrhages in the inside o eeyei	'	of the eye (17

ROA 74) These are commonly found in situations where there is an acute asphyxial death (17

ROA 74) There was scarring in the left arm that was typical of people who have used intravenous

gs (17 ROA 77) There were modest abrasions or scraping injuries of the skin on the forehead

and under the chin (17 ROA 77) Located in the neck area were two small stab wounds which

went through the skin into the band of muscle that comes from a point behind the ear to the top

f the breastbone (17 ROA 83) At the time of the autopsy there were no ligatures wound the

however there were marks that would strongly suggest that there had been something tied

following death (17 ROA 86) internal examination showed a lot of hemorrhage in the

pushed into her mouth and secured by a gag that encircled her hod (17 PCA 62) Upon opening

g t CA 13 tho mouth to recover the sock, Green noted that the sock had been pushed in so that the tongue

of)	14
was forced into the back of the throat, completely blocking off the airway (17 ROA 66; 68)
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deeper tissues and the ligaments that control the vtice box and the thyroid gland that were typical
2

Ui
CEA

CS.
CZ.

4.1

4

6

0

10

of strangulation (17 ROA 89) Green believed that there was a combination of manual and

ligature strangulation involved in the death of 1,177.1 (17 ROA. 91) Toxicology revealed

metiaarophetamine in the blood and the urine in the amount of 5,288 nanograms which is

usually high (17 ROA 95; 96).

There were no restraints associated with the autopsy of Lauri Jacobson (17 ROA 105;

2) There was some apparent damage around the neck and behind the right ear, and a scratch on

e neck which ended in a very superficial little stab wound (17 ROA 107) in the neck there was

a great deal of hemorrhage in the soft tissue around the muscle and the thyroid gland and

addition there was an actual fracture of the cartilage which forms the voice box or larynx (17

ROA 112) Death was the result of asphyxiation due to manual strangulation (17 ROA 114) it

would require something in the area of tvvo, three or four minutes to cause death by such

strangulation (17 ROA 124- 125) There were no epidtual, subdatal or subarachnoid hemorrhages

at and no discrete hemorrhages were found in the scalp (17 ROA 133). No stun gun marks

were found on either victim (17 ROA 130).

During the autopsy of Lizzi a black scarf was recovered from her left wrist (17 ROA 21-

. A pair of blue sweat pants was removed from the right ViriSt (17 ROA 24) . A black sock

recovered from inside her mouth (17 ROA 26) . A pair of black panties was recovered from

the head of Lizzi (17 ROA30),

Sexual assault kits were recovered from both victims with negative results (18 ROA 113).

The torso of Lauri Jacobson had glass shards from about the waist to the neck (17 ROA

Sheree Norman had impounded a plastic cylindets, spoons, hypodermic syringes, a Q-tip

16
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and smoking devices that were analyzed and found to contain residues of metbamphetamine and

marijuana (17 ROA 166-167).

Fingerprint comparisons revealed that eleven prints were recovered inside the apartment

that belonged to police officers (18 ROA 30) . One fingerprint was identified as belonging to

homicide detective Scholl (1 8 ROA 3D) and one was also identified to Officer Gooier (18 ROA

31) . These were the only positive matches found within the apartment (18 ROA 32).

Carlos Ciapa, the sales manager at Sears in the Boulevard Mall was working in the

hardware department on February 19, 1992, and sold a compressor, a spray gun, an air sander,

couplings and a warranty to RIPPO (18 ROA 17 6--183) . Tlae items were paid for v.vith a Sears

credit card lathe name of Dearilse Lird and signed in the name of Denny Morgan (18 ROA 184-

185).

The handwriting on the Stingless Company and Scars receipts was examined by

document examiner William Leaver who determined that there were similarities between the

signatures on the documents and the handwriting of RIPPO (19 ROA 6-14), indicating a

possibility that RIPPO wa cIhoflKe sigma-hires

Deidre D'Amore testified that she knew RIM and Hunt and that during February, 1992,

she allowed them to live in her townhouse with her for a period of two weeks. R1PPO was her

friend and if it wasn't for RIPPO she would not have allowed Hunt to stay at her residence. On

occasions she would let RIPPO or Hunt borrow her Isuzu pickup tuck. She was only casually

acquainted with Lauri Jacobson and Denise LIM and had seen Denise driving a red Nissan 300

7_,X about a week prior - to February 18, 1992. Around the 18th the police had impounded her

truck alter RIPPO had bon-owed it and recovered a pair of Oakley sunglasses inside of the truck,

She had never seen the sunglasses before her testimony.
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Hunt had conversations with D'Amore wherein Hunt indicated that she had a romantic

Merest in Michael Beaudoin and that Beaudoin hated Denise Lizzi and that Hunt was "psyc.bing

out" Denise because Beaudoin had asked her to. Hunt told her that she like to beat up Denise.

D'Amore was not fond of Hunt and had told RTPPO that she wanted her out of the house.

tmt had been stealing items out of her house, and D"Atnote had caught her and confronted her

ut it,

David Levine WM in custody in the Southern Desert Correctional Center with R1PPO in

January, 1993(19 ROA 145). Levine was a porter on the floor and had the opportunity to play

cards and talk with RIPPO (19 TWA 146) RIPPO had Levine call his girlfriend and give her

messages to handle things for him and to give messages to his attorney (19 ROA 150).

According to Levine, RIPPO confessed to him that he had killed the two Women and that after

killing them he went and played video poker and hit a royal flush (19 ROA 153) , RIPPO also

tried to figure out if Levine and he were on the street at the same time in order to use him as an

witness and then a character witness (19 ROA 157).

B. PENALTY HEART

20

21

22

23

24

26

26

27

Laura Martin lived in an apartment in Las Vegas on January, 1982 (22 RCA 37; 39) . She

had gone to bed at about midnight on the 15th and to the best other knowledge the doors and

windows were locked when she went to bed (2.2 TWA 40-41) She was awakened at about 7:30

AM 'with RIPPO sitting on top of her with a knife to her throat (22 ROA 42-43) asking where her

neyw	(22 TWA 45-46) . RIPPO tied her foals with her bathrobe tie and then tied her

feet with electrical cords (22 ROA 47-48) . Five cut sections of electrical cord 1,vere found in the

apartment (22 ROA 97) When Martin asked questions he hit her and told her to shut up (22

TWA 48) . RIPPO eta her clothes off with the knife, and then allowed her to put a tube top on (22
20

18
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ROA 50-52) . He was just mumbling and moving around the apartment (22 ROA 52) . R1PPO

paced around the apartment and pretty much talking or mumbling the whole time that he was

there (22 ROA 86) . She was asked if she wanted to engage in sex and when she begged him not

to do so, he just laughed (22 ROA 54). At one point RIPPO got her down on the bed and spread

her legs apart and raped her, although he did not ejaculate (22 ROA 59) . At one point he placed

e knife in the area of her breasts and said that he was going to cut her nipples off and that he

done it before, but that girl was dead (22 ROA 62).

Martin begged for her life and KIPP° indicated that if she told anyone he would come

back and kill her (22 ROA 66) 1k tried to choke her with wire clothes hangers (22 ROA 67).

RIFF() got her car keys and left and she ran to a neighbor arid eaDed the police (22 ROA 67-70) .

Martin ended up with about 15 stitches behind her ear, a concussion, black eyes and a huge bump

on her leg that she thought might have been a chipped bone (22 ROA 74) She never went back

to her apartment and had been unable to live alone since the incident (22 ROA 75).

On April 1, 1981, Metro Officer Jack Hardin became involved in the investigation of a

year old RIPPO was identified as a suspect and Hardin therefore went to an apartment on East

pieana and made contact with the occupant and located a peat deal of electronic equipment

ROA 110-213). Also recovered were four firearms (22 ROA 115) R1PPO was arrested for

the burglary of the Radio Shack and of Holman's of Nevada and taken to the Clark County

Juvenile facility (22 ROA 119) . He was also booked as a runaway (22 ROA 120). It was his

tiler's request that he be committed to Spring Mountain Youth Camp (2.2 ROA 136).

RIPPO was committed to the Spring Mountain Youth Camp on April 29, 1981 and

abed there until August 26, 1981 when he was released to his parents (22 ROA 130) . Dating

19
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10

1

his stay at SMYC RIPPO was under the supervision of tetr. Carriage who died and the State

therefore called Robert Sergi who remembered RIPPO as pleasant to be around, but that he gave

the impression of just shining him on (22 ROA 152) . Sergi never got the impression that he

intended to end his criminal lifestyle (22 ROA 161).

In December, 1981, two rifles and four handguns were recovered in the attic of a home

wherein RIPPO was living (23 R.OA 10). RIPPO had run away from home and had stolen the

guns in residential burglaries according to a. friend of R1PPO'S (23 R.OA 11) . On January 20,

1982, RIPPO was taken into custody on other charges and the burglary warrants Nvere served at

the same time (23 ROA 12-13) When interviewed RIPPO couldn't remember most of the

burglaries because he was high on drugs (23 ROA 16) WHO had been arrested M front of an

apartment waiving a gun and trying to gain entrance (23 ROA 211).

TwnMaroney was the juvenile parole officer for RIPPO and prepared the certification

report to the juvenile cote recommending that RIPPO be =titled as an adult on the charges of

sexual assault, burglary and others (23 ROA 40) . After his arrest RIPPO escaped from the

ie Juvenile Detentioa	ter
	

bright and

19 knew the difference between right and wrong (23 ROA 48). Psychologist Joanna Triggs

20 
valuated RIPPO while he was in the juvenile system and found that his memory was intact and

21
had no hallucinations and no evidence of paranoia or delusions (23 ROA 75) . He had average to

22 •
above average iritelligerice, WM not depressed, not suicidal, and had good social skills meaning

23

24 that he related very well and had good charisma (23 ROA 75).

On the sexual assault case, WPM was sentenced to life in prison with the possibility of

parole (23 ROA 101). RIPPO had told his Parole and Probation officer that he was under the

influence of phencyclidine which had been added to a marijuana cigarette when he committed the

20

26

27

28

JA009048



crime (23 ROA 108). RIPPO paroled fwm the prison sentence on October 24, 1989 (23 ROA

120), The parole was revoked on April 30, 1992 (23 ROA 125). Re was therefore under a

sentence of imprisonment on February 18, 1992 (23 ROA 125).

Correctional Officer Eric Karst testified that in March, 1986 at Southern Nevada

Correctional Center in Jean, Nevada he searched the cell of RIPPO and located a nine inch buck

knife, a pair of tumehtiks, a compass, money and a wrench (23 ROA 147) Also found was a brass

smoking pipe (23 ROA 149) . RIPPO carried some status with him in prison such that he was

known as a stand up convict that carried his own and was very seldom chailenged to fight

because his reputation was that he would not back down from any fights (23 ROA 151).

Victim impact testimony was offered from the father and mother-in-law of Lauri

two o (23 ROA 175-183; 184-188), Also offering victim impact testimony were the mother

and the fatber of Denise Liazi (23 ROA 189-207).

James Cooper was employed as a vocational education instructor in laundry and dry

cleaning with the Nevada Prison system in the early 1980's and later became involved with

. ooper firsrmet

ROA 7). RIPPO looked like an eighth wader and. shaved his head to try and make himself look

tougher (24 ROA 8). RIPPO worked in the laundry and never caused any problems and was OM

of the inmate workers that Cooper could leave unsupervised (24 ROA 9) . Cooper had

maintained contact with KIPP° and believed that he was reaching out for the Lord as he grew

older (24 ROA 12). Cooper was of the opinion that RIPPO would not be a problem to the prison,

but would rather be an asset (24 ROA 13).

R1PPO'S stepfather, Robert Duncan, told the jury about his contact with RIPPO after he

already reached the prison system (24 ROA 23). While he Was incarcerated Duncan supplied

21
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him with a iypewritcr, computer and computer courses and he did quite well, additionally

ex !ling in drawing and t4iritirtg (24 ROA 31) When RIPPO was released oil parole he came to

lye with Duncan and his mother arid lived in their residence for about nine to ten months (74

ROA 25) , RIPPO worked a number of jobs during that period of time, only changing when a -

er job became available (24 ROA 2629). The parole officer only came to visit once and

didn't even come into the house because he said that he had a heavy case load and didn't have

time (24 ROA 30).

The younger sister of RIPPO, Stacie Roterdam, told the jury about her relationship with

brother and the early years of their lives (74 R.OA 41) RIPPO was the fitmily clown,

ver anyone was down Or something was going on around the house be was them the make

laugh (24 ROA 42) When the parents would fight he would comfort his sisters and tell

that it would be OK (24 ROA 42).

A letter from WI/PUS mother was read to the jury because she could not come to Court

testify based on orders of her doctor as she was suffering from acute anxiety reaction and

anxiety depression (24 ROA 63) .

g up and how he first got into trouble (24 ROA 61-67).

RIPPO exercised his right to allocution and told the jury that the reason that he pled guilty

sexual assault charge was to spare thc victim the anguish of testifying (24 R.OA 74) . He

expressed his 5.0fTWN for the families of the two victims (24 ROA 75-76).

•	ARGAJNINn
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._NDMENTS_5. AND 14: VANE In_VS	MUTT ARTICUI

S	ON21.

Standard of review for ineffective assistare* of counsel. To state a claim of ineffective

assistance of counsel that is sufficient to invalidate a judigniatt of conviction, petitioner immt

demonstrate that

00 1 F	11, 506 D. S. 364,113 S. Ct. 838 122 2d, 180 (1993); Vicklagoi, 466 U.

I.	counsel's performance fell below an objective standard of reasonableness,

2.	counsel's errors were so severe thai they rendered the verdict unreliable.

jagada y. State, 110 Nev. 349, 353, 871 P. 2d 944, 946 (1994). (Citing Stelekland v. 

Washjogn, 466 U. S. 668, 104 S. Ct. 205, (1984)). Once the defendant establishes that

Is performance was deficient, the defendant must next show that, but for counsels error the

result of the trial would probably have been different adeljeel, 466 U.S. at. 694, 104 S. Ct.

2068; Elavis v. State, 107 Nev, 600, 601,602, 817 P. 2d 1169, 1170 (1991). The defendant must

demonstrate =ors were so egregious as to render the result of the trial unreliable or the

proceeding fundamentally unfair. State v, lave, /09 Nev. 1136, 1145, 865 P2d 322, 328 (1993),

S. at 687 104 S. Ct. at 2064.

21 trial in violation of the Sixth Amendment is a lithted question of law and fact and is thus subject

independent revie
	

466 U.S. 668, 104 S.Ct. 2052, at 2070, 80

L.Ed.2d 674 (1984). This Court reviews claims of ineffective assistance of counsel under a

reasonable effective assistance standard enunciated by the United States Supreme Court in

tr:kkleed and adopted by this Court in Yierdelui,„Lvena, 100 Nev. 430„ 683 13.2d 504, (1984);

1)plw_421c3lak, 108 Nev. 112, 115, 825 13.2d 593, 595 (1994 Under this two-prong test, a,

ertdant who challenges the adequacy of his or her counsel's representation must show (1) that

23

"The question of whether a defendant has received ineffective assistance of counsel at
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1 During the Trial". S 4...2.11. 2 1 3,

73,

0

•=r,

r.ro
g.

'zcp=

0.

qators1

sao

_

Vs performance was deficient and (2) that the defendant WAS prejudiced by this deficiency.

466 U.S. tit 687, 104 S.Ct. at 2064.

Under Strickland, defense counsel has a duty to make reasonable investigations or to

ake a reasonable decision that makes particular investigations unnecessary. Id at 691, 104

.Ct. at 2066. (Quotations omitted), Deficient assistaace requires a showing that trial counsel's

sentation of the defendant fell below an objective standard of reasonableness. Id in 688,

04 S.Cr. at 2064. 11 the defendant establishes that counsel's petformance was deficient the

fendant must next show that, but for counsel's errors, the math of the trial probably would

eve been different Id at 694, 104 &Ct. at 2068.

The United States Constitution guarantees the Defendant the right to counsel for the

e and has pronoutced that the assistance due is the "Reasonably Effective Assistance of

104 S. Ct 2052 (1984).

, the Nevada Supreme Court adopted the Two Prong Standerd ef' lanagskind in Warden

yon.. 100 Nev. 430, 683 P24 504 (1984).

in keeping with the siatarateitztin-assi

urt extended the right to conneel to include a convicted defendant's first appeal. Set, Evitts v.

,arcy, 469 U. S. 387, 105 S.Ct.. 830 (1985); Sec also, Do	 372 U.S. 353

1963).

That counsel at each of the proceedings must be adequate, meaningful, and effective.

triekland, Swam

Appellate counsel failed to provide reueonably effective assistance to REPPO by failing to

se on appeal, or completely assert all the available arguments supporting constitutional issues

sed herein. Theses issues include the folio

24

2

22

23

24

2

2

27
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TRIM. COMM/. WOLF$ON INS  jr. ..!
'RELIELMMEMLILAMIA -NDTII AL 	DUECASI TO 	

LANCITISH R MML_B_LS r.FQEgaCEMIMG LRE	 TRIAL

Appellate counsel failed to provide reasonably effective assistance to RIPPO by failing to

raise on appeal, or completely assert all the available arguments supporting constitutional issues

6 raised in this argument.

During this inordinate deity a number of jailhousc snitches were able to gain access to

R 'S legal work or learn about the case from the publicity in the newspaper and television

and were therefore able to fabricate testimony against WT0 in exchange for favors from the

prosecution.

Hi. THE P4RFORMANCE1V TIVIAL CO
PRASE OF lig TRW, FELL 
RE a N	F

EdignthnAisiUg_this galtliwillialgopluaRipzutftas
itt elevanUndulY riviudicial and Vgyjeitace °Other Bald Acts,

Appellate counsel failed to provide reasonably effective assistance to KIPP° by failing to

r completttiiltThvailnble

raised in this argument.

Prosecutor Harmon described HIPPO to the jury as looking like a "choir boy". In order to

prejudice RIPPO in the eyes of the jury, the State showed the jury a picture of RIPPO as he

sometimes looked in prison which was absolutely not relevant to his appearance when not in

custody. In the photo RIPPO looked grungy and mean which was a stark contrast to his

ppearance vvben not in custody and at trial. When RIPPO voiced concerns to his attorneys he

as told the photo didn't matter as the jury could see that RIPPO was clean cut during the trial.

The jury should not have been allowed to view RIPPO as he appeared in prison.

25
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1

12

1

14

1

16

17

18

19

20

2

22

2

24

25

26

27

28

It is hornbook law that evidence of other criminal conduct is not admissible to show that a

defendant is a bad person or has a propensity for committing crimes. Elate V. Hines, 633 P.2d
3

4

5

6

7

1384 (Ariz. 1981); Malik v.11	738 P.2d 789 (Cob. 1987) State v,	756 P.2t11033

(Haw. 1988); Moore v. State, 96 Nev. 220, 602 P.2d 10$ (1980). Although it may be admissible

under the exceptions cited hi NRS 48.045(2), the determination whether to admit or exclude

vide= of separate and independent criminal 301s rests within the sound discretion of the trial

court, and it is the duty of that court to strike a balance between the probative value of the

evidence and its prejudicial dangers. fashury v, S P'1,g, 90 Nev. 50,518 P.2d 599 (1974)

The prosecution may not introduce evidence of other criminal acts of the accused unless

the evidence is substantially relevant for some other purpose than to show a probability that the

accused committed the charged crime because of a trait of character, Dicker v, State, 82 Nev.

127,412 P.2d 970 (1966) . Fven where relevancy under an exception to the general rule may be

found, evidence of other criminal acts may not be admitted if its probative value is outweighed

by its prejudicial effect, Williams v.$tate, 95 Nev. 830, 603 P.2d 694 (1979).

The test for determining

juror could reasonably infer fiorn the facts presented that the accused had engaged in prior

criminal activity." Morning v. Warden. 99 Nev. 82, 86.659 P2d 847, 850 (1983) citing

Commonwealth v. Allen, 292 PA.24, 373, 375 (Pa. 1972) . In a majority ofjurisdiction improper

reference to criminal history is a violation of due process since it affects the presumption of

innocence; the reviewing court must therefore determine whether the error was harmless beyond

reasonable doubt. Porter v, State, 94 Nev. 142 576 P.2d 275 (1978); Chaturnan vc California,

86 U.S. 18, 24, 87 S.Ct. 824, 828, 17 L.Lid.2d 705 (1967).

The use of the prison photograph was for the sole purpose of attempting to portray RUPP°

beingas 	of poor character and having committed other bad acts, Trial counsel clearly should

26
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•
have objected and prevented the use of the photoge.aph.

IV. TRE PERFORNM1W.E QF TRIAL 	 EAL 1'Y
PHASE F

jajZOLIMMLSO	CTIVE 0 SLI T	 1
URE_C_Thl

a.)	Failure to Object to Unconstitutional Jury Instructions at the Penalty
Hearing That Did Not Define and Limit the Use of Character Evidence by
the Jury.

(See argument V. herein below)

Appellate counsel failed to provide reasonably effective assistance to RIPPO by fail to

(b) Failure to Offer Any Jury Instruction with Rippo's Specific Mitigating
Ciretunstances and Failed to Object to an Instruction That Only Listed the
Statutory Mifigators and Failed to Submit a Special Verdict Form Listing
Mitigatating Circumstances Found by the Jury.

(See argument V. herein below)

Appellate coimsel failed to provide reasonably effective assistance to RIPPO by failing to

to raise on appeal, or completely assert all thc available argument; sup. Ming

in this argument.

Failure to Argue the Existence of Specific Mitigating Circumstances During
Closing Argument at the Penalty Hearing or the Weighing Process Necessary
Before the Death Penalty Is Even an Option for the Jury.

Appellate counsel failed to provide reasonably effective assistance to RFPPO by failing

raise on appeal, or completely assert all the available arguments supporting constitutional issues

raised in this argument.

As discussed above there was no verdict form provided to the jury for the purpose of

ing the existence of mitigating circumstances. To compound the matter, not once during

27

raise oa appeal, or completely assert all the a	Mc arguments supporting constitutional issues

raised in this argument
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0

losing argument at the penalty hearing did either trial counsel submit the existence of any

specific mitigating circumstance that existed on behalf of RIPPO. A close reading of the

arguments reveals the existence of a number of rnitigators that should have been urged to be4

1)	Accomplice and participant Diana Hunt received favorable treatment and is already
eligible for parole;

)	RI:PP° came from a dysfunctional childhood;
3) RIPPO failed to receive proper treatment and counseling from the juvenile justice system;
4) R1PPO, at the age of 17, was certified as an adult and sent to adult prison because the

State of Nevada discontinued a treatment facility of violent juvenile behaviors;
(5)	RIPPO was an emotionally disturbed child that needed long term treatment, which he

never received;
6)	IMP° never committed a serious disciplinary offense while in plison, and is not a

danger;
(7) RIPPO worked well in prison and has been a leader to some of the other persons in

Plison;
(8) RIPPQ has demonstrated remorse; and
(9) RIPPO was under the influence of drugs at the time of the offense.

Death penalty statutes must be structured to prevent the penalty being imposed in an

arbitrary and unpredictable fashion. Gregg v. Georgia, 428 U.S. 153, 96 Sgt. 2909,49 1....E41,24

859 (1976); Furman v. Gtiargia, 408 U.S. 238.92 S.Ct. 2126, 33 LE4.2d 346 (1972) . A capital
1

20

defendant must be allowed to introduce any relevant mitigating evidence regarding his character

and record azgl circumstance of the offense. Woodson v. Noth Carolina, 428 U.S. 280,96 S.Ct.

21 2978, 49 L.E4.2c1 944 (1976);	 iti x ,_A,r1	455 U.S. 104, /02 S.Ct. 869, 71 L.Fat2d

22 (1982).

23
In Lockett v. O1ij, 438 US 586, 98 S.Ct 2954, 57 L.Ed. 2d 973 (1978) the Court held that

24
in order to meet constitutional muster a penalty hearing scheme must allow consideration as a

mitigating circumstance any aspect of the defendant's character or record or any of the

circumstances of the offense that the defendant proffers as a basis for a sentence of less than

death. See also Hitchcckv. Das g, 481 US 393, 107 S.Q., 1821, 95 LEd.11347 (1987) and

2 a

found by the jury. These were:
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Aer v. Duacer, 498 US 308, Iii S.Ct 731, 112 Lb:1,24812 (1991).

Incredibly, at no point did RIPPO'S attorneys urge the jury to find the existence of

mitleating circumstances and weigh them against the aggravators. This failure not only

prejudiced RIPPO at the penalty hearing, it also precludes any meaningful review of the

appropriateness of the jary" s verdict of death.

(d). Failure to Object to Improper Closing Argument at the Penalty Hearing.

Appellate counsel failed to provide reasonably effective assistance to RIPPO by failing to

raise on appeal, or completely assert all the available arguments supporting constitutional issues

raised in this argument.

During closing argument at the penalty hearing the prosecutor made the following

improper argument to the jury to which there was no objection by trial counsel:

'And 1 would pose the question now: Do you have the resolve, the courage, the
intestinal fortitude, the sense of commitment to do your legal duty? (3114/96 page
108).

In ,Evans v.,  tate, 117 Nev. Ad. Op. 50 (2002) the Nevada Supreme Court considered the

'Other pitman al remarks were excessive and unacceptable and should have
been challenged at &j ai and on direct appeal. In rebuttal closing, the prosecutor
asked, 'do you as a jury have the resolve, the determination, the courage, the
intestinal fortitude, the sense of legal commitment to do your legal duty? Asking
the jury if it had the 'intestinal fortitude' to do its 'legal duty' was highly
improper. The United States Supreme Court held that a prosecutor erred in trying
lo exhort the jury to do its job; that kind of pressure. .has no place in the
administration of criminal justice' 'There should be DEP suggestion that a jury has a
duty to decide one way or thenther; such an appeal is designed to stir passion and
can only distract a. jury from it's actual duty: impartiality'. The prosecutor's words
here 'resolve,' 'determination,' courage,' intestinal fortitude,"commi Orient,'
duty'— were particularly designed to stir the jury's passion and appeal to

partiality"

3

4

6

7

8

27
it was error for counsel to fail to object to the improper argument and the failure to object

28
precluded the matter from being raised on direct appeal.

29
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(e)	Trial Cotutsel Failed to Move to Strike Two Aggravating Circumstances
—That-Wert-Dased-on Invalkl-Convictions. -

Appellate counsel failed to provide reasonably effective assistance to RIPPO by railing to

raise on appeal, or completely assert all the available arguments supporting constitutional issues

.ed in this argument.

The aggravating circumstances of under sentence of-imprisonment and prior conviction of

8a violent felony were based on RiPPO'S guilty plea to the 1982 sexual assault of Laura Martin.

RIPPO'S plea canvass was woefully inadequate and as such trial counsel should have filed a

11

17
would have shown an improper guilty plea canvass under Nevada law.

The number of aggravators in this case unduly swayed the jury. If one aggravator was

TIlE 	 MON GWEN AT 1HZ PENALTY }MARIN	D T
APPRAISE Y OF THE PROPER ustgy CHARACTER EVIDENCE
AD 	S IMP° ON OF THE DEATH PENALTY WAS
ARBITRARY Ng/BASED ON VALID WEIGHING OF AGR IATIN(

GAT

28	Appellate counsel failed to prervide reasonably effective assistance to RIFT° by failing to

30

0 Iviotion to Strike the two aggravating arcumstances that vvere based on the guilty plea- RIPPO

b tight this to the attention of trial (a:nisei but no eff'ort was matte to invalidate the two
12

aggravators,
13

As the State improperly stacked aggravating circumstances the removal of the prior14

15	viction would have eliminated the two most damaging aggravators, Defense counsel should

16 have pushed for an evidentiary hearing where a review of the transcripts fnam the plea heating

enough to impose the death sentence, then surely six meant death was thc only answer. This20

2/ shouid have compelled defense counsel to utilize an.y avenue of attack avai/able against the

22 aggravators.

JA009058
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1

2

2

,

raise on appeal, or completely assert all the available arguments supporting constitutional issues

aised in this argument.

NRS 200.030 provides the basic scheme for the determination of whether an individual

convicted of fist degree murder can be sentenced to death and provides in relevant portion:

4.	A person convicted of murder of the first degree is guilty of a category A
felony and shall be punished:

(a)	By death, only if one or more aggravating circumstances are found and any
mitigating circumstance or circumstances which are found do not
outweigh the aguavating circumstance or circumstances; or

9	(b)	By imprisonment in the state prison:

In the case at bar, in addition to the alleged aggravating circumstances there was a great

deal of "character evidence" offered by the State that was used to urge the jury to return a verdict

of death. The jury, however, was never instructed that the "character evidence" or evidence of

other bad acts that were not statutory aggravating circumstances could not be used in the

weighing process.

Instruction No. 7 given to the jury erroneously spelled out the process as follows:

The State has alleged that aggravating circumstances are present in this case.
The defendants have all	certain mitt ing cucu e, L.	are p	iek

19 It shall be your duty to determine:

(a)Whether an aggravating circumstance or circumstances are found to exist; and
(b)Whether a mitigating circumstance or circumstances are found to exist; and
(c)Based upon these findings, whether a defendant should he sentenced to life
imprisonment or death.

The jury may impose a sentence of death only 11(1) the jurors unanimously find at
24 1	

least one aggravating circumstance has been established beyond a reasonable
doubt and (2) the jurors unanimously find that there are no mitigating

25 j	circumstances sufficient to outweigh the aggravating circumstance or
circumstances found.

213 Otherwise, the punishment imposed shall be imprisonment in the State Prison for
27 J	life with or without the possibility of parole.

A mitigating circumstance itself need not be agreed to unanimously; that is, any
28	one juror can find a mitigating circumstance without the agreement of any other

juror or jurors. The entire jury must agree unanimously, however, as to whether

31
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the tames outwei ing cWg W5taflCCS or whether

The jury was also told in Instruction 20 that:

The jury i instructed that in determining the appropriate penalty to be imposed in
this case that it may consider all evidence introduced and instructions given at
both the penalty hearing phase of these proceedings and at the tea/ of this matter,

The jury was never instructed that character evidence was not to be part of the weighing

process to determine death eligibilitylity or given any guidance as to how to treat the character

*dence. The closing arguments of defense counsel also did not discuss the use of the character

evidence in the weighing process and that such evidence could not be used in the determination

f the existence of aggravating or mitigating circumstances.

In Brooks v, Kcmo, 762 R2c1 1383 (11th Cie 1985) the CA:pun described the jinxed

ust be followed by a sentencing jury under a statutory scheme similar to Nevada:

After a conviction of murder, a capital sentencing hearing may be held. The jury
hears evidence and argument and is then instructed about statutory aggravating
circumstances. The Court explained this instruction as follows:

se of the statutory aggravating circumstance is to limit to a large degree,

1

2

21

22

statutory aggravating circumstances exist, the death penalty may not be imposed
in any event If there exists at least one statutory aggravating eircannstance, the
death penalty may be imposed but the fact finder has a discretion to decline to do
so without giving any reason .. . (citation omitted]. in making the decision as to
the penalty, the feet finder takes into consideration all circumstances before it
from both the guilt—innocence and the sentence phase of the trial. The
circumstances relate to both the offense and the defendant.

24

2

leitation omitted] . The United States Supreme Court upheld the constitutionality
of structuring the sentencing juzy's discretion in such a manner. gant
yelUbm 462 13.5. 862, 103 S.Ct. 2733, 77 lelid.2d 235 (1963)"
Brooks 762 F.2d at 1405.

In Witter v. State, 112 Nev. 908.921 P.2d 886 (1996) the Court stated:
2

28
Under NRS 175.552, the trial court is given broad discretion on questions
concerning the admissibility of evidence at a penalty hearing. Q. 108 Nev. 770,
819 1?.24 578.1n Repine v. State, 106 Nev. 611,798 P.2d 558 (1990), cert. denied,

32
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1
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4 9 U.S. 970 (1991). this court held that evidence of uncharged crimes is
issi e araiwnaltyhearing-once-antaggravating circurristancehasbe

proven beyond a reasonable doubt. Witter, 112 Nev. at 916.

Additionally in Gallego v. State, 101 Nev. 782, 711 P.2d 856 (1995) the court in

discussing the procedure in death penalty cases stated:

If the death penalty option survives the balancing of aggravating and mitigating
circumstances, Nevada law permits consideration by the sentencing panel of other
evidence relevant to sentence NRS 175.552. Whether such additional evidence
will be admitted is a determination reposited in the sound discretion of the trial
judge. Gallego, at 791.

More recently the Court made crystal clear the manner to properly instruct the jury on use

of character evidence:

To determine that a death sentence is warranted, ajury considers three types of
evidence evidence relating to aggravating circumstances, mitigating
circumstances and any other matter which the court deems relevant to sentence'
The evidence at issue here was the third type, 'other matter' evidence. In deciding
whether to return a death sentence, the jury can consider such evidence only after
finding the defendant death--eligible, i.e., after is has found unanimously at least
one enumerated aggiv.vator and each juror has rourtd that any mitigators do not
outweigh the aggravators. Of C.01106, if the jury decides that death is not
appropriate, it can still consider 'other matter' evidence in deciding on another
sentence. Evans v. State,  117 Nev. Ad. Op. 50 (2001).

M the court failed to properly instruct the jury at the penalty hearing the sentence

posed was arbitrary and capricious and violated RIPPO'S rights under the Eighth Amendment

to be free from cruel and unusual punishment and to Due Process under the Fourteenth

Amendment and must be set aside.

TIT 0
EC ION

)NSE. AN
C MITIGA G CU

TAM R S
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Appellate counsel failed to provide reasonably effective assistance to RTIVO by failing to

on appeal, or completely assert all the available arguments supporting constitutional issues

raised in this argument.

At the penalty hearing Instruction number 17 given to the jury listed the WWII mitigating,

circumstances found in 11/4,116 200.035, No other proposed mitigating circumstances were given

to the jury. The verdict forms given to the jury did not contain a list of proposed mitigating

ircumstances to be found by the jury.

In every criminal case a defendant is entitled to have the jury instructed on any theory of

defense that the evidence discloses, however improbable the evidence supporting it may be.

12 I Allenijaak, 97 Nev. 394, 612 P.2d 1153 (1961); Williams v. State, 99 Nev. 530, 665 P.2(1 260

In Lockett v. Ohio, 438 US 586, 98 S.Ct 7954, 57 L.Ed. 2d 973 (1978) the Court held that

order to meet constitutional muster a penalty hearing scheme must allow consideration as a

mitigating circumstance any aspect of the defendant's character or record or any of the

'mu-instances-0 V!	OM	0'00 411I0K1	* A	 r1.1, h

death. See also Hitcheocky. Nager, 481 US 393, 107 S.Ct. 1821, 95 L.Ed2d 347 (1987) and

rAtip. v. Dupder, 498 US 308, 111 S.Ct 731, 112 LEcl2d 812 (1991).
2

NRS 175.554(1) provides that in a capital penalty hearing before ajury, the court shall

24 the mitigating circumstances alleged by the defense upon which evidence has been presented

25 during the trial or at the hearing". Byford v._SUne, 116 Nev. Ad. Op. 23 (2000). It was a

26 iolittion of the 14th and 8th Amendments to fail to instruct the jury on the defense mitigators

28

34

22
instruct the jury on the relevant aggravating circumstances and "shall also instruct thejury as to

23

27
and further a 6th Amendment violation for counsel a trial not to submit a proper instruction and

special verdict form to the jury. This failure was especadly harmful to RIPPO, when just from a

JAC) 09062



e closing arguments there were valid mitigating circutnsta.nces that likely would have

been found by one or more of the jurors. These are:

I.	Accomplice and participant Diana Hunt received favorable treatment and
is already eligible for parole;

2. R1PPO came from a dysfimetional childhood;
3. RIPPO failed to receive proper treatment and counseling from the juvenile

justice system;
4. RIPPQ was certified as an adult and sent to adult prison /MUM the State

of Nevada discontinued a treatment facility of violent juvenile behaviors;
5. PIPPO was an emotionally disturbed child that needed long term

treatment, which he never received;
6,	PIPPO never committed a serious disciplinary offense while in prison. and

is not a danger;
RiPPO worked well in prison and has been a leader to some of the other
persons in prison;

R.	R1PPO has demonstrated remorse;
RIPK) was under the influence of drugs at the time of the offense.

The only instruction the jury received was the stock instruction that reads:

Murder of the First Degree may be mitigated by any of the following
circumstances, even though the mitigating circumstance is not sufficient to
constitute a defense or reduce the degree of the crime:

.	The Defendant has no significant history of prier criminal activity.
2. The murder was committed while the Defendant was under the influence

of extreme mental or emotional disturbance.
3. The victim was a participant in the Defendant's criminal conduct or

consented to the act.
4. The Defendant was an accomplice in a murder committed by another

person and his participation in the murder was relatively minor.
5. The Defendant acted under duress or the domination of another person.
6. The youth of the Defendant at the time of the crime.
7. Any other mitigating circumstances"

This instruction did absolutely nothing to inform the jury of the mitigators that actually

applied to the cases and given the nature of this and other penalty hearing errors, mandates

that the sentence be reversed.

35
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STATUTORY	 ALLmE	E LAW FAILS PROPERLY
hij ti lltA/ 01441 l ei 44.1 	IA b hal fill .. SJI illi I	 1

THEREFORE VIOLATES THE PROHIBITION AGAINST CRUEL AND 
uNt PUNISHMENT 1U1_,SNALy!_41	EIGHTH AMENDMENT AND
FURTHER VIOLATES THE RIGHT TO A FAIR AND NON-ARBITRARY
SENTENCING PROCEEDING AND DUE PROCESS OF LAW UNDER
IIIL 14TH AMENDMENT. UNITED STATES CON 'TS IT`UTION 

5 6 3 AND UV VADA CON UTION ARTICL
SE

Appellate counsel failed to provide reasonably effective assistance to RIPPO by failing to

raise on appeal, or completely assert all the available arguments supporting constitutional issues

nused in this argument.

11 The Nevada capital statutory scheme and case law impose no limits on the presentation of

victim impact testimony and as such results in the arbitrary and capricious imposition of the

13 death penalty.

-14
The Nevada Supreme Court has held that due process rep-Arm/01W apply to a penalty

15

hearing. In bunions V. State, 107 Nev. 53, 807 P.2d 718 (1991) the Court held that due process

requires notice of evidence to be presented at a penalty hearing and that one days notice is not

ad-equate. In the context at a penalty hearing to determine whether the defendant should be

adjudged a habitual criminal the court has found that the interests of justice should guide the

exercise of discretion by the trial court, Sesaions v. State, 106 Nev. 186, 789 P.2d 1242 (1990) .

In Ificks v. Oklahg_ma, 447 U.S. 343, 346, 100 S.C. 2227,, 2229, 65 1,„E4.2d 175 (1980),

the United State Supreme Court held that state laws guaranteeing a defendant procedural rights at

sentencing may create liberty interests protected against arbitrary deprivation by the due process

clause of the Fourteenth Amendment, The procedures established by the Nevada statutory

scheme and interpreted by this Court have therefore created a liberty interest in complying with

the procedures and are protected by the Due Process clause.

The Eighth Amendment to the United States Constitution requires that the sentence of

36
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1:0

,te	 death not be imposed in an arbitrary and capricious MEL11110r. Gregg v _email, 428 U.S, 151
2

.Z7

kil
LJI

(1976) . The thndamental respect for humanity underlying the Eighth Amendment requires

consideration of the character and record of the individual offender and the circumstances of the

particular offense as a constitutionally indispensable part of the piocess of inflicting the penalty

of death. Woodson v. Nprth cpectliea, 428 U.S. 280 (1976) . Evidence that is of a dubious or

tenuous nature should not be introduced at a penalty heating, and character evidence whose

probative value is outweighed by the danger of unfair prejudice, of confusion of. the 15,NWS or

misleading the jury should not be introduced. Allen v. State, 99 Nev. 485,665 F.2d 238 0983).

The United States Supreme Court inEttpelelevir	emee, 501 U.S. 808, Ill. S.Ct, 2597,

115 1...5-.1.2d 720 (1991) held that the Eighth Amendment erects uo per se bar to the admission of

certain victim impact evidence during the sentencing phase of a capital case. The Court did

acknowledge that victim impact evidence can be so unduly prejudicial as to render the sentencing

proceeding fundamentally unfair and violate the Due Process Clause of the Fourteenth

Amendment. Payne, 111 S.Ct at 2608, 115 L.Ed.2d at 735, In Hmick v. State WS Nev. 127,

4

7

8

9

10

11

	

;	

12

	

164	13

•et	14-
rtZlz

15

16
S

	

416	17

19

20

136-137, 825 P2d 600, 606 (1992) this Court eff1-5-	01-diligirl

21

22

comported fully with the intendment of the Nevada Constitution and declined to search for loftier

heights in the Nevada Constitution. In cases subsequent to liotnisk, the Court has reaffirmed its

position, finding that questions of admissibility of testimony during the penalty phase of a capital

murder trial are largely left to the discretion of trial court. Lmith_v_a=„, 110 Nev. 1094, 1106,

881 P.2d 649,(1994). The Court has not however addressed the issue of presentation of

cumulative victim impact evidence or been presented with a situation where the prosecution went

beyond the scope of the order of the District Court restricting the presentation of the evidence.

Some State courts have voiced disapproval over the admission of any victim impact

evidence at a capital sentencing hearing finding that such evidence is not relevant to prove any

24

25

26

27

28
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The challenged, instruction was modified by the Court in Dvford v. State, 116 Nev. Ad.

Op. 23 (2000 . In Byford, the Court rejected the arginnent as a basis for relief for Byford, but

recognized that the erroneous instniction raised alegitimate cement" that the Court should

address. The Court went on to find that the evidence in the case was clearly sufficient to establish

premeditation and deliberation.

Subsequent to the decision in Byford, supra, further challenges have been made to the

stniction with no success. In Garner v. State, 116 Nev. Ad. Op. 85 (2000), the Court discussed

length the future treatment of challenges to what has been deemed the "Kazalyn" instruction,

denying relief to Gamer, the Court stated:
(")

	

2	•To the extent that our criticism of the Kazalytt instruction in Byford means thatLeJ 0:1
	a	

the instruction was in effect to some degree erroneous, the error was not plain.
Therefore, under Byford, no plain or constitutional error occurred here.

	

14	independently of Byford, however, Gamer argues that the Kasalyn instruction
caused constitutional error. We are unpersuaded by his arguments and concludez	rinj

1 g ois 15	that giving the Kazalyn instruction was not constitutional error.
. —Therefore, the required use of the Byford

	

16	instruction applies only prospectively. Thus, with convictions predating Byford,

	

7	
neither the use of the Krualyn instruction nor the failure to give instructions
equivalent to those set forth in Byford provides grounds for relief"Garrier, 116	

	

18	 at

The State, during closing argument took full advantage of the unconstitutional

instruction, arguing to the jury, inter elite.

Premeditation need not be for a day, an hour or even a minute. It may be as

	

22	instantaneous as successive thoughts oldie mind.

How quick is that?

19

20

21

23

24

25

26

For if the jury believes from the evidence that the acts constituting the killing has
been preceded by and has been the result of premeditation, no matter how rapidly
the premeditation is followed by the act constituting the killing, it is willful,
deliberate and premeditated murder.

27
So contrary to TV land, premeditation is something that can happen virtually

28	instantaneously, successive thoughts of the mind." (3/5/96 pi. 14).

39
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It is respectfully urged that trial counsel was ineffective in failing to object to the

on and deliberation instruction and that RIPPO was prejudiced by the failure..

STATE Me FEDERAL ciagnITUTIONAL GUARANTEE OF DUE
FralatiRalySnaTIQEMIILLaaatISIMAJABLE

REME

UNITED STATES CONSTITUTION AMENDMENTS 5.6. 4„,AND 14: 
NEVADA CONSTITUTION ARTICLE T ECTIONS.6
ARTICLE IV i SECTION 21. 

Appellate counsel failed to provide reasonably effective assistance to RIPPO by failing to

n appeal, or completely assert all the available arguments supporting constitutional issues

this argument.

The Nevada Supreme Court's review of eases in which the death penalty has been

imposed is constitutionally inadequate. The opinions rendered by the Court have been

consistently arbitraty, unprincipled and result oriented. Under Nevada law, the Nevada Supreme

Court had a duty to review RIPPO'S sentence to determine (a) whether the evidence supported

the finding of aggravating circumstances; (b) whether the sentence of death was imposed under

3

5

le

.?1

the influence of passion, prejudice or other arbitrary factor; whether the sentence of death was

've considering both the crime and the defendant NRS 177.055(2). Such appellate review

also required as a matter of constitutional law to ensure the fairness and reliability of

PO'S sentence.

The opinion affirming RIPPO'S conviction and sentence provides no indication that the

andatory review was fully and properly conducted in this case. In fact the opinion while noting

that no mitigatine circumstances were found, failed to notice that there was no jury verdict form

for the jurors to find mitigating circumstances included in the record on appeal. The statutory

banism for review is also faulty in that the Court is not required to consider the existence of

40

19

20
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circumstances and engage in the necessary weig,hing process with aggravating

circumstances to determine if the death penalty in appropriate.

RTPPO also again hereby adopts and incorporates each and every claim and issue raised in

his direct appeal as a substantive basis for relief in the Post Conviction Writ orFlabeas Corpus

based on the inadequate appellate review.

X. RIPPO'S CONVICTION .A.ND SENTENCE IS INVALID UNDER TUE
STATE AND FEDERAL CONSTITUTIONAL GUARANTEES OF DUE
plic uiti. PROTECTION . IMPARTIAL JURYQM_ERQU.FR	-
SECTION OF  THE COMMUNITY. AM) RELIABLE DETERMINATION
DUE TO THE TRIAL. CONVICTION AN_I) SENTENCE BEING 

ED	1.1LY 11 WH	ANA RICAN
OTHER MINORITIES WERE SYSTEMATICALLY EXCLUDED AND

TES CONSTITUTION 
AMENDMENTS S. 6., 8., AND 14: NEVADA CONSTITUTION ARTICLE",
SECTI N	, kit .•„	 CTION I

Appellate counsel failed to provide reasonably effective assistance to RIPPO by failing to

raise on appeal, or completely assert all the available arguments supporting constitutional issues

'sed hi this argument

RIPPO is not an African American, however was tried by a jury that was under

represented of African Americans and other minorities. Clark County has systematically

eluded from and under represented African Americans and other minorities on criminal jury

pools. According to the 1990 census, African Americans - a distinctive group for purposes of

constitutional analysis - made up approximately 8.3 percent of the population of Clark County,

Nevada. A representative jury would be expected to contain a similar proportion of African

Americans. A prima facie case of systematic under representation is established as an all white

ury and all white venire in a community with 8.3 percent African American cannot be said to be

easonably representative of the community.

The jury selection process in Clark County is subject to abuse and is not racially neutral

41

JA009068



in the manner in which the jury pool is selected. Use of a computer database compiled by the

partment of Motor Vehicles, and or the election department results in exclusion of those

rsons that do not drive or vote, often members of the community of lesser income and minority

status. The computer list from which the jury pool is drawn therefore excludes lower income

individuals and does not represent a fair cross section of the community and systematically

discriminates.

The selection process for the jury pool is further discriminatory in that no attempt is made

o follow up on those jury summons that are returned as undeliverable or are delivered and

generate no response. Thus individuals that move fairly frequently or are too busy trying to earn a

living and fail to respond to the summons and thus are not included within the venire. The failure

of County to follow up on these individuals results in Only pool that does not represent a fair

cross section of the community and systematically discrimi

RIPPO was denied his Sixth Amendment right to a jury drawn from a fair cross-section of

e community, his right to an impartial jury as guaranteed by the Sixth Amendment, and his

1

12

n 1
of 18
ptE•el	14

,41	•	16

—	17

I.

'91 g

citizens from jury service, moreover, violates equal protection under the state and federal

constitution. The reliability of the jurors fact finding process was compromised. Fin*, the

process used to select RIPPO'S jury violated Nevada's mandatory statutory and decisional laws

concerning jury selection and RIPPO'S right to a jury drawn from a fair cross-section of the

maturity, and thereby deprived RIPPO of a state created liberty interest and due process of law

the 14th Amendment

XL JIIPPO' S SENTE SE is INVALID UNDER THE STATEANDAL
CONSTITUTIONAL 	 UAL
PROTECTION OF THE LAWS. EFFECTIVE ASSISTANCE QE

h	 '	LE SENTENCE BECAUSE EVADA
51AMORY_SCHEMESE LAW WITH RESPECT TO THE
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Appellate counsel failed to provide reasonably effective assistance by failing to

on appeal, or completely assert aU the available arguments supporting constitutional issues

raised in this argument.

In fine, v.gi_mateo • , 4211 U.S. 238,92 S.Ct. 2726. 3 L.Ed.2d 346 (1972), the United

States Supreme Court held that death penalty statutes must truly guide the jury's determination in

=Posing the sentence of death. The Court held that the sentencing scheme must provide a

ugful basis for distinguishing the few cases in which death penalty is imposed from the

12 1 many cases in which it is not." Id. at 188, 96 S.Ct. at 2932.

In Godfrey v. Georgia, 446 U.S. 420, 100 S.Ct. 1759 (1980) , the Supreme Court struck
14

doi a Georgia death sentence holding that the aggravating circumstance relied upon was vague

and failed to provide sufficient guidance to allow a jury to distinguish between proper death

Cm 17 penally cases and non-death penalty cases. The Court held that under Georgia law, Itjhere is no

r; 1	• 11	17'

in which it was not." at 877, 103 S.Q., at 2742.

Recant decisions of the United States Supreme Court demonstrate that all the factors

22 sled in the Nevada Capital Sentencing Statute (NRS 200.033) are subject to challenge on the

2
rcurnstances, the factors guiding the jury's discretion must be objectively and precisely defined:

Although our precedence do not require the use of aggravating factors they have

43

2

gmtmds of Sth Amendment Prohibition against vagueness and arbitrariness, for both on its face

24 and as applied in R1PPO'S case.

25	In Stringer v. Black, 503 U.S. 222, 112 S,Ct. 1130 (1992) the United States Supreme

26
noted that where the sentencing jury is instructed to weigh aggravating and mitigating
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1

6

not permitted a state in which aggravated factors are decisive to use factors of
if 1.111.•	 *	4117	 .t.**:

of determining whether defendant is eligible for the death penalty fails to channel
the senteneers discretion, A vague aggravating factor used in the weighing process
is in essence worst, for it creates the risk that the jury will treat the defendant ae
more deserving of the death penalty and he might otherwise be by relying upon
the existence of illusory circumstance. Id at 382."

Among the risk the court identified as arising from the vague aggravating factors are

randomness in sentence decision making and the creation of a bias in favor of death. (Ibid.) Each

of the factors contained in NRS 200.03315 subject to the prescription against vague and

imprecise sentencing factors that fail to appraise the sentencer of the findings that are necessary

to warrant imposition of death. (Elgaihs,„ 486 U.S. 356 (1988))

The factors listed in NRS 200.033, individually and in combination, fail to guide the

screamers discretion and create an impermissible risk of vaguely defined, arbittarily and

capriciously selected individuals upon whom death is imposed. It is difficult, if not impossible,

under the factors of NRS 200.033 for the perpetrator of a First Degree Murder not to be eligible

for the death penalty at the unbridled discretion of the prosecutor,

• *	 • *I	II 111j1111)11 .4'		 111 -
' •	z

*

under the 8th Amendment a sentence of death obtained under Georgia Capital Monier Statute but

permitted such a sentence for an offense that was found beyond a reasonable doubt to have been

outrageously and wantonly vile, horrible or inhuman in that it involved torture, depravity of

mind, or an aggravated battery to the victim!' (Id. at 422). Despite the prosecutor's claim that the

Georgia courts had applied a narrowing construction to the statute (Id at 429-430), the plurality

pinion recognized that:

In the case before us the Georgia Supreme Court has affirmed the sentence of
27	death based upon no more than a finding that the offense was 'outrageously or

wantonly vile, horrible and inhuman.'"
26

There is nothing in these words, standing alone, that implies any inherent restraint

44
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2

22

23

24

25
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on the arbitrary and capricious	 of the death sentence. A person of

Fo 51:4 3

0
Po

g
X/

14

1

16

ordinary sensibility can fairly characterize almost every murder as "outrageously

or wantonly vile, horrible and inhuman." Id. at 428.429).

To be consistent with the 8th Amendment, Capital Murder must take into account the

concepts that death is different (KgilOmistyj(am„,s 463 U.S. 992, 103 S. Ct. 3445 (1983)),

that the death penalty must be reserved for those killings which society views as the most

'egregious. — affronts to humanity." (rant v. Stephens, 462 U.S. at 877, Footnote 15 (citing

Gregg v. ('Teorgia, (1976) 428 U.S. 153, 184.)) Across the board eligibility for the death penalty

also fails to account for the different degrees of culpability attendant to different types of

murders, enhancing the possibility that sentencing will he imposed arbitrarily without regard for

the blameworthiness of the defendant or his act.

The Nevada Statutory scheme is so broad as to make every first degree murder case into a

death penalty case. The Statute does not narrow the class of murderers that are eligible for the

death penalty. The scheme leaves the decision when to seek death solely in the unbridled

discretion of prosecutors. Such	 eme violates the mandates of the United States Supreme

4 5
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CONCLUSION

upon the arguments herein; Mr. Rippe would respectfully request the

of his
	

deathof 	and convictions based upon appellate counsel failing to raise the

neccssay arguments on direct appeal and &r violations of the United States Constitutions

Amendments Fourteen, Eight, Five, and Six. In the alternative the Mr. Rippo would respectfully

request and evidentiary hearing to establish the level of ineffective assistance of counsel.

pa

1
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IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA

*

ICHAEL DAMON RIFF)°,

Appenant,

vs.

THE STATE OF NEVADA,

Respondent.
Case No. 28865

sTer.MENT OF  lasma
WHETHER THE TRIAL COURT'S FAILURE TO RECUSE ITSELF AND

DISCLOSE A CONFLICT OF INTEREST TAINTED THE PROCEEDINGS AND

A NEW TRIAL OR AT THE VERY LEAST AN EVIDENTIARY HEARING BASED

EREON SHOULD HAVE BEEN GRANTED

2. WHETHER THE STATE'S FAILURE TO PROVIDE BRADY MATERIAL

N A TIMELY FASHION DENIED RIPPO OF A FUNDAMENTALLY FAIR TRIAL

AND DUE PROCESS OF LAW

3. WHPTHFR PROSECUTORIAL MISCONDUCT AND FAILURE TO

DISQUALIFY THE DISTRICT ATTORNEY'S OFFICE FOR SUCH CONDUCT

DENIED RIPPO DUE PROCESS AND A FUNDAMENTALLY FAIR TRIAL

X. WAS IT ERROR TO ALLOW THE STATE TO AMEND THE

INDICTMENT WITHOUT RESUBMISSION TO THE GRAND JURY

;E. WAS EVIDENCE OF THREATS TO WITNESSES IMPROPERLY

ADMITTED DURING TRIAL

WHETHER PRIOR BAD ACT TESTIMONY WAS IMPROPERLY

ADMITTED DURING THE COURSE OF THE TRIAL

7. WHETHER IMPROPER CLOSING ARGUMENT DURING THE

GUILT PHASE MANDATES A NEW TRIAL BE GRANTED

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28
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:211
F"	1	8. DID THE CUMULATIVE ERROR DURING THE PROCEEDINGS DENY

rj1.0
2 RIPPO A FUNDAMENTALLY FAIR TRIAL

C)
3	74. WHETHER OVERLAPPING AND MULTIPLE USE OF THE SAME

C)
4 FACTS AS SEPARATE AGGRAVATING CIRCUMSTANCES RESULTED IN THE

C)
5 ARBITRARY AND CAPRICIOUS INFLICTION OF THE DEATH PENALTY

CN
6	X. WAS IMPROPER ARGUMENT DURING THE OPENING STATEMENT

7 AT THE PENALTY HEARING REVERSIBLE ERROR
LID
OD	 8	U. DOES IMPROPER CLOSING ARGUMENT DURING THE

9 PENALTY HEARING MANDATE A NEW HEARING

10	12. WHETHER THE CUMULATIVE AND EXCESSIVE VICTIM

11 IMPACT TESTIMONY SHOULD HAVE BEEN ALLOWED

12	>0. WAS IT REVERSIBLE ERROR TO GIVE AN ANTI-SYMPATHY

13 INSTRUCTION TO THE JURY

14	14. WAS THERE SUFFICIENT EVIDENCE FOR THE JURY TO FIND

15 TORTURE AS AN AGGRAVATING CIRCUMSTANCE

16

17

9

20

21

23

24

25

26

27

28
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STATEM7wr sr rug rAsE

MICHAEL DAMON RIPPO (hereinafter referred to as RIPPO)

stands convicted of a number of felonies, including two counts

of First Degree Murder. He was sentenced to death by lethal

injection by the trial jury. This is the direct appeal from

his conviction and sentence.

A number of the issues raised herein are directly related

Ito a number of matters that transpired as the case was

9 progressing toward trial, i.e., failure to comply with

10 discovery orders and disqualification of the original

11 prosecutors. 	It is therefore necessary to go into greater

12 detail than usual with respect to the Statement of the Case.

13 RIPPO was indicted by the Clark County Grand jury on June

14 5, 1992 the felony charges of murder, Robbery, Possession of

15 Stolen Vehicle, Possassion of Credit cards without the

16 cardholder's consent and Unauthorized Signing of credit card

17 transaction document (1 RCA 1-4). 	=PP() was arraigned on July

8 20	before theonorable Cerard 8cngiovanrii 	n	waived hi 5

19 right to a trial within sixty days (5 RCA 18-23). 	Oral

20 requests for discovery and reciprocal discovery were granted by

21 the court (5 RCA 18-23). 	RIPPO'S formal Motion for Discovery

22 was granted by the Court on November 4, 1992 (5 ROA 1113-1125).

23 Prior to the District Court arraignment, the State filed a

24 Notice of Intent to Seek the Death Penalty alleging the

25 existence of four aggravating circumstances, to wit: 	(1) the

26 murders were committed by a person under a sentence of

27 imprisonment; (2) the murders were convicted by a person who

28 had been previously convicted of a felony involving violence,

3
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(3) the murders were committed during the perpetration of a

robbery, and (4) the murders involved torture or mutilation of

the victims (1 ROA 7-8).

The trial date was continued several times, the first

being at the request of defense counsel on February 5, 1993 due

to a scheduling conflict and the case was reset for trial for

September 13, 1993. (Minutes page 5) (The Courti s Minutes

relating to this case are located at the end of volume 24 of

the Record on Appeal and are not separately paginated. To

avoid confusion reference where necessary will be to the page

number of the Court's minutes). On September 2, 1993 RIPPO

filed a Notice of Alibi (2 ROA 284-286). On September 10,

1993, the date set for the hearing of a number of pretrial

motions the defense moved to continue the trial date based on

having just received from prosecutor John Lukens, on September

7th, notice of the State's intent to use at least two new

expert witness and a number of jail house snitches and

discovery had not yet been provided on any of the new witnesses

2 ROA 295-306). The Court granted the defense request to

continue the trial date and same was reset to February 14, 1994

(2 ROA 304).

A status hearing on the trial date was held on January 31,

1994 at which time the defense indicated that subpoenas had

been served on the two prosecutors on the case, John Lukens and

Teresa Lowry, as they had participated in the service of a

search warrant and had discovered evidence thereby making

themselves witnesses in the case (2 ROA 323-326). A Motion to

Disqualify the District Attorney's office was thereupon filed

4
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•
s	1 along with a Motion to Continue the Trial (2 ROA 358-375; 351-

2 357). At the hearing of the Motions the Court continued the
C) 3 trial date to March 28, 1994 in order to allow time for an
C)

4 evidentiary hearing on the disqualification request and because
C)

5 the court's calendar would not accommodate the trial data (2
ON

6 RCA 14-15).

tN) 7	The evidentiary hearing on the Motion to Disqualify the
C)

8 District Attorney's office was heard on March 7, 1994 and two

9 days later the Court granted the motion and removed Lukens and

10 Lowry from the case, but declined to disqualify the entire

11 office and ordered that other district attorneys be assigned to

12 the case (3 RCA 680-684). On March 11, 1994 the Court and the

13 defense were advised that the new prosecutors on the case would

14 be Mel Harmon and Dan Seaton and a status date was scheduled

15 for a week hence to address all the remaining pending motions

16 (Minutes pages 15 - 16). At the status hearing on March 18th the

17 defense indicated that they had just been provided with a

t1ia t had been p

19 withheld and that the State had filed a motion to Amend the

20 Indictment and that therefore the defense was again put in the

21 position of having to ask the Court to continue the trial date

22 Minutes page 16). The Court granted the motion and reset the

23 trial date for October 24, 1994 (Minutes page 17).

241	The October trial date was also vacated and reset based on

25 representations made by the District Attorney at the calendar

26 call on October 21, 1994 (4 RCA 828-S29). The date was reset

27 for August and September, 1995, however due to conflicting

28 trial schedules, the date was once again reset for January 29,
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1996 (Minutes page 21). On January 3, 1996 the State was

allowed to file an Amended Indictment over the objection of

RIPPO (4 ROA 847-849).

Jury selection commenced on January 30, 1996 and the

evidentiary portion of the trial began on February 2, 1996

(Minutes pages 23-26). An interruption of the trial occurred

between February 7th and February 26th based on the failure of

the State to provide discovery concerning a confession and

exculpatory statements made by RIPPO to one of the State's

witnesses (Minutes pages 28-30). The trial thereafter

proceeded without further interruption and final arguments were

made to the jury on March 5, 1996 (Minutes pages 30-35).

Guilty verdicts were returned on two counts of first

degree murder, and one count each of robbery and unauthorized

use of a credit card (5 ROA 1001). The penalty hearing

commenced on March 12, 1996 and concluded on March 14, 1996

with verdicts of death on both of the murder counts (Minutes

pages 36-33). On e- r-emaJ.m.,ag e- on counts RIPPO -w	

sentenced to a total of twenty-five (25) years consecutive to

the murder counts (Minutes page 40).
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5TATENENT_QF FACTS 

A. TRIAL TESTIMONY

Lauri Jacobson moved into a studio apartment in the Katie

Arms, a weekly rental complex, on February 8, 1992 (10 ROA 92-

94). Jacobson failed to make the rental payment that was due

on the 15th of February and on the 17th or the 18th was

observed by apartment manager Wayne Hooper, driving her

vehicle, a black Datsun, with a flat tire, followed by a red

Camaro fie ROA 96; 100).

On the 20th of February, Hooper became concerned because

the overdue rent still hadn't been paid and Jacobson's car

hadn't been moved for a couple of days and the keys were in the

car, so he decided to check the apartment (10 ROA 101; 103;

122). Hooper used his master key to get into the apartment

which appeared to have been ransacked, with beer bottles on the

floor, the phone laying in the middle of the floor with the

receiver off the hook and clothes everywhere (10 ROA 104-106).

After walking into-th	 MAA^	—rved_twe_persons

2
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8
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16.

1/

18
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25[

26

27

28

laying face down in the walk-in closet (10 RoA 106-107). The

police were then called (10 RoA 110).

Officer Darryl Johnson responded to the Katie Arms and

after meeting with the security officers and manager, proceeded

up to the Jacobson apartment (10 ROA 134-137). After observing

two deceased females in the closet the homicide section was

notified (10 ROA 140-141). The two females ware identified as

Jacobson and her friend Denise tizzi.

Crime scene analyst called to the scene made a number of

observations. There was no evidence of forced entry into the

7
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•
apartment (16 RCA 85). An iron was recovered from a trash bag

in the kitchen and a hair dryer from underneath the east day

bed (16 RCA 97). The cords had been cut from both appliances

(16 ROA 98). LiZZi had a big piece of cloth tied to her left

forearm and wrapped around her head and mouth was a piece of

dark cloth (16 RCA 113). No bindings were found on the body

of aacobson (16 RCA 114). Fragments of brown glass were

recovered from the floor area of the kitchen and living roam

(16 RCA 122-123).

Crime scene analyst Cabrales learned that a number of

police officers had entered and viewed the crime scene and

evidence was developed that showed that the crime scene had

been contaminated (16 RCA 137-138). Cabrales prepared a

memorandum stating that "obviously, the crime scene was not

protected and the integrity of all evidence recovered from the

scene has been compromised." (16 ROA 138)

Denny Mason and Lizzi had been on and off boyfriend and

r or five years (3.6 ROA38), He hcd TIven

Lizzi a Nissan 3002X automobile (16 RCA 43), and about a week

before she was found dead, let her use his Visa card to go

shopping to buy some things for his house (16 RCA 48-49).

Mason did not authorize anyone to make purchases from the

Sungear Company (16 RCA 59) nor use the card at the Gold Coast

from February 19th through the 21st (16 RCA 61). Lizzi also

had access to Mason's Dillard's card. To the best of his

knowledge Mason had never met or heard of RIPPO (16 ROA 42).

Diana Hunt, who was originally arrested and charged as a

co-defendant with RIPPO, was called by the State pursuant to

H•
NJ 2
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4

16

7

8

9

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

8

JA009093



•	se
her plea negotiations (11 RCA 164-166). She started dating

RIPPO in January, 1992 and they lived together for a period to

time in a house on Gowan Road (11 RCA 30; 31). As of February

17th they were living with Deidre D'Amore, a friend of RIPPO

(11 RCA 32), and RIPPO told Hunt that he had been over to

Jacobson's apartment helping her move (11 BOA 33; 34). The

following day, at about 9:00 a.m. RIPPO woke up Hunt and they

then drove to the Katie Arms, to help Jacobson move (11 ROA 36-

3). After entering the apartment, Hunt sat on the couch and

Jacobson and RIPP0 were running around the apartment, laughing

and doing drugs (11 ROA 40). Hunt observed RIPPO to inject a

substance into his arm and Jacobson to do the same into her

left wrist (11 RCA 41).

Denise Lizzi arrived at the apartment complex and Jacobson

went down and talked with her for about twenty minutes (11 RCA

46). While Jacobson was downstairs, RIPPO closed the curtains

and the window and asked Hunt for the stun gun that was in her

purse, then made a telephone-call

Jacobson came back into the apartment and went into the

bathroom at which time RIPPO went into the kitchen and got a

bottled beer and brought it to Hunt (11 RCA 51). When he

handed her the beer, RIPPO told Hunt that "when Lauri answers

the phone. I want you to hit her with the bottle so I can rob

Denise." (11 RCA 51). A few minutes later the phone rang and

when Lauri bent over to get the phone, Hunt hit her on the back

of the head with the bottle (11 ROA 53). Lauri fell to the

floor but wasn't knocked out (11 RCA 53-54).

Hunt, after hitting Lauri with the bottle, could hear the

9
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RIPPO put another cord between t	 au1

•
oing off in the bathroom and RIPPO and Denise arguing

2 (11 RCA 55).	RIPPO wrestled Denise out of the bathroom and
3 into a big closet across the hall (11 RCA 55).	Hunt ran to the
4 closet and observed RIPPO sitting on top of Denise and still
5 stunning her with the stun gun (11 RCA 56).	Hunt went back to
6 where Lauri was located and helped her sit up and RIPPO came
7 out of the closet with a knife in his hand and cut the cords
8 off of appliances (11 RCA 58-59).	The cords were then used to

tie the hands and the feet of Lauri (11 ROA 60).	A bandana wa.,
10 then used to gag her mouth (11 RCA 61).
11 Hunt vent back and looked in the closet again and observe
12 that Denise's hands and feet were tied and RIPPO was asking he
13 all kinds of questions (11 RCA 62).	RIPPO then put sometn_ing
14 inside of Denise's mouth and she fell over on her side (11 ROI,

15 62).	At that point in time someone came to the door of the
16 apartment and was yelling for Lauri and after about five
17 minutes left (11 RCA 63-64).

19 and feet and picked her up or drug her across the floor with
20 (11 RCA 68).	Lauri was choking (11 ROA 68).	Hunt threw up a
21 then went and looked in the closet and saw RIPPO with his kne
22 in the small of Denise's back with something around her neck
23 and pulling real herd and choking her (12. ROA 69).	RIPPO

24 started grabbing all kinds of things putting them into a bag
25

nd told Hunt to clean up everything and put everything into
6

e bag (11 ROA 71-72).	RIPPO wiped down everything in the
27

apartment (11 RCA 73).	At one point RIPPO untied Denise's f
28

and removed her pants stating that he had bled on her pants

10
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RCA 82).

When they left the apartment RIPPO had two bags with him

and told Hunt to just go home and wait and that nobody got hurt

(11 RCA 79). Later that evening RIPPO called and told her to

meet him at a friend's shop (11 RCA 84). Hunt drove to the

shop of Tom Sims and met RIPPO who told her that he had a car

for her, which was a maroon Nissan (11 RCA 84-85). Hunt had a

friend, Tom Christos, who could get paperwork on the car and

RIPPO asked her to do so (11 RCA 86). She therefore drove the

car over to Christos' house (11 RCA 88).

The following day RIPPO told her that he had purchased an

air compressor and some tools at Service Merchandise that

morning with a credit card (11 RCA 90-91). At the Meadows

Mall, Hunt and RIPPO purchased two pair of sunglasses for

$160.00 using a Gold Visa credit card (11 RCA 92-93; 12 RCA

163). The credit card was presented and signed in the name of

Denny Mason (12 ROA 173-174). Upon returning to Deidre's

esidence, Hunt got into RIPPO'S wallet because she wanted to

to the residence of Christos and he told her to go get the

24
of Teresa Perillo and she was living with her boyfriend Tom

26
had been beating her and that she didn't want to go back to the

28

11

9 get away from him and took the Visa card (11 ROA 93-96). Tha
20 credit card was in the name of Denny Mason (11 ROA 96).
21

According to Hunt after stealing the credit card, she went

23
maroon car (11 ROA 97-98). February 19, 1992 was the birthday

25
Christos at that time, and she complained to Hunt that Christos

27
house (11 ROA 99). The two went to a shopping mall and on the

way RIPPO beeped Hunt and he wanted the credit card back and

JA009096



arrangements were made to meet at the mall, but RIPPO did not

show up (11 ROA 101-102). While they were at the mall, Hunt

bought cologne for Teresa (11 ROA 102), and the pair went to

several bars (11 RCA 103) and then got a room at the Gold Coast

using the Denny Mason credit card (11 ROA 104). During the

evening Hunt stopped at a friend's house and got some primer

paint and sprayed the car because she knew it was stolen and

wanted to change the appearance of the car (11 RCA 105).

On February 29th, Hunt called the police and told them

that she knew something (11 RCA 112). The next day RIPPO got

into the car with Hunt and as they were driving made statements

to her about what would happen to her if she left and that he

had gone back to the Jacobson apartment and cut the throats of-

the girls and jumped up and down on them (11 ROA 115-118). The

car ran out of gas and Hunt jumped out of the car, leaving her

belongings behind and ran down the street and called her friend

11 ROA 120). After her friend picked her up, they went back

td

11

12

79: 13
..cNcog4

cia,„;
	co

Z'ec. 14

15

16
R

7

1

o her car and her bag was missing from the car and the door

was open (11 RCA 121).

In the early morning hours of March 1, 1992, Hunt had

further contact with RIPPO at a house in North Las Vegas (11

ROA 154-155). As RIPPO was getting out of his car he was

saying that she had killed the two girls and he had proof (12

RCA 92). A confrontation occurred and Hunt yelled back that he

had killed those girls and she could prove it, and RIPPO ran

around the front of the car and started punching her in the

face (11 RCA 156). He also stunned her with the stun gun and

when he got her down on the ground started choking her and

JA009097



•
' I banging her head into the pavement (11 RoA 159). Other

2 lindividuals pulled RIPPO off of Hunt and the police were
C) 3 called, but RIPPO left before the police arrived (11 RCA 159-
CD 4 161).
C)

5I	Hunt was arrested for the killing and robbery of Lizzi and
CrN

6 Jacobson on April 21, 1992 in Yerington, Nevada (11 RCA 162).

b.D	7 On June 2, 1992 she entered in to a plea agreement whereby she
CO
.QD	8 wouldn't be prosecuted for the murders if she cooperated with

9 the police and testified against RIPPO (11 RCA 166). She pled

10 guilty to robbery and was sentenced to fifteen years in prison

11 (11 RCA 168). Also part of the plea agreement was that Hunt
12 would not be prosecuted for any other uncharged conduct,

13 Including credit card fraud, selling drugs and stealing cars

14 (12 RCA 9). While in prison Hunt asked the District Attorney's

15 Office to help her get reclassified to a minimum facility and

16 such a letter was written by deputy district attorney Dan

17 Seaton (12 RCA 105-106). At the time of her testimony she had

181 already been before- the

19 RCA 120).

20	Hunt had been in a mental hospital for eleven and a half

21 months when she was 16 years old (12 RCA 14). She had a tattoo

22 on her arm with two lighting bolts and the letters SP which
23 stood for Supreme White Power (12 RCA 23). Neither she nor
241 RIPPO took a knife or gun to the apartment which is something
25 Hunt thought they would bring along if they were planning to

26 commit robbery or murder (12 RCA 58).

27	Teresa Perillo had lived with Tom Christos for about a
28 year and was acquainted with Hunt through Hunt's cousin Carrie

13
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3

•
Burns (13 ROA 7-9). On the way to the Mall, Hunt stopped at an

apartment complex and removed the car cover from a maroon

Nissan and stated that because it was Perillo's birthday she

13 RCA 36). At nine o'clock the following evening they took a

gentleman that they had picked up at the Club Rock back to the

bar and went to the house of a friend of Runt's so that Hunt

could purchase a gun (13 BOA 21), There was no transaction for

a gun, but Hunt did ask for primer paint so that she could

change tha appearance of the car (13 RCA 22). Hunt then took

Perillo back to her residence and Perillo did not see Hunt

again after February 20, 1992 (13 RCA 25-26).

RIPPO had called the house of Christos on the 20th in the

ly evening hours looking for Hunt and left a message with

Christos that "the cat is out of the bag° (19 RCA 48-49). Hunt

had previously talked with Christos about his experience with

stolen vehicles and she had come to him looking for a way to

14

4 deserved to drive in a better car (13 ROA 10-12). Hunt told

her that she had repossessed the car from a bad drug deal (13

ROA 12). They then went to Dillards in the mall and Hunt

purchased perfume using a credit card (13 ROA 13). It was Hunt

that rented the motel room at the Gold Coast 13 RoA 18).

Sometime after their arrival at the Gold Coast, Hunt left to go

to Perillo's residence to pick up a phone book that had some

paperwork for the car in it (13 ROA 19). While Hunt was gone,

"6 §	Perillo checked the billing information on the television and
.4-1 45

observed that the name on the room was Denny Mason (13 ROA 20)-7—4.0-; •
te):i'D',7, 	14
e '8	Perin° also observed Hunt to have identification belonging to

15 ther persons with her, remembered seeing the name Denise LizziLuz
g	16
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-124
.	1 get rid of the stolen car (19 RCA 52). Christos wasn't

E"
2 surprised when she showed up on his doorstep with a stolen car

C) 3 (19 ROA 55).
C)

4	Laurie Jacobson had worked at a bar called Tramps with
C,

5 Wendy Liston (13 RCA 43). They had lived together in 1990 and
Oh

6 1991 (13 RCA 43). When Laurie started doing drugs a rift arose

LN.) 71 between the two of them and Laurie was asked to move out (13

8 RCA 46-47). Liston was trying to get her off of drugs but

9 tjjj kept coming over and trying to get her to continue to use

10 drugs (14 ROA 15). Liston had met Lizzi on only couple of

11 ioccasions (13 RCA 49). Laurie would obtain her drugs from

12 Lizzi or through a friend associated with Lizzi known to her as

13 RIPPO (13 RCA 52). After Laurie moved into the Retie Arms

14 apartments, Liston would go by the apartment during her lunch

15 hour take her food or money or anything she needed and at the

16 same time was trying to convince her to move (13 RCA 54).

17	Liston had last seen Jacobson the Monday before she died,

eceey17, 1992 (13 ROA 5-8 -59)--7-0h—th-e—eit—ening -herons

19 Jacobson had asked her to come over, and when she got there

20 Jacobson and RIPPO were discussing some morphine that she had

21 (13 RCA 61). RIPPO and Jacobson went into the bathroom and

22 intravenously used the morphine (13 RCA 63). Liston also went

23 over to the apartment on her lunch hour on the 17th and RIPPO

24 was also present at said time (13 RCA 64). Jacobson needed the

25 tire fixed on her car and Liston followed her to Discount Tire

26 in her car and then dropped her back off at her apartment (13

27 RCA 64-67).

28	Liston went back to the Jacobson apartment on the 18th and

L5

JA009100



%

111	2 the back of the car and saw a pair of her boots that she wanted

C)	 back (13 RCA 73). Liston went upstairs and knocked on the door
CD	4 and tried the door and window but they were locked and there
CD

was no answer at the door (13 RCA 74-75). After about ten
ON 6 minutes she yelled through the door and left (13 RCA 76).

L.) 7 Thomas Sims had operated a maintenance company since 1989

LN) 8 in Las Vegas (14 RCA 27). Sims had known RIPPO since 1985 and

on February 18th, RIPPO entered his office early in the

10 afternoon and said that the had a car that he wanted Sims to

11 look at and wanted to know if he wanted to buy it or knew

12 someone that would want to buy the car (14 RCA 28-30). RIPPO

13 bought a suitcase and perhaps a box with him and started going,

14 through the items on the couch (14 RCA 31). Sims asked where

15 the car had come from and RIPPO told bin that someone had died

16 for the car (14 RCA 32). The car was a Nissan 300ZX and Sims

7 told him that he did not want the car there and to get it away

from	 waaLed $2,000.00 fQrthe car

19 because he wanted to leave town (14 RCA 35). HIPPO gave Sims a

20 number of tapes and the suitcase (14 RCA 36-37). RIPPO left

21 the car behind and was gone for about an hour and a half and

came back around closing time with Diana Hunt (14 RCA 442).

23 HIPPO had a stack of one hundred dollar bills and stated that

24 he had just won a royal flush, and Sims emphasized to him that

25 he wanted the car gone by the time ha came to work the next

26 morning (14 RCA 42). When Sims came to work the next morning

27 at 7:30 AM the car was gone (14 ROA 45).

28	On the 21st of February, Sims saw a broadcast that two

16

1 observed that the tire had been fixed on the car, and looked in
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I women had been killed and that one of them was named Denise

2 Lizzi and realized that was the same name that was on a number

3 of the tapes that had been given to him by RIPPO (14 ROA 46-

4 47). On February 26th RIPPO called Sims and wanted to come by

5[and pick up a bottle of morphine he had left in a refrigerator

6 at the office (14 ROA 49-50). Sims didn't want RIPPO coming to

7 i bis shop and agreed to meet him somewhere to deliver it to him

8 (14 ROA 53). Sims eventually met RIPPO at a K-Mart parking lot

9 because RIPPO'S car had broken down and gave him the bottle (14

10 ROA 55-56). Sims asked RIPPO about the murders and RIPPO said

11 that he had choked those two bitches to death and that he had

12 accidentally killed the one girl so he had to kill the other

13 (14 RoA 56; 62). Sims then drove RIPPO to the Stardust Hate

14 and on the way RIPPO told him that he was carrying or dragging

15 one of the girls to the back and her face hit the coffee table,

16 and that Diana Hunt was with him and had participated in the

17 murders (14 ROA 57-58). When asked if he trusted Hunt, RIPPO

18 repliod that Hunt had hit the girl over the head- with a beer

19 bottle and that he trusted her fully (14 ROA 59). Sims also

20 asked why one of the girls had no pants on and RIPPO told him

21 that he had cut his finger during the incident and dropped

22 blood on her pants so he had to take the pants and dispose of

23 them (14 ROA 61). Finally, RIPPO indicated that he could have

24 fucked both of the girls and that he didn't and that means that

25 he is cured (14 ROA 63).

26	Sims had been interviewed by the police and only answered

27 the specific questions that they asked and did not volunteer

28 any information (14 ROA 65-66). The first time that RIPPO had
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•
told anybody about the statements made by RIPPO was around

October, 1993 when he talked with Teresa Lowry and John Lukens

in the District Attorney's Office (14 ROA 86-87).

Diana Hunt had provided Sims with copies of the discovery

on the case (16 RCA 13).

The autopsies of Lizzi and Jacobson occurred on February

21, 1992 and were performed by Dr. Sheldon Green (17 RCA 59).

Initial observations of Lizzi revealed that a sock had been

pushed into her mouth and secured by a gag that encircled her
head (17 RCA 62). Cpon opening the mouth to recover the sock,

Green noted that the sock had been pushed in so that the tongue

was forced into the hack of the throat, completely blocking off

the airway (17 ROA 66; 68). Pieces of cloth were tied around ---

each wrist (17 RCA 68). Two ligature marks were completely
circling the neck that were consistent with an electrical type

of cord (17 RCA 73; 81). There were a few tiny pinpoint

hemorrhages in the inside of the eyelids and on the white part

of the eye (17 RCA 70: These—ars c

where there is an acute asphyxial death (17 RCA 74). There was

scarring in the left arm that was typical of people who have

used intravenous drugs (17 RCA 77). There were modest

abrasions or scraping injuries of the skin on the forehead and

under the chin (17 ROA 77). Located in the neck area were two

small stab wounds which went through the skin into the band of

muscle that Comes from a point behind the ear to the top of the

breastbone (17 RCA 83). At the time of the autopsy there were

o ligatures around the ankle, however there were marks that

would strongly suggest that there had been something tied there
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allowing death (17 RCA 86). Internal examination showed a lot

of hemorrhage in the deeper tissues and the ligaments that

control the voice box and the thyroid gland that were typical

of strangulation (17 ROA a9). Green believed that there was a

combination of manual and ligature strangulation involved in

the death of Lizzi (17 ROA 91). Toxicology revealed

methamphetamine in the blood and the urine in the amount of

5,288 nanograms which is unusually high (17 ROA 95; 96).

There were no restraints associated with the autopsy of

Lauri Jacobson (17 RCA 105; 128). There was some apparent

damage around the neck and behind the right ear, and a scratch

on the neck which ended in a very superficial little stab wound

(17 RCA 107). In the neck there was a great deal of hemorrhage-

in the soft tissue around the muscle and the thyroid gland and

in addition there was an actual fracture of the cartilage which

forms the voice box or larynx (17 RCA 112). Death was the

result of asphyxiation due to manual strangulation (17 RCA

114). It would require some

four minutes to cause death by such strangulation (17 RCA 124-

125). There were no epidural, subdural or subarachnoid

hemorrhages present and no discrete hemorrhages were found in

the scalp (17 ROA 133). No stun gun marks were found on either

victim (17 RCA 130).

During the autopsy of Lizzi a black scarf was recovered

from her left wrist (17 RCA 21-22). A pair of blue sweat pants

was removed from the right wrist (17 ROA 24). A black sock was

recovered from inside her mouth (17 ROA 26). A pair of black

panties was recovered from around the heed of Lizzi (17 RCA
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30).F"1.0	2	Sexual assault kits were recovered from both victims with

C)	3 negative results (18 ROA 113).
CD	4	The torso of Lauri Jacobson had glass shards from about
CD 5 the waist to the neck (17 RCA 31).

6	Sheree Norman had impounded a plastic cylinders, spoons,

7 hypodermic syringes, a g-tip and smoking devices that were

cri
F-1

8 analyzed and found to contain residues of methamphetamine and

9 marijuana (17 ROA 166-167).
0	Fingerprint comparisons revealed that eleven prints were

1 recovered inside the apartment that belonged of police officers
2 (18 RCA 30). One fingerprint was identified as belonging to

3 homicide detective Scholl (18 RCA 30) and one was also
4 identified to Officer Goslar (18 RCA 31). These were the only

5 positive matches found within the apartment (18 RCA 32).
16	Carlos Ciapa, the sales manager at Sears in the Boulevard
17 Mall was working in the hardware department an February 19,

	18, 12 and a compressor, a spLay gun, an-dir sander, couplings
19 and a warranty to RIPPO (18 RCA 176-183). The items were paid
20 for with a Sears credit card in the name of Denise Lizzi and

21 signed in the name of Denny Morgan (18 RCA 184-185).
22	The handwriting on the Sunglass Company and Sears receipts
23 was examined by document examiner William Leaver who determined
24 that there were similarities between the signatures on the

25 documents and the handwriting of RIPPO (19 ROA 6-'14),

261 indicating a possibility that R/PPO was the author of the

27 signatures (19 RCA 14-16).
28	David Levine was in custody in the Clark County Detention

20
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1 Center with RIPPO in January, 199 (19 RON 145). Levine was a
2 porter on the floor and had the opportunity to play cards and

talk with RIPPO (19 RCA 146). RIPPO had Levine call his

4 girlfriend and give her messages to handle things for him and
5 to give messages to his attorney (19 RCA 150). According to

6 Levine, RIPP0 confessed to him that he had killed the two women
7 and that after killing them he went and played video poker and

8 hit a royal flush (19 RCA 153). RIPPO also tried to figure out

9 if Levine and he were on the street at the same time in order

to use him as an alibi witness and then a character witness (19

1 RCA 157).

2	B. PENALTY HEARING TESTIMONY

Laura Martin lived in an apartment in Las Vegas on

14 January, 1982 (22 RCA 37; 39). She had gone to bed at about

15 midnight on the 15th and to the best of her knowledge the doors

16 and windows were locked when she went to bed (22 RCA 40-41).

17 She was awakened at about 7:30 AM with RIFT° sitting on top of

fe-to	 42-433 asking where her

9 money was kept (22 ROA 45-46). RIPPO tied her hands with her

29 bathrobe tie and then tied her feet with electrical cords (22

21 RCA 47-48). Five cut sections of electrical cord were found in

22 the apartment (22 ROA 97). When Martin asked questions he hit
23 her and told her to shut up (22 RCA 48). RIPPO cut her clothes
24 off with the knife, and then allowed her to put a tube top on

25 (22 RCA 50-52). He was just mumbling and moving around the

26 apartment (22 ROA 52). RIPPO just paced around the apartment
27 and pretty much talking or mumbling the whole time that he was
28 there (22 RCA 86). She was asked if she wanted to engage in sex
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4111P	
.	 and when she begged him not to do so, he just laughed (22 RCA

2 j 54). At one point RIPPO got her down on the bed and spread her
C)	3 legs apart and raped her, although he did not ejaculate (22 RCA
CD	4 59). At one point he placed the knife in the area of her-1

5 breasts and said that he was going to cut her nipples oft and
Oh 6 that he had done it before, but that girl was dead (22 RCA 62).

7I	 Martin begged for her life and RIPPO indicated that if she
1-e
00	8 told anyone he would come back and kill her (22 RCA 66). He

S tried to choke her with wire clothes hangers (22 RCA 67).

10 RIPPO got her car keys and left and she ran to a neighbor and

11 called the police (22 RCA 67-70). Martin ended up with about
12 15 stitches behind her ear, a concussion, black eyes and a huge
13 bump on her leg that she thought might have been a chipped bone---

14 (22 ROA 74). She never went back to her apartment and had been
15 unable to live alone since the incident (22 ROA 75).
16	On April 1, 1981, Metro Officer Jack Hardin became

17 involved in the investigation of a burglary of a Radio Shack in

18 the area of Nellie and the Boul
19 Sixteen year old RIPPO was identified as a suspect and Hardin
20 therefore went to an apartment on East Tropicana and made
21 contact with the occupant and located a great deal of
22 electronic equipment (22 RCA 110-113). Also recovered were
23 tour firearms (22 RCA 115). RIPPO was arrested for the
24 burglary of the Radio shack and of Holman's of Nevada and taken
25 to the Clark County Juvenile facility (22 RCA 119). He was
26 also booked as a runaway (22 RCA 120). It was his mother's
27 request that he be committed to Spring Mountain Youth Camp (22

28 RCA 136).

22
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RIPPO was committed to the Spring Mountain Youth Camp on

April 29, 1981 and remained there until August 26, 1981 when he

was released to his parents (22 ROA 130). During his stay at

SMYC RIPPO was under the supervision of Robert Sergi who

emembered RIPPO as pleasant to be around, but that he gave the

mpression of just shining him on (22 RCA 152). Sergi never

got the impression that he intended to end his criminal

lifestyle (22 RCA 161).

In December, 1981 two rifles and four handguns were

recovered in the attic of a home wherein RIPPO was living (23

RCA 10). RIPPO had run away from home and had stolen the guns

in residential burglaries according to a friend of RIPPO'S (23

RCA 11). On January 20, 1982, RIPPO was taken into custody on —

other charges and the burglary warrants were served at the same

time (23 RCA 12-13). when interviewed RIPPO couldn't remember

most of the burglaries because he was high on drugs (23 ROA

16). RIPPO had been arrested in front of an apartment waiving

a gun and trying to gain entrance (23 RCA 28).

Tom Maroney was the juvenile parole officer for RIPPO and

prepared the certification report to the juvenile court

recommending that RIPPO be certified as an adult on the charges

of sexual assault, burglary and others (23 ROA 40). After his

arrest RIPPO escaped from the Juvenile Detention Center (23 RCA

43). Maroney believed that RIPPO was very bright and knew the

difference between right and wrong (23 ROA 48). Psychologist

Joanna Triggs evaluated RIPP0 while he was in the juvenile

system and found that his memory was intact and had no

hallucinations and no evidence of paranoia or delusions (23 RCA
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75). He had average to above average intelligence, was not

depressed, not suicidal, and had good social skills meaning

that he related very well and had good charisma (23 RCA 75).

On the sexual assault case, RIPP0 was sentenced to life in

prison with the possibility of parole (23 ROA 101). RIPPO had

told his Parole and Probation officer that he was under the

influence of phencyclidine which had been added to a marijuana

cigarette when he committed the crime (23 RCA 108). RIPPO

paroled from the prison sentence on October 24, 1989 (23 ROA

120). The parole was revoked on April 30, 1992 (23 RCA 125).

He was therefore under a sentence of imprisonment on February

18, 1992 (23 RCA 125).

Correctional Officer Eric Karst testified that in March,

986 at Southern Nevada Correctional Center in Jean, Nevada he

earched the cell of RIPPO and located a nine inch buck knife,

a pair of nunchuks, a compass, money and a wrench (23 RCA 147).

found was a brass smoking pipe (23 RCA 149). RIM

ith-him-in-pri

as a stand up convict that carried his own and was very seldom

challenged to fight because his reputation was that he would
not back down from any fights (23 RCA 151).

Victim impact testimony was offered from the father and

mother-in-law of Lauri Jacobson (23 ROA 175-183; 184-188).

Also offering victim impact testimony were the mother, brother

and the father of Denise tizzi (23 RCA 189-207).

James Cooper was employed as a vocational education

instructor in laundry and dry cleaning with the Nevada Prison

system in the early 1980's and later became involved with a
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prison ministry 	24 RCA 6-7). 	Cooper first met RIPPO at the
2 prison in Jean, Nevada in 1982 (24 ROA 7). 	RIPPO looked like
3 an eighth grader and shaved his head to try and make himself
4 look tougher (24 RCA 8). 	RIPPO worked in the laundry and never
5 caused any problems and was one of the inmate workers that
6 Cooper could leave unsupervised (24 RCA 9). 	Cooper had
7 maintained contact with RIPPO and believed that he was reaching
8 out for the Lord as he grew older (24 ROA 12).	Cooper was of
9

10

11

the opinion that RIPPO would not be a problem to the prison,

but would rather be an asset (24 ROA 13),

RIPPO'S stepfather, Robert Duncan, told the jury about his
12

contact with RIPPO after he had already reached the prison
13 system (24 RCA 23).	While he was incarcerated Duncan supplied--
14

him with a typewriter, computer and computer courses and he did

quite well, additionally excelling in drawing and writing (24
16 RCA 31).	When RIPPO was released on parole he came to live
17 with Duncan and his mother and lived in their residence for

a ou n no to ten months (24 RCA 25). RIPPO worked a number o
19

jobs during that period of time, only changing when a better
20

job became available (24 RCA 26-29). 	The parole officer only
21

came to visit once and didn't even come into the house because
22

he said that he had a heavy case load and didn't have the time
23

(24 RCA 30).
24

The younger sister of RIPPO, Stacie Roterdam, told the
25

jury about her relationship with her brother and the early
26

27
years of their lives (24 RCA 41). 	RiP po was the family clown,

whenever anyone was down or something was going on around the

house he was there the make them laugh (24 ROA 42), When the

25
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parents would fight the would comfort his sisters and tell them
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that it would be OK (24 ROA 42).

A letter from RIPPO'S mother was read to the jury because

she could not come to Court to testify based on orders of her

doctor as she was suffering from acute anxiety reaction and

anxiety depression (24 ROA 63). She described her son and the

difficulties he encountered while growing up and how he first

got into trouble (24 ROA 61-67).

RIPPO exercised his right to allocution and told the jury

that the reason that he pled guilty to the sexual assault

charge was to spare the victim the anguish of testifying (24

ROA 74). He further expressed his sorrow for the families of

the two victims (24 ROA 75-76).

JA009111



ARGUMF2T

2

3

4

I.

THE TRIAL COURT'S FAILURE TO RECUSE
ITSELF AND DISCLOSE A CONFLICT OF

INTEREST TAINTED THE PROCEEDINGS AND
A NEW TRIAL OR AT THE VERY LEAST

AN EVIDENTIARY HEARING BASED
6	 THEREON SKOLD wail REW GRAFTED

7	Prior to the commencement of the second day of testimony

8 in the case, the defense put on the record the fact that a

9 substantial article had appeared in a local newspaper

10 concerning a federal investigation into presiding trial Judge

11 Bongiovani (11 ROA 4). During the course of the discussion on

12 he matter the Deputy District Attorney Seaton represented that

13 he had personally talked with District Attorney Stew Bell and

4 the District Attorney's Office had no information concerning

5 the search warrant served on the home of Judge Bongiovani, and

16 that the District Attorney's Office had nothing to do with the

17 case against Judge Bongiovani (11 ROA 8).

8	The Motion for the Recusal of the Court was renewed at the

/9 hearing of the Motion for Mistrial based on the failure to

20 provide exculpatory evidence and to comply with the pretrial

21 discovery order (15 ROA 6). Counsel for RIPPO summed up the

22 situation:

23

	

	 "As to the issue on the recusal of the Court, we
respectfully submit that this Court is under a lot of

24	unusual pressure right now. The newspapers have just
-- I believe it was yesterday or the day before, were

25	blasting the court for what they, quoted as
mishandling of a DUI case.

26
Well this is a double capital murder case, a

27	high profile case, and we're asking you now to rule
against the District Attorney's Office and grant a

28	mistrial. That puts you in an absolutely intenable
position. You are stuck.

27
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20
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23
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28

They are grilling you in the newspapers; you are
under investigation; the federal Grand Jury is
looking at you. And you are supposed to sit here and
say, I don't -- I'm not worried about what the State
is going to do to me?

It's putting you in a position that -- 1 think
it makes it almost impossible for you to make
decisions fair to my client without having to weigh
issues outside this trial. And it's not done with
disrespect for this Court, but it's an unfortunate
fact that's going on." (15 ROA 13-14)

The Court again declined to remove itself from the case and did

not reveal any information about the possibility of a conflict

ther pressures relating to the investigation (15 ROA 16).

After the conclusion of the trial, Judge Bongiovani was

dicted by the federal grand jury and new information

concerning the federal investigation of the judge came to the

knowledge of RIPPO and a Motion for New Trial was filed based

thereon. The allegations set forth in the Motion were that

the judge had a unique relationship with the business partner

of one of the victims in the case, specifically, Denny Mason (5

ROA 1056). As set forth in the Statement of Facts, above,

Mason was the victim in the auto theft and credit card charges,

as well as the boyfriend of victim Denise Lizzi. Some of the

specific allegations of the motion were described by counsel in

the Motion:

At no time did the Judge advise that he knew this
victim nor did the judge advise that he knew the
business partner of Denny Mason, however the defense
has learned that reputed Buffalo mob associate Ben
spano is the business partner of Denny Mason in both
Security Enterprises, a telemarketing operation now
out of business, and in the big screen television
business. If the defense had known about the
connection between the judge, Denny Mason, and
organized crime, we would have asked for a recusal
and considered calling the judge as a witness.'

28
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1 (5 ROA 1056-57). The Motion went on to describe the potential

2 impact of the information on the trial strategy of the defense,

3 such that further questioning would have been done of Mason as

4 to his credibility. The information could also have been used

5 to show that Lizzi was a drug dealer and a associate of a known

6 mob figure. This information in the opinion of trial counsel

7 would have greatly enhanced the defense in both the trial and

8 penalty phase (5 ROA 1057).

9	In Paine v.  State, 107 Nev, 998, 823 P.2d 281 (1991) this

10 Court was faced with a situation wherein an allegation had been
11 made that one of the sitting judges on a three judge sentencing

12 panel in a capital case had been asleep for a portion of the

13 presentation of evidence. In granting a new penalty hearing

14 the Court stated:

15	"The circumstances present this court with a
no-win' situation. If the case is remanded for an

16	evidentiary hearing on this issue, the questions
concerning whether Judge Beko may have slumbered on

17	occasion cannot be completely answered because only
Judge Beko knows the answer. If we dismiss Paine's

18 	 —a	 .11 - •4-	f Judge-Beko-F-s
alleged inattentiveness will forever taint this case.

19	In the news story which aired locally on this matter,
Judge Beko called Paine's allegations 'outrageous'

20	and explained that he had cataracts, which make his
21	

eyes sensitive to the lighting in the courtroom.

22
The most difficult problem regarding Paine's

allegations of Judge Beko's inattentiveness is our
concern with promoting 'public confidence in the
integrity and impartiality of the judiciary.' Nev.
Code of Judicial Conduct Canon 2A (1977). We must
avoid even the appearance of prejudice in order to
maintain 'the confidence of the thinking public in
the administration of justice.' In_re_Inquiry 
Cencerning a Judge, 788 P.2d 716, 723 (Alaska 1990)
(quoting In,lbejffatter_of_Denin, 378 N.E.2d 669, 682-
683 (Mass. 1978)."

23
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Pain, 107 Nev, at 1000-1001.
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The facts of the instant case present a situation much

worse than in Paine, supra and much more analogous to those in

617 A.2d 707 (Pa. 1992). In NcFal/, the

issue was whether it was a denial of the appellees right to a

fair and impartial tribunal for a judge to preside over cases

without revealing circumstances that raise questions as to her

impartiality. In =all the judge had become an undercover

agent for federal law enforcement authorities in exchange for a

promise that those authorities would make her cooperation known

to any agency that chose to prosecute her for accepting a gift

from a potential litigant. In reversing a number of cases the

Supreme Court of Pennsylvania stated that:

In order for the integrity of the judiciary to be
compromised . 	. a judge's behavior is not required
to rise to a level of actual prejudice, but the
appearance of impropriety is sufficient."

Mcpail, 617 A.2d at 712. The Court further stated:

"[a] tribunal is either fair or unfair. There is no
need to find actual prejudice, but rather, the
appearance of prejudice is sufficient to warrant the
grant of new proceedings—A-trial judge-should not
only avoid impropriety but also avoid the appearance
of impropriety'

• at 714.

The area of judicial bias has not escaped examination by

the United States Supreme Court. In Vasquez v. Hiller", 474

U.S. 254, 106 S.CT. 617 (1986) the Court stated that:

"when constitutional error calls into question the
objectivity of those charged with bringing a
defendant to judgment, a reviewing court can neither
Indulge a presumption of regularity nor evaluate the
resulting harm. Accordingly, when the trial judge is
discovered to have had some basis for rendering a
biased judgment, his actual motivation are hidden
from review, and we must presume that the process was
impaired"
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